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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
ITHERHRE

For Rentian Technology, 2018 was full of challenges. As the
lingering of a US-China trade war resulted in the prolong
downturn in the Hong Kong security market and weak domestic
demand in the PRC, the Group recorded significant losses for the
Year.

The security investment business of the Group has borne the brunt
of the resultant impact of economic downturn. Since the Hong
Kong stock market crumbled and the stock price of listed securities
declined, the listed securities directly held by the Group incurred
heavy losses on the realised and unrealised fair value for the Year.
Meanwhile, due to the volatility in financial market, certain equity-
linked notes and unlisted wealth management products also
suffered grave impairment losses.

For loT business, during the height of US-China trade war,
domestic enterprises have remained a low inventory level. Reviving
demand growth of largely depends on the recovery in investors’
confidence. In general, on the basis of successfully tiding over
the profit guarantee period in the previous year, the Group's
subsidiaries proactively pursued the strategic adjustment of
“loT +”. At a time of challenges, Rentian Technology improved
the business portfolio by focusing the capital and management
resources on the independent core business with bright growth
prospects, rather than insisting on the pursuit of absolute
perfection. Nevertheless, due to the changes in the domestic
technological and financial policies, coupled with the loss of core
customers, certain subsidiaries suffered significant impairment
losses of goodwill and intangible assets for the Year, thereby
affecting the overall results.

Looking forward, the Group will strive to sharpen its business
focus on the loT sector and develop its four core businesses of
risk control over car loans, smart city, smart warehouse and smart
home, so as to seek balanced trade-offs and expand the market
share in relevant sectors by making continuous efforts to increase
the proportion of relevant businesses in the Group’s overall
business.

In the coming future, the Group will capture the following
opportunities to initiate development:
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement

As the edge computing solution for internet-of-thing (“l1oT")
is optimising, commercial/corporate sub-segment market
gains attractive commercial value

Through the deployment of edge computing on loT
sensors of vehicle monitoring hardware, Shenzhen CNEOP
Technology Company Limited* (“CNEOP”), a subsidiary
of the Group, has achieved post-loan management of risk
control at auto financial institutions. This is also attributable
to the analysis and judgment integrated with cloud on the
big data in terms of driving routes of vehicles, electric fence,
conditions of staying, activity areas and travelling habit.

A vertically integrated end-to-end solution for specific
applications and cases emerges

Supported by a professional technical team with 20 years
of extensive experience in logistics equipment and system
industries, Guangzhou Wealth-Depot Logistics Technology
Company Limited* (“Wealth-Depot”), a subsidiary of the
Group, provides customers with the most suitable logistics
system solution tailored to their specific needs by using
various world-leading high and new logistics technology
and equipment, including the Mini-load stacking machine
with high performance, robot handling system, intelligent
sorting system and automatic visual identification, to
offer onestop services from mid to high-end customers in
wholesale and retail, e-commerce, food, textiles, chemical
and pharmaceutical, automobile, warehousing and logistics
as well as public safety sectors.

Leveraging on the substantial investment in loT technology
by online e-commerce and physical stores, the retail industry
will remain the state of destabilisation

Wealth-Depot will pre-assemble returnable radio-frequency
identification chips with information embedded into
logistic unit containers. In addition to the above, it will also
monitor various stages, including packaging, transportation,
distribution, loading and warehouse on a real-time basis by
making use of advanced information processing technology,
so as to realise effectiveness and efficiency of logistics and
minimise cost, thereby maximising its profit.
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Chief Executive Officer's Statement
ITHERRE

Security of loT sensor and network achieves enhancement
on a more appropriate cost base, speeding up the loT
application

During the Year, Shenzhen Hexicom Technologies Company
Limited* (“Hexicom”), a subsidiary of the Group, continued
to actively conduct in-depth cooperation regarding the
smart ecosystem with telecommunication operators and
provided safe and high-speed products and services, for
example power line communications, for e-link Tianyi smart
home networking for China Telecom, striving to establish a
comprehensive ecological chain for the smart home industry.

Complementarity of wireless technologies including 5G, NB-
loT, LoRa and Wi-Fi will appear in specific vertical area and
application, and we will start to see the integration of all
technologies, such as 5G, Wi-Fi, BLE and LoRa.

The smart community system developed by CNEOP adopts
various modernised technologies in network communication
and information integration, establishing a comprehensive
services centre, which connects residents with residents and
residents with community, and a multi-media comprehensive
and interactive information system for residents and external
society.

The essence of edge computing is to perform computing at
the edge of the system near the source of the data instead
of some cloud platforms or data centres, thereby effectively
reducing the bandwidth needed while providing quick,
timely and high efficient response. Fujian Start Computer
Equipment Company Limited* (“FSCE”), a subsidiary of the
Group, will maintain its focus on the research, development,
production and sale of applications and equipment using
edge computing, such as cloud terminal equipment and
smart point-of-sales ("POS"), so as to be closely in line with
the current loT development strategies and market trends.

The PRC's government has been providing guidelines on the
standardised and scientific establishment of loT industry.
Along with the development of information technology, the
loT business is constantly changing and evolving. We believe
that loT industry still has bright future. Looking forward,
Rentian Technology will adopt a proactive attitude in the
Chinese 10T sector and focus the capital and management
resources on the core and major business activities by
integrating the existing resources, promoing “loT +" and
optimising the business portfolio.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

 EEMRAR L ER T BB E

BMBEEN T2 MEIRT - B INE AR
R

REBET 2 FYTEERRTEARA
T(Fﬁf’%J)Ezﬁifﬂzm EiREE(Z

LR LR A EITREASE
Z%‘:fjleafge—llnkifﬁ%?ﬁﬁ FE4E 412
HLZe2PERENENHEER MR
% iﬁl?‘]ﬁ’\ﬂﬁéﬁuﬂﬁ PEREREEE
HERESE

# 05G ~ NB-loT ~ LoRa ~ Wi-Fi % & 43
R B A T E B E B SR AN R
AREREMERAE RO RE
(405G ~ Wi-Fi * BLE * LoRa) °

FRRITEZERPEARKAZER
AL B 48 4% 38 7R BTl A {5 B L SRR
- EZY—EBRBEFPEEFP, FFPH
NEESREPO  EPEIEEE
MZRENEEEERERL -

BEHENZLERBRILESTER
SR BEP O EIREER  HmER
REHERTENEZ R EWEMHRR
BRE AR ERNEE -  AEEE
TRETZEZEMEEBRAR(EEN
BB EEZEEREREREEPOS
SRETERARBONE £E B
SHE o

PRI IES EMBETENERRE
MBI B - BEFERMHER W
BEXHOIEOZCRER - BN
REVBBTXDAGERIR R
ERF CRBEBRTEMEER
HAEGER BARBER  HE
(MEE+] BILEBHEE BESR
EEERZENZOEEER L -



Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has the following major business activities during the
Year:

loT Business

The major business activities of the Group covers cloud computing
and data processing and analysis (“cloud”), telecommunication
infrastructure and technologies (“pipeline”) and terminal
computing (“endpoint”) for corporate loT systems.

The Group’s 0T business can be further divided into 3 segments,
namely (i) loT solution; (ii) human-machine interactive devices
("HMID"); and (iii) intelligent documentation service (“IDS").
During the Year, the Group’s segment loss from the loT solution
business amounted to approximately HK$1,131.5 million,
representing a decrease of 664.1% from segment profit amounted
to approximately HK$200.6 million in the year of 2017. Segment
profit from the IDS business increased to approximately HK$27.2
million, representing an increase of 8.8% from approximately
HK$25.0 million in the year of 2017. Segment profit from the
HMID business decreased to approximately HK$13.6 million,
representing a decrease of 43.6% from approximately HK$24.1
million in the year of 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEHRED T

Profit guarantees in relation to the acquisitions of subsidiaries

As mentioned in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements,
the vendors of Hangzhou Lepei Telecommunication Company
Limited* (“Lepei”) agreed to provide profit guarantee to the
Group (“Lepei Profit Guarantee”). Based on the actual financial
information, the accumulated profits of Lepei for the years ended
31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 was less than RMB18.0
million (equivalent to HK$21.3 million). As a result, the Lepei
Profit Guarantee for the Year was not met. Pursuant to the profit
guarantee agreement, the Group shall deduct the compensation
from contingent consideration payable to the vendors of Lepei. Net
contingent consideration payable of RMB2.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$2.6 million) shall be paid in cash to the vendors
of Lepei, which is expected to be settled before the end of 2019.

As mentioned in the Company’s announcement dated 27 March
2018 in relation to the updates on the profit guarantees in relation
to the acquisitions of subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2017, the profit guarantees in relation to CNEOP, Hexicom and
Lepei namely “CNEOP Profit Guarantee 2017", “Hexicom
Profit Guarantee 2017" and “Lepei Profit Guarantee 2017",
were met while the profit guarantee in relation to Next Concept
International Investment Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the
“Next Concept Group”) namely “Next Concept Group Profit
Guarantee 2017" was not met.

CNEOP Profit Guarantee 2017

References are made to the announcements of the Company
dated 7 May 2015, 23 July 2015 and 25 May 2017 (collectively
the “CNEOP Announcements”), in relation to the acquisition of
CNEOP. Unless the context requires otherwise, capitalised terms
used in this section headed “CNEOP Profit Guarantee 2017”
shall have the same meanings as those defined in the CNEOP
Announcements.

As agreed among the Company, the Investor and the Vendor, the
Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$15.1
million will be issued by the Company to the Vendor before the end
of 2019 at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.42, a maximum
number of 35,857,142 Conversion Shares may fall to be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of the conversion rights attached to
the convertible notes in full. Also, HK$4.3 million in cash will be
paid to the Vendor by the Group before the end of 2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hexicom Profit Guarantee 2017

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated
7 August 2015 and 11 August 2015 (collectively the “Hexicom
Announcements”) in relation to the acquisition of 70% equity
interests in Hexicom. Unless the context requires otherwise,
capitalised terms used in this section headed “Hexicom Profit
Guarantee 2017" shall have the same meanings as those defined
in the Hexicom Announcements.

79,648,445 Ordinary Shares shall be allotted and issued to the
Original Shareholders before the end of 2019. Also, HK$458,667
in cash will be paid to the Original Shareholders by the Group
before the end of 2019.

Lepei Profit Guarantee 2017

The Group has paid approximately RMB4.9 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$5.7 million) to the vendors of Lepei in 2018 in
cash as the profit guarantee of Lepei for year ended 31 December
2017 was met.

Next Concept Group Profit Guarantee 2017

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 31 March 2016 (the "Next Concept Announcement”)
in relation to the acquisition of 51% equity interests in Next
Concept Group. Unless the context requires otherwise, capitalised
terms used in this section headed "Next Concept Group Profit
Guarantee 2017" shall have the same meanings as those defined
in the Next Concept Announcement. The Group has released the
remaining 50% of the consideration shares (being approximately
756,000,000 consideration shares) to the Vendors in 2018. The
2017 Compensation Amount has been settled firstly by way of
setting off the Promissory Notes 2 with principal amount and
the accrued interest of approximately HK$174 million and the
Remaining Cash Compensation of HK$13 million has been settled
by the Vendors in 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEHRED T

Impairment of goodwill in lIoT solution segment

Impairment of Goodwill arising from acquisition of Next Concept
Group

The principal activity of Next Concept Group is the provision of
one-stop IT solution to companies that are in or related to the
commodities industry and other industries in the PRC. Significant
decrease in revenue from one of the major customers of Next
Concept Group, a commodity exchange platform in the PRC (the
“Platform”), was noted during the Year as a result of reduction
in number of investors and ultimate customers using the Platform
brought by the unfavourable market conditions to the commodities
industry which may have been caused by the US-China trade war.
In addition, Next Concept Group has faced significant challenge
in developing potential customers in the commodities industry
which hindered its business growth. These circumstances warrant
the impairment on goodwill and intangible assets arising from
acquisition of Next Concept Group. The Group has made a
downward adjustment on the profit of Next Concept Group based
on the current development as discussed above and impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets amounted to HK$702.2 million and
HK$59.4 million were recognised respectively for the Year.

Impairment of goodwill arising from the acquisition of Enterprise
Development Holdings Limited (“Enterprise Development”)
(together with its subsidiaries the “ED Group”)

Enterprise Development is a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (stock code: 01808.HK). Due to drop in stock price of
Enterprise Development’s share and slower growth of ED Group
than expected due to keen competition in the software industry,
the Group determined that there was an indication for impairment
on the goodwill arising from the acquisition of the ED Group.
An impairment of goodwill amounted to HK$63.9 million was
recognised for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment of goodwill arising from CNEOP, Hexicom and Wealth-
Depot

CNEOP, Hexicom and Wealth-Depot faced a challenging market
condition in 2018 as a result of strong market competition and
slowdown in growth of the PRC economy. Based on the actual
situation in 2018, there are still uncertainties in the future
development of loT solution business. The Group determined that
there was an indication for impairment on the goodwill arising
from the acquisitions of CNEOP, Hexicom and Wealth-Depot.
Impairment of goodwill amounted to HK$46.1 million, HK$40.5
million and HK$44.7 million for CNEOP, Hexicom and Wealth-
Depot, respectively, was recognised for the Year.

Except the above, the Group did not recognise any impairment
loss of goodwill in relation to the other acquisitions.

Securities Investment Business

The Group invested in various financial instruments as both short-
term and long-term investments. During the Year, the Group
recorded a net realised loss on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$167.5 million,
dividend income from listed securities of approximately HK$52.5
million and a loss on changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$1,480.0 million,
including an unrealised fair value loss on the equity-linked notes
(the "ELN") and certain unlisted wealth management products,
amounting to HK$553.5 million as the Group has lost contact of
the issuers for the redemption of such investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group's significant investments (i.e. investment with carrying AEBMAN-ZE-N\FE+-A=+—-0OFRE
amount exceeding 5% of the total assets of the Group) held as at AREEEESBELAEREEREBRRB

31 December 2018 are as follows: 5% 23 &)EINMT :
% of shareholding Increase/(decrease)
represented by the shares/ in fair value
underlying shares or Dividend income,
held by the Company Dividend Realised and
KRARERG/ BERA income, Realised  unrealised gain/{oss),
Type of security fiEEREZEA Classification of and unrealised et as at
financial assets gain/ 31 December 2017
(fair value through (loss), net as at No5-tE
profitor loss (FVPL) 31 December 2018 +2A=1-A2 Fair value Fair value
availablefor-sale H=%-NE 0TE asat asat
asat asat (AFS) +ZB=t-H #1/(55) 31 December 31 December
31 December 31 December IHEEDR ZREBA FREWA 2018 2017
018 2017 (RE&ER ERRR BRER R-8-N% R-g-t§
H-%-NE HZg-1f AYERR/ FERRE/ FEERE/  ToREt-RZ ToAET-RR
550 tZA=t-8 tZA=t-R ig) (BB)%E (EB)#E AVH AYE
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tt T T
Investment A (Note 1) Ordinary shares - 051 AFS - 61,109) - 48,997
RER( 1) LR ik
134 164 FUpL (726,121) (528,613) 462,744 729,959
NEREEATERE
Investment B (Note 2) Ordinary shares 076 0.7 FURL 163,264 103,871 274,964 136,357
RELWi2) FER NEREEATERE
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Notes:

1. Investment A is Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (stock code:
00996.HK) (“Carnival”). The information published by Carnival regarding its
performance and prospects can be found at the HKEXNews website. Based
on published announcement and report, Carnival develops and sells high-
end coastal residential properties adjacent to its theme park, outlet mall and
hotels. Carnival would focus on the integrated large-scale tourist complex
project and property development. In order to diversify the concentration risk
and currency risk, besides the property markets in the mainland China and
Hong Kong, Carnival expect to explore more in other geographical locations in
the overseas property market.

2. Investment B is Jiayuan International Group Limited (stock code: 02768.HK)
("Jiayuan”). The information published by Jiayuan regarding its performance
and prospects can be found at the HKEXNews website. Based on published
announcement and report, Jiayuan is an established property developer of
large-scale residential and commercial complexes in various major cities in the
PRC. Jiayuan explored the development of premium projects in major cities
such as Hong Kong, Macau, Shenzhen, Shanghai and Nanjing, and focused
on residential and commercial complex projects in cities with strong economic
fundamentals. Jiayuan is actively taking opportunities for project merger and
acquisition to increase its premium land reserves in a diversified manner and
fully enhance its core competitiveness in each segment of the property value
chain.

Fair value loss of ELN and certain unlisted funds

As a means to utilise surplus cash reserves, the Group had
subscribed for ELN and a number of unlisted funds (the “Funds”)
from an investment entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
and a company registered in the PRC and approved by the Asset
Management Association of China (collectively the “Issuers”),
respectively. Please refer to note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements for the details of the ELN and Funds. Since late 2018,
the Group was unable to contact the Issuers for the redemption of
the ELN and Funds. In January 2019, the Company noticed from
the media that the office of a related company of the Issuers has
been seized together with some computers and documents stored
there. Also, the office of the Issuers has not been in operation.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has yet to receive any
response of the redemption matter from the Issuers. In view of the
significant doubt on the recoverability of the ELN and Funds, the
Group considered their fair values to be zero and fair value loss on
ELN and Funds of approximately HK$282.8 million and HK$270.7
million respectively, were recognised in profit or loss for the Year.

B3t -

1. HEFE

SFEERZERARAFTURMN KRR -
00996 HK) ([FZFE ) - ZFFEREXRBARASH
M2 BEMBRBEBRXSMPNES AW - ERETIE
ZAERBE  RFERBEREERSRESEEY

X ZEDMERIELE  BYHSREERE -
REEREMNE RBICRRREFGRE RYE
BR - ROBETRBREEER  BPEABR
BREZMEMSI  ZFEEFENEMMBEZEI
MEDIGHE —SRRET

2. BREZEEREBZERAER ARG KRR -
02768.HK) ([EIR]) - EIRHEERBEAIREM 2
BERBREER BB B - ERBEFIEZR
ERMBE - EREEERANYERER  £FEH
EAPTRBEAREEREEZSRIER - ERFA
AR ES R RY - B8 BREEHHT
WEBER  REERMABRIFEEERENH
MHEEHEFEGARER - EREBEICEIER
BHEEMB - ZoT{LIgNEE Tl - 2EEAR
EBEERSEONZORES

REHHEERE TALTELZ N FIEER

ERBARSHBRAKR ZEE  XEEEH
%'Jﬁ*??%é@?ﬁﬁﬁi%?ﬁﬁﬁky_Z&éE
B & — F?EEAEPI SR RERRESRER
i%bﬁz’:;\;{i NENGEAIBITADRE
’RE ﬁf’]—;—?ﬁ&ylﬁﬂitmﬁ‘i\(fgﬁj)
FEREHNERRESTE  B2HES
BRI EI18 BT —NFFRIE XK
SEAENBERNREHNDZERESBIKRE
TA RZE—NF— R ARARINEES
BETAN—FEB AR 2P ERERFTR
Rzt sETERMEXHEHRET RTE -
BITAZM BRI EETEE-

BEHARERS  AEEHARWREEITAML
MEBEERNEE OE - ENREHNBE
BRESZIIKEHFEERNSREM A&
EEATERSEAST MREEBHEE
MES Z R FEEE#282,800,000% T &
270,700,000 B T E 9 BIRA AN F E A Bz IR+
R o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Money Lending Business

The Group provides short-term loans to various borrowers.
Those short-term loans carried interest rates ranging from 5% to
18% per annum. During the Year, the money lending business
contributed a loan interest income of approximately HK$13.7
million to the Group.

OUTLOOK
loT Business

In 2018, with the mounting tension amid the US-China “trade
war”, the competition between the two countries became
increasingly intensified. Under the unfavourable conditions, the
stock market in the PRC and Hong Kong suffered a severe blow,
entering into a bear period. The dispute between China and
the United States has been shifted from trade to science and
technology issues. Therefore, the Group encountered various
difficulties and drastic changes in its business development during
the Year. Although the development of the US-China “trade war”
remains highly uncertain, the disputes and struggles between the
two countries is expected to continue.

To date, the PRC’s government has been providing guidelines on
the standardised and scientific establishment of IoT industry. Along
with the development of information technology, the IoT business
is constantly changing and evolving. We believe that loT industry
still has bright future. Looking forward, Rentian Technology will
adopt a proactive attitude in the Chinese loT sector and focus the
capital and management resources on the core and major business
activities by integrating the existing resources, promoting “loT +"
and optimising the business portfolio.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

A brief discussion and analysis of the operations of the Group is as
follows.

Integrated Smart IoT Solutions business

The Group has entered into the car loan risk control field with
its smart loT tracking technologies at the end of 2018. In the
coming year, the Group will focus on developing solutions for the
construction of smart communities and the car loan risk control
solution business.

The Group continued to pursue IoT telecommunication
development. In addition to EoC telecommunication equipment
and fibre-optic telecommunication equipment for the existing
telecommunication operators, the Group will continue to
enlarge its share in the telecommunication operator market
with the development and sale of auxiliary telecommunication
products. New products such as homeplug has been successfully
commercialised and applied by telecommunication operators.

The Group offers smart logistic bin products to renowned domestic
and overseas logistic, e-commerce, retailing and catering brands.
The Group expects that further enhancement will be seen in the
coming year.

EEENWE

AT i A BB TR B SR A o

BEEZYBEBRG REHK
AEBE_ZT- \FRERYHBEZEMR
RTEAZMOERRERD - ) —F
B AEESKEREREELRERRER
AREEERBRERITEBERTT RN

AEBEEEYHEBRARLES  BRE
BEEELHNRMERABERENCERE
R ARERKEBEBRBMBHEHRE
FERMLREEELRELPTE  BRED
HEANNERCKNEAECEEZANE
R -

AEERBRIINANEZHYIR  ERH - TE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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HMID Business

The Group focuses on commercial HMID and develops terminal
hardware, software and service applications for treasury, taxation,
finance, education and other key industries. It offers smart and
mobile-internet corporate solutions including but not limited to
industry-specific integrated or self-service systems, smart payment
devices, printing devices and all-in-one cloud-based systems. Apart
from the traditional banking sectors, the Group will continue to
explore the national treasury and taxation and other sectors, in
respect of the research and development of new products.

IDS Business

The Group provides specialised services to accelerate document
driven business processes to over 40 companies in the property
insurance and life insurance industry in the PRC. The entire service
process is supported by high level of confidentiality, data accuracy
and processing velocity. The Group is also engaged in development
and sale of software products and technology and provision of
IT services and operations in combination with various industry
applications, leveraging its technological expertise in the insurance
sector.

The Group will continue to focus on developing its existing
business as well as expanding into new innovative solutions with
high growth potential.

The management of the Group currently plans to open new

intelligent documentation centers in various cities in the PRC in
the coming 3 to 5 years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Securities Investment Business

In view of the recent uncertain economic outlook in global
markets due to uncertainties over near-term economic growth
prospects of Hong Kong and the PRC and the US-China trade
war, the Group takes attentive but sensible approach towards
investment opportunities and sticks with high-conviction calls with
solid earnings growth outlooks and strong fundamentals. The
Group will closely monitor the stock market and adjust its current
investments portfolio from time to time according to market
changes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results for the Year

During the Year, the US-China trade war has become an escalating
technological cold war. Emerging technologies such as the loT
industry in China faced immense challenges. The Group’s revenue
for the Year decreased from approximately HK$1,531.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to HK$1,134.9 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.9%. The decrease
in revenue was mainly caused by the changes in revenue in the
following businesses:

EEENWE

BEREEY

R ME R EEE RS NRE LT
XBEH8 SREMSOMKLERETH
B AEEREREEMEEREKSE &
ARBNERAIRER - EARERY - #
EEAZEBR - AKEBBEZYEERED
5 UARZBMEEHARERRT 2RE

1w

Bt 7% [B] R

REFEE

RAFE AXEZHEBEARFELE
BRg@mzl- hEMBAE XS HERN
MEE RS - XREBEBARAFE 2 W B E
2 TET—+F+_A=Z+T—HILFEY
1,531,400,000 7% 7T &k 4> &= 1,134,900,000 7%
T MERmD259% c WD ETBRAT
IRz Wk HIR B EFATER -

2018 2017 Changes
—E-N\EFE —E—+tF g5y
Business HK$'million HK$ 'million HKS$ million %
ES 3 BEBT BEET BEET %
loT solution W A B R T 2 338.9 668.2 (329.3) (49.3)
HMID A E B 669.3 469.4 199.9 42.6
IDS e 225.8 200.9 24.9 12.4
Investing wa (112.7) 174.9 (287.6) (164.4)

The Group recorded a loss before taxation of approximately
HK$2,930.3 million (2017: profit before taxation of HK$344.1
million). The loss before taxation was mainly attributable from:

—  The unrealised fair value loss of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$1,480.0 million
(2017: gain of HK$284.7 million);

AN B 815 B B AT 18 49 2,930,300,000 78
To(ZZF—t4F : BrBLATE F 344,100,0007%8
JC) * EERMN THIEZETE

— SEREFRREAFEERR UK EE
ZAREIR N F{EEE41,480,000,000
B (ZZE—t4 : Iz5284,700,0007%8

JL)
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— The impairment of goodwill of approximately HK$897.4
million (2017: HK$200 million); and

— The increase in loss allowance of trade receivables amounting
to approximately HK$118.4 million in relation to certain
major customers of the Group, as the trade receivables due
from these customers are overdue and the Board is of the
view that the repayment abilities of these customers have
significantly reduced.

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Borrowing and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2018, the current assets and current
liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$3,671.9 million
(31 December 2017: HK$5,208.5 million) and approximately
HK$3,134.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$1,384.1 million)
respectively. The liquidity ratio, which is calculated as current
assets over current liabilities, was approximately 1.17 times as at
31 December 2018, as compared to that of approximately 3.76
times as at 31 December 2017.

The Group financed its operation largely through internal cash
resources and interest-bearing borrowings. As at 31 December
2018, the Group maintained cash and bank balances (including
pledged bank deposits) at approximately HK$347.2 million (31
December 2017: HK$744.5 million). The decrease in cash and bank
balances was mainly due to the increase in securities investment
and payment of interest expenses during the Year. The Group’s
gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of total borrowings and
long-term debts (including promissory notes) over total equity,
was stated at 249.5% (31 December 2017: 49.07%). The increase
in gearing ratio was mainly due to the loss for the Year of
approximately HK$2,946.7 million.

The Group's total assets and total liabilities as at 31 December
2018 amounted to approximately HK$4,325.1 million (31
December 2017: HK$6,910.7 million) and approximately
HK$3,229.4 million (31 December 2017: HK$2,603.1 million)
respectively. The debt ratio, which is calculated based on total
liabilities over total assets, was approximately 0.75 times as at 31
December 2018, as compared to that of approximately 0.38 times
as at 31 December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The net asset value of the Group decreased from HK$4,307.6
million as at 31 December 2017 to HK$1,095.7 million as at 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, bank and other borrowings of the Group
amounted to HK$591.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$250.0
million) from financial institutions and a bank, among which (i) the
bank borrowing of HK$200.0 million was guaranteed by Mr. King
Pak Fu (“Mr. King"”), the controlling shareholder of the Company
and secured by the charges over the entire issued share capital
in certain subsidiaries of the Company; (ii) HK$141.0 million was
guaranteed by Mr. King and secured by a securities account; and
(iii) the bank borrowing of HK$250.0 million was guaranteed by
Mr. King and was secured by 203,854,292 shares of Enterprise
Development.

As at 31 December 2018, margin facilities of approximately
HK$841.7 million (31 December 2017: HK$897.7 million)
obtained from certain regulated securities dealers were secured by
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with a carrying
amount of approximately HK$1,556.3 million (31 December
2017: HK$2,602.9 million) and 39,682,000 shares of Enterprise
Development. An amount of approximately HK$685.5 million (31
December 2017: HK$425.1 million) of the facilities was utilised as
at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the convertible bonds of US$80.0 million
with an outstanding principal balance of approximately HK$672.1
million (31 December 2017: HK$635.5 million) were guaranteed
by Mr. King and secured by the entire shares of the Group’s
subsidiaries, Elite Dynamic Enterprises Limited and Best Elite
Enterprises Limited. As at 31 December 2018, there is no bank
deposits being pledged (2017: bank deposits of approximately
HK$6.0 million were pledged) to secure trade finance facilities and
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had pledged certain property,
plant and equipment with a net book value of approximately
HK$12.3 milion (31 December 2017: HK$13.8 milion) to secure
the interest-bearing borrowings of HK$6.0 million (31 December
2017: HK$5.4 million).

The Directors closely monitor the Group's liquidity position and
financial performance and have initiated measures to improve the
Group’s cash flows. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the next fifteen months
from the end of the reporting period given that: (i) the Group
has obtained additional banking facilities of HK$1,100.0 million;
(i) continuous development and improvement of the Group’s
businesses in 10T, HMID, IDS and Securities investment; and (iii)
the Group has obtained letters of undertakings from Mr. King and
certain companies controlled by Mr. King confirming that they
will provide financial support to the Group for the period from 1
January 2019 to 31 March 2020 to the extent that is necessary to
allow the Group to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the Year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the reporting period were disclosed in note
39 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR AND CONNECTED ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSAL

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES, REMUNERATION POLICY AND
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 1,500
employees including Directors in Hong Kong and in the PRC.
Employee remuneration, bonus, share option scheme and
training policies are commensurate with individual performance
and experience and comparable to the market rate. The Group
contributes to a Mandatory Provident Fund under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. Other employee benefits include
insurance and medical cover, subsidised educational and training
programmes as well as a share option scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the
government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have material
contingent liabilities (31 December 2017: contingent consideration
payable of HK$16.7 million).
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung (“Mr. Kwok"), aged 46,
joined the Group in June 2014 as the chief operation officer
of the Company and was appointed as executive Director of
the Company on 21 December 2017. Mr. Kwok is a director of
Fujian Start Group Company Limited (“Fujian Start”)" G822 &
ZEEERMD AR AT (stock code: 600734.SH), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange since July 2018. Mr. Kwok
is a graduate of Sun Yat-Sen University and Schulich Business
School, York University with a Master of Business Administration
degree specialized in both Finance and Strategic Management
areas. He also holds a diploma of Spanish and Latin Culture from
Universidad de Guanajuato, Mexico. Mr Kwok was re-designated
as Chief Executive Officer of the Company with effect from 10
January 2019.

Mr. Kwok has 24 years of technology industry knowledge,
information technology expertise, and senior level management
experience. He has extensive experience in global market
expansion and has left his footprint all over the world through
his career. Before joining the Company, he held various senior
management positions in Oracle Corporation, Hewlett-Packard
Enterprise Company, 3Com Inc., H3C Technology Inc., and other
technology enterprises, involved in diverse fields of technology
investment, strategic alliance, sales and operation, and etc.
Currently Mr. Kwok also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. Tsang To (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 43, joined the Company on
27 February 2014. He is a partner of a PRC law firm. Mr. Tsang
holds a bachelor’s degree in laws from Xiamen University (EF9X
&) and a master’s degree in laws from the University of London.
He is admitted as a solicitor to the High Court of Hong Kong as
well as a PRC qualified lawyer.
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Mr. Yip Denis Shing Fai (“Mr. Yip”), aged 49, joined the
Company on 21 December 2017. He has over 27 years of
worldwide industry experience in information management,
software and global sales and services. Mr. Yip holds a Bachelor
of Science degree and a Master of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering and Computer Science from University of California,
Berkeley, the United States. He also holds a Master of Business
Administration (MBA) degree from Golden Gate University,
the United States. Mr. Yip was a director of Fujian Start from
December 2017 to January 2019. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Yip was a chief executive officer and an executive director and
president of Digital China Holdings Limited (stock code: 00861.
HK), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from May 2017 to
November 2017. From January 1999 to July 2006, Mr. Yip held a
variety of senior management positions at International Business
Machines Corporation (“IBM”), including global vice president,
general manager of the Asia Pacific Storage Division, president of
the AS/400 Business in Asia Pacific Region, and general manager
of the AS/400 and RS/6000 Businesses in Greater China region.
Mr. Yip was in charge of various businesses at IBM based in
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tokyo and Shanghai, and was at the time
the youngest global vice president of IBM in 2003. In June 2016,
Mr. Yip was also elected to the board of trustees of The Webb
Schools, a private Boarding School in Claremont, California, the
United States. He has been the global senior vice president and
the president of Greater China of EMC Corporation (“EMC”) from
July 2006 to April 2017, and was in charge of the overall business
operations in mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. Upon the
merger of Dell Inc. ("DELL") and EMC, Mr. Yip continued to be
appointed as the global senior vice president of DELL and the
president of Greater China of EMC. He was also a key member in
the integration of DELL and EMC in Greater China region. Mr. Yip
resigned on 10 January 2019.

“Management Profile

= ] Jﬁ

EBREAE(TELRE]D 9% R-_T—+
F+ZAZT—HMAERRA - REAE
B S RIREE RRE S R B 27 F
BIRITHER - EREREEZEMMARER
?E%'J’“Tﬁ?(umversity of California, Berkeley)
BT ILREMAERNBIEEEST B RIBE
EE 24 IR XS KZE(Golden
Gate University) TR BIRE T2 - B4
%:?*t¢+*ﬂt31§*ﬂ¢*ﬂ%
%mLEiZ%% MARRGER - FEXER
T—tFHA ?:_?—ti‘f’—ﬂ =R iRl
ZIRA R QA (R D K 5% - 00861.HK » BE
BERSGMAERARBRMADERLTA
AZHERBIITE  NITESFFHREH - EXh4E
R—ANNF-—REZZTETFLAGET
R EMKEZAR(TIBM])) 2HEBE - X
BTFiEEREALIE - SRR AS/400 X155
MBE - R EE @ AS/400 K RS/6000 3 75 2B
BEBERREERS ELEETTEEM -
IR BRREEBFEBMARER K=
iiiiﬁz)ﬁj?—@@ZIBMi\ﬂ?EU%@ﬁ o ¥
EETR-_ZE—R"FNABERERZMER
7 (The Webb Schools * =B M 57 & K 45
MATHFEFNEF)Z2RE - FR_ZZERF
tAEZZE—tFWAEESLERF(EMC
Corporation * [EMC]) 2 a R BB H R X
FEMEAR BETRBEAM BERAE
ZEBEGEE - HHEBAF (Dell Inc. » [H
BADEEMCEHE  ELXF-#ERZTAE
B RBEBEREMC KPR EE B -
?&T%ﬁmﬁéﬁiEMCﬁﬁPiﬁiﬂE%éZ%ﬁ%W
cHEEBERZZE-NF-ATHEHT-

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k

23



24

Management Profile
B EE R

Mr. Yuan Wenxin (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 49, joined the Company
on 10 January 2018. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in law from
Hunan University Law School and an Executive MBA degree from
China Europe International Business School. Mr. Yuan has served
various banks, investment management companies under local
governments, and window companies and listed companies in
Hong Kong in different capacities and has extensive experience
in financial investment, merger and acquisition. Mr. Yuan was an
executive director, the deputy managing director and a member
of the executive committee of Shougang Concord Grand (Group)
Limited, whose shares is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00730.HK), from 2005 to January 2018
and had participated in mergers and acquisitions, restructuring,
asset management and finance leasing. Mr. Yuan resigned on 10
January 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Xiaoman (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 37, joined the
Company on 4 March 2015. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in laws
from Peking University. He is a partner of a law firm and qualified
lawyer in China. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of SDIC Essence Co., Ltd, which is listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600061.SH), and was an independent
non-executive director of Huarong Investment Stock Corporation
Limited (stock code: 02277.HK), until he resigned on 11 December
2017.
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Mr. Chin Hon Siang (“Mr. Chin"), aged 49, joined the Company
on 14 October 2015. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree
from Monash University, Australia. Mr Chin is a member of CPA
Australia. He has over 15 years of experience in external auditing,
merger and acquisition and corporate finance. He currently is
an independent non-executive director of Blockchain Group
Company Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00364.HK) until he resigned on 13
July 2018. He served as the Chief Financial Officer of Asia Green
Agriculture Corp, a company formerly listed on the Over-the-
Counter Bulletin Board in the United States of America (stock
code: AGAC), from September 2012 to August 2015, the Chief
Finance Manager of Dukang Distillers Holdings Limited, a company
listed on Singapore Exchange (stock code: GJ8.SI) and Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation (stock code: 911616.TW), from May
2010 to March 2012 and the Chief Financial Officer of United
Food Holdings Limited, a company listed on Singapore Exchange
(stock code: AZR.SI), from September 2002 to April 2010.

Mr. Huang Xin (Mr. Huang”), aged 35, joined the Company
on 15 November 2016. He holds a master’'s degree in laws from
Peking University. He has worked in United Securities Limited,
HongYuan Securities Co., Limited and Credit Suisse Founder
Securities Limited and engaged in investment banking business. He
is currently a director of F /85 eEREB (DB A S (Rayspower
New Energy Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on National Equities
Exchange and Quotations (NEEQ: 430065), the director and
general manager of It REHEBHERZRBEREE LA (Beijing
Jingyixhihui education technology Co.*) and #* &4 2 RiE&EIE
APR A A (Gonggingcheng Xingchen Investment Co.") and member
of investment committee of AFE L (EM)ILEERER A A
(Suzhou Jiuitailanshan Investment Co.").
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Report of the Directors
BEEERE

The Directors hereby present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with its registered office at P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and its principal place of
business at Suites 1801-1803, 18/F., Everbright Centre, 108
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company and, through
its subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the businesses of (i)
the provision of integrated smart loT solutions to enterprise
customers; (ii) human-machine interactive devices; (iii) intelligent
documentation service; (iv) securities investment; and (v) money
lending.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 7 to 21 of this report. This discussion forms part
of this directors’ report.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

For environmental policies and performance, compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations, and a description of relationships
with key stakeholders, please refer to the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report” which will be available on the websites
of the Company and Stock Exchange.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant
impact on the businesses and operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant
assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a
caring environment to employees and emphasise the personal
development of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with our customers and
suppliers. The Group aims to continue providing quality products
and services to our customers and establishing co-operation
strategy with our suppliers.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the Year is as follows:

Report of the Directors
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FETHEEES
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AEEHEHE TEEESAE
The largest customer/supplier BARFE/HHER 10% 11%
Five largest customers/suppliers in ARER /HEREE
aggregate 20% 21%

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group at the date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 250.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group did not make any charitable donations.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the Year are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company had repurchased its own shares
from the market in total of 129,570,000 shares at an aggregate
consideration (before transaction costs and expenses) of HK$21.3
million. Having considered the Group’s cash reserves, the Directors
believe the share repurchases would optimise capital structure of
the Company and recognise value to its shareholders. At the end
of the Year, 125,810,000 repurchased shares had been cancelled
and the total number of issued shares of the Company was
reduced to 11,022,580,530 shares and the issued share capital
was HK$11,023,000 (2017: HK$11,148,000).
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Particulars of the repurchases are as follows:
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Number Purchase price per share Aggregate

of shares BREEE price

2018 repurchased Highest Lowest paid
—E-N\F BERMEE EafE BIEE E4EE
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)

(&) (A7) (F7T)

September LA 9,300,000 0.210 0.187 1,856,530
October +A 76,520,000 0.219 0.128 13,675,180
November +—A 39,990,000 0.145 0.129 5,470,850
December +=A 3,760,000 0.099 0.069 300,660
129,570,000 21,303,220

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the listed
securities of the Company during the Year.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTION, WARRANTS
OR OTHER SIMILAR RIGHTS

Details of movements in share option of the Company are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the convertible bonds issued during the Year or
subsisting at the end of the Year are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Articles of Association and the laws in the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer shares on a pro rata basis to
its existing shareholders.

B EXFTIREESN  AARIKEEMMER
ARAFEHMERE  BOXHEARAQFE
fa] EHRESF

ARRES  BRE  RREFBIH
b 4B SR RE
ARAFIEREZEFBFHNEAVERE
BsE31 o

RARFREETINANFEFEEFE TR
BEFFH BN GA M B RRMIFE29 -

BRBERE
ARAEBERAARASERREY &
RARBAREAIMERERREERH 2
BB 2 G -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k

29



30

Report of the Directors
BEEERE

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company during the Year are
set out in note 40(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
The surplus in distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$883,188,000
(2017: HK$3,439,279,000) .

FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 251 and
252 of the annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions are disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has entered into the following connected transactions
during the Year:

(a) Continuing Connected Transactions

(i)  On 24 January 2018, the Company and Fujian Start
entered into the master agreement, in relation to (1)
the lease of office premises; and (2) the purchase
of products and services by the Group from the
Fujian Start and its subsidiaries, with effect from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2018. (the “Master
Agreement”).

Details of the Master Agreement was set out in the

Company’s announcement dated 24 January 2018.

Accordingly, the Company set the annual cap for the
aggregate amount under the Master Agreement at
approximately HK$29,902,000 for the Year.
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(i)

The transactions under the Master Agreement were
subject to the reporting, announcement and annual
review requirements, but were exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

During the Year, the annual aggregate rents
of approximately RMB3,508,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$4,160,000) and annual aggregate
purchase of products and services of approximately
RMB2,611,000) (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,097,000) were paid under the Master Agreement.

On 2 May 2018, FSCE and ZYIT R FEFREA
8 A 7 (Shenzhen Eastaeon Technology Co., Ltd"
(“Eastaeon”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fujian
Start, entered into a supply agreement, pursuant to
which FSCE as the supplier has agreed to supply the
All-in-One Thin Client Computer (— &1k &%= F #)
products and related services to Eastaeon for a term
with effect from the supply agreement to 31 December
2018 (the “Supply Agreement”).

Details of the Supply Agreement were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 2 May 2018.

The proposed annual cap for the transactions
contemplated under the Supply Agreement for the Year
to be approximately HK$18,600,000.

The transactions under the Supply Agreement and
the proposed annual cap for the Year were subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements only and were exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year, no All-in-One Thin Client Computer
product has been sold and no related service has been
provided to Eastaeon under the Supply Agreement.
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(b) Connected Transaction

(c)

The Group did not have any connected transaction during
the Year.

Annual review of the continuing connected
Transactions

In accordance with Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive directors had reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions (the “2018 Continuing
Connected Transactions”) which was subsisting during the
year and confirmed that the 2018 Continuing Connected
Transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the 2018 Continuing Connected Transactions on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s 2018 Continuing Connected Transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the 2018 Continuing Connected
Transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the material related party
transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year constituted discloseable
non-exempted connected transaction or non-exempted
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above material related party transactions
constituted connected transaction as defined in the Listing Rules,
the Company had complied with the relevant requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Yang Xiaoying (“Ms. Yang"”)
(resigned on 17 July 2018)

Mr. Tsang To

Mr. Yip Denis Shing Fai (resigned on 10 January 2019)

Mr. Yuan Wenxin (appointed on 10 January 2018 and resigned on
10 January 2019)

Mr. Bai Xuefei (“Mr. Bai”)
(appointed on 1 June 2018 and resigned on 17 July 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Xiaoman
Mr. Chin Hon Siang
Mr. Huang Xin

In accordance with Article 116 of the Article of Association of the
Company, Mr. Zhang and Mr. Huang will retire from office by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2018 had the
following interests in the shares of the Company, its holding
company, subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
at that date as recorded in the register of directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO:

(i) Long positions in shares of the Company

EERBAL

B EX PSS RN EERRAFRE

FEREBEZESHERANRQ R LEMRAK
RAETAR—FARRNHEECEEMERRIN)
MLk 2 RFEEHY o

BaK
WA F B4 T ST o T AE IR A 2 R 2 6
RAEMBEAHD EH 2 EBRTREH -

el

% R

EENROREARD 2EER AR

BRBREBEES MNP ERIEIS2HATFE L
E=ENESTTRABREMNARBELMZL
% R-ZT-NF+-A=+—H E8E
EZEERARA - HIERAR - HEAR
REMAEBEE(EERESRMNAEKRD) Z
PRy R BER A TS

(i) RELXIBRBHPZHR

Total
number % of the
Ordinary Derivative of shares Company'’s
shares shares held issued
(no. of (no. of (no. of share
Name of Directors Capacity shares) shares) shares) capital Note
g {ER AT
EBER TERR IRAD A% ERITRAE
EEnA 5% (RG2EE) (RG2EE) (RG>EE) A= A
Mr. Kwok Beneficial owner — 53,000,000 53,000,000 0.48% 1
LA ExEAA
Mr. Tsang Beneficial owner — 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.27% 2
b EnEAA
Note 1: These 53,000,000 shares are derived from the interest in BEET - 453,000,000 A% A% 15 74 B AN A &)
53,000,000 share options granted by the Company to Mr. Kwok & F 5B %% 4 2 53,000,000 19 B B 48
exercisable into 53,000,000 shares. 2 - BB AITE - e
#1HY 53,000,000 SRS
Note 2: These 30,000,000 shares are derived from the interest in fzE2 - 5% 30,000,000 % & 9 0T £ B A A A

& F & 5% 4 230,000,000 17 3 A% 1
2R BEAREARER LATTAE - W
#4EY 30,000,000 B AE 15 ©

30,000,000 share options granted by the Company to Mr. Tsang
exercisable into 30,000,000 shares.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below and note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, at no
time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other
body corporate, neither the Directors nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the
securities or debt securities of the Company or had exercised any
such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or holding companies
was a party to and in which any of the Company’s Directors or
members of its management had a material interest in, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, no Director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 2 June 2017
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide an opportunity for employees of the
Group to acquire an equity participation in the Company and
to encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.
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Under the Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant to the
Directors and employees of the Group and any other persons
who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. The maximum number of shares to be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of the passing of
the relevant ordinary resolution. If any option is to be granted to
connected person(s), it must be approved by independent non-
executive directors or independent shareholders as the case may
be. The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted to a specifically identified single grantee
under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue. Under the Share Option
Scheme, the options granted may be accepted by a participant
within 14 days from the date of such offer. A consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.
The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable
by the Directors, and commences after a vesting period of no
shorter than 12 months and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of offer of the share options.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of
the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant and the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

As at 31 December 2018, the executive Directors and employees of
the Group had the following interests in options to subscribe for
shares of the Company (market value per share at 31 December
2018 (last trading date in 2018) was HK$0.074) granted for HK$1
under the share option scheme of the Company. The options
are unlisted. Once vested, each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. Assuming
that all the options outstanding as at 31 December 2018 are
exercised, the Company will receive proceeds of approximately
HK$145,613,000.
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NumBer of share options

BREHE
As at Granted Forfeited As at
1 January during during 31 December
Category of participant Date of grant Exercise price 2018 the year the year 2018
W=5-N% RZg-N\F
SEEEN ]k kg -A-H EhRH E@h tZR=1-H
Executive Directors/former
Executive Director:
UTES/HUNES:
Mr. Tsang 30 March 2015 HK$0.247 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
ik ZE-RE-A1A 024787
14 July 2016 HK$0.52 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000
ZE-RECATOA 05257
30,000,000 — — 30,000,000
Mr. Kwok 30 March 2015 HK$0.247 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000
Pk ZE-RE-AS1A 0UTET
14 July 2016 HK$0.52 23,000,000 - - 23,000,000
ZE-NEEATEAR 05257
53,000,000 - - 53,000,000
Ms. Yang (Note) 30 March 2015 HK$0.247
et () ZE-REZACTA 0UTET 60,000,000 - (60,000,000) -
Employees in aggregate 30 March 2015 HK$0.247 286,863,900 - (165,863,900 121,000,000
Essst ZE-REZACTA 0UTET
14 Ju\y 2016 HK$0.52 240,500,000 - (74,700,000) 165,800,000
“E-RErATIE 05247
6 December 2016 HK$0.493 50,000,000 - (50,000,000) -
ZENETIARA 0493%T
577,363,000 - (290,563,900) 286,800,000
Total
&t 720,363,900 - 350,563,900 369,800,000
Note: Ms. Yang resigned as executive Director with effect from 17 July 2018 and the Mz BEAETE - E-N\FLATHHEEENTEER
share options granted to her were lapsed on the same date. % H%&%Z%HWEEAH AR -

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Br bt BN - RERNEMERE - AAFSE
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow ET—H BAE - WEABISERMME R ET*E%

subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors TiEﬂﬁZﬁF HEEFAHEBELRR
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or _JZT?EH,H\WE/X/\lﬁ“ZHxTﬁ_ﬂf%* FWEHX
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate. IE
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the following person (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) has interests or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the company, being
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital, as known
to the Company or recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO and in accordance with information

received by the Company.

TEREREMEALRESRAAEE
P

R-B—N\F+=A=+—8 BRAAR
AR AR K B DI 336 A E 2 B
AR S RIRR AR A TS 2 AR AT
A+ (RAAEFRBEITHABBRIIRA
AT RARRRAA R A 15 A A B B BT
BB 5% S b2 AR -

Number in shares
interested in or
deemed to be

interested % of voting right
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest (Long position) (Long position) Note
BEEZSHEA
BEREBZROEE EREEZADL
BRE®EE/ B8 5/ ERME (#8) (##8) fitax
Mr. King Interest in controlled corporation 6,733,523,350 61.09% 1
REH REEGER R
Mystery Idea Limited (“Mystery Beneficial owner 5,179,643,350 46.99%
Idea”)
Mystery Idea Limited ([ Mystery EREEA
Idea )
Ever Success Ventures Limited Beneficial owner 9,000,000 0.08%
("Ever Success”)
Ever Success Ventures Limited ERBEBA
([Ever Success|)
Better Joint Venture Limited Interest in controlled corporation 1,455,660,000 13.21% 2
("Better Joint Venture")
Better Joint Venture Limited REEGEB 2R
(T Better Joint Venture])
Beneficial owner 89,220,000 0.81% 2
EREEA
Carnival Interest in controlled corporation 1,455,660,000 13.21% 3
REE REEGEE 2 R
Swift Fortune Investments Limited Beneficial owner 1,455,660,000 13.21%
(“Swift Fortune”)
RERERRRA([#E]) ERBEEA
Mr. Wang Xu Interest in controlled corporation 1,201,600,000 10.90% 4
FgE REBHEE 2 Ew
State Frontier Limited Beneficial owner 1,201,600,000 10.90% 4

("State Frontier")

AERRAR(HE])

EafAA
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Number in shares
interested in or
deemed to be
interested % of voting right
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest (Long position) (Long position) Note
BERZABER
EEEZZROHE EREEZADL
BRREE/£8 5/ REtE (#8) (#8) (i3
Mr. Zhao Zhen Zhong Interest in controlled corporation 592,941,176 5.38% 5
ichirGabied RSB 2 B
Superb Fortune Limited Beneficial owner 592,941,176 5.38% 5
(“Superb Fortune”)
Superb Fortune Limited ERBEBA
([ Superb Fortune])
Guangzhou Yuexiu Holdings Limited ~ Security interest 1,000,000,000 9.07% 6
EMEEEEERAR kol §o
Ministry of Finance of the PRC Interest in controlled corporation 589,751,535 5.35% 7
o R B R EE 2
China Huarong Asset Interest in controlled corporation 589,751,535 5.35% 7
Management Co., Ltd.
TEEREEEERNAERAA IRREHER 2 i
China Huarong Overseas Investment  Interest in controlled corporation 589,751,535 5.35% 7
Holdings Co., Limited
REEREBIMERRAR R AEHEB 2 #a
Notes: FfsE :
(1) Mr. King is deemed to be interested in (i) 89,220,000 Shares held through (1) BREZLHAMHEEN SELEEBAROEB
Better Joint Venture; (ii) 5,179,643,350 Shares held through Mystery Idea; Better Joint Venture$F & 2 89,220,000 f& f& 15 :
(iii) 9,000,000 Shares held through Ever Success; and (iv) 1,455,660,000 (i) B Mystery ldea$s B 25,179,643,350% %

Shares held through Swift Fortune under the SFO. Each of Better Joint

7 (i) i3

i Ever Success$§A 29,000,000 %17

Venture, Mystery Idea and Ever Success are wholly-owned by Mr. King. Swift
Fortune is wholly-owned by Carnival, which in turn is indirectly owned as to

approximately 62.18% by Mr. King.

Better Joint Venture is interested in 89,220,000 Shares, and is deemed to be
interested in (i) 1,455,660,000 Shares held through Swift Fortune under the

SFO. Swift Fortune is wholly-owned by Carnival.

Carnival is deemed to be interested in 1,455,660,000 Shares held through

Swift Fortune under the SFO. Swift Fortune is wholly-owned by Carnival.

)

K (iv)iEidTEE454Ha 2 1,455,660,000 [ A% (h A
#E%5 © Better Joint Venture * Mystery Idea % Ever
Success EEHBRAERERE - FEBRFERE
A MBFEmSrEMBERAN62.18% i -

iR % & 5 & 81 & 1§ i - Better Joint Venture
89,220,000 fR & A R HE B RS - WHAR AR ()iERB
R H 2 1,455,660,000 A0 R A HEZS - 1
BEHRFERERA -

REEHFEPEGRD  ZFERERIRBERRERS

H.21,455,660,000 [l fp R #E A iz - ¥ H=
FER2EES -
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Mr. Wang Xu is deemed to be interested in 1,201,600,000 Shares held
through State Frontier under the SFO. State Frontier is wholly-owned by Mr.
Wang Xu.

Mr. Zhao Zhen Zhong is deemed to be interested in 592,941,176 Shares held
through Superb Fortune under the SFO. Superb Fortune is wholly-owned by
Mr. Zhao Zhen Zhong.

These security interests are held by Yue Xiu Investment Consultants Limited,
which is in turn wholly-owned by Yue Xiu Securities Holdings Limited, which
is in turn wholly-owned by Yue Xiu Exterprises (Holdings) Limited, which is
wholly-owned by Guangzhou Yuexiu Holdings Limited.

Brilliant Nexus Limited (“Brilliant Nexus”) is interested in 60,400,000 Shares.
Brilliant Nexus is wholly-owned by China Huarong Overseas Investment
Holdings Co., Limited (“Huarong Overseas”). These underlying shares
represent a maximum of 529,351,535 new Shares that may be issued upon
full conversion of the convertible bonds which are owned by Kingdom
Harvest Limited (“Kingdom Harvest”). Kingdom Harvest is wholly-owned by
Huarong Overseas. Huarong Overseas is wholly-owned by Huarong Huagiao
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Huarong Huaqiao”). Huarong Huagiao is
owned as to 51% by Huarong Zhiyuan Investment Management Co., Ltd.
(“Huarong Zhiyuan”) and as to 40% by Guangdong Jinfeng Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangdong Jinfeng”). Huarong Zhiyuan is wholly-owned by China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“Huarong AM"), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 02799.HK).
Huarong AM is owned as to approximately 67.75% by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC (the “MOF"). Guangdong Jinfeng is wholly-owned by Hong Kong
Jinfeng Group Co., Ltd. (“"Hong Kong Jinfeng”), which is in turn wholly-
owned by Mr. Sun Siu Kit (“Mr. Sun”). Each of Huarong Overseas, Huarong
Huagiao, Huarong Zhiyuan, Guangdong Jinfeng, Huarong AM, the MOF, Hong
Kong Jinfeng and Mr. Sun are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which
Brilliant Nexus and Kingdom Harvest are interested in under the SFO.

All interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31

December 2018, no short positions were recorded in the Disclosure

of Interests Register.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors

were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the

Director and chief executives of the Company) who had, or were

deemed or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any

Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in Disclosure of Interests

Register or otherwise notified to the Company.
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(7) Brilliant Nexus Limited ([ Brilliant Nexus J )/ 60,400,000
f&R% 15 4 A #E 25 e Brilliant Nexus B3 0 B gb)8
IMEERIRERAR([ /MBI )2 EWRE - 25
FARAR% (5 #5 Kingdom Harvest Limited ([Kingdom
Harvest|) % & 2 7 #2 [R (& % 18 & BU s R 05 7]
8E ¥ 1T 2 fx % 529,351,535 f% #7 % 19 ° Kingdom
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to
58.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event after the reporting period of
the Group are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year
were audited by Mazars CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Mazars CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong

29 March 2019
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The Company recognises that good governance standards
maintained throughout the Group serves as an effective risk
management mechanism for the Company. The Board is
committed to ensuring a high level of corporate governance
standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has adopted its own code on corporate governance
practices which incorporate all the code provision in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Company will continue to enhance
the corporate governance standards throughout the Group and
ensure further standards be put in place by reference to the
recommended best practices whenever suitable and appropriate.

Save as disclosed below, in the opinion of the Directors, the
Company has adopted and complied with the CG Code as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules during the Year.

(@) CG Code Provision A.2.1 stipulated that the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Since
Ms. Yang Xiaoying has stepped down from her role as the
Chief Executive Officer on 21 December 2017, the Company
does not have a designated position of Chief Executive
Officer until the appointment of Mr. Bai Xuefei as the Chief
Executive Officer on 1 June 2018. Subsequently, Mr. Bai
Xuefei resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 17 July
2018. Since then the Company did not have a designated
position of Chief Executive Officer. The daily operation and
management of the Company is monitored by the executive
Directors. Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2018,
on 10 January 2019, Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai Leung, an
executive Director and the existing executive president of the
Company, has been re-designated as an executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board
will keep reviewing its current structure and the need of
appointment of a suitable candidate to perform the role of
Chairman.
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(b) CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulated that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and be
subject to re-election. The Company has not fixed the term
of appointment for non-executive directors, which constitutes
a deviation from Code Provision of A.4.1. However, all
non-executive directors are also subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company pursuant to Article 116 in the Articles of
Association of the Company.

() CG Code A.6.7 stipulated that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the view of shareholders. Due to other pre-arranged business
commitments which must be attended by the Directors, Ms.
Yang Xiaoying and Mr. Huang Xin were not able to attend
the general meeting of the Company on 27 June 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
Conduct on Share Dealings

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities
transactions and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). The terms of Code of Conduct are no less exacting than
the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct
applies to all the relevant persons as defined therein. Specific
enquiry has been made of all Directors of the Company who
have confirmed in writing of their compliance with the required
standards set out in the Code of Conduct during the year under
review.
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CORPORATE MANAGEMENT
Board of Directors
Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board is comprised of 5 members
including 2 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive
Directors. The biographical details are set out on pages 22 to
25 of this report. The executive Directors are responsible for
managing the Group’s business, including business development,
corporate strategies and company policies. The independent non-
executive Directors endeavor to assist the Board to maintain high
standards of financial and other mandatory reporting standards as
well as providing adequate checks and balance for safeguarding
the interest of shareholders and the Company as a whole.

Independent Non-executive Directors

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the number of
independent non-executive Directors at all times exceeded one-
third of the Board membership. Pursuant to the Listing Rules,
the Company has received written confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence to
the Company, and the Company considered each of them is
independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. None of the
existing independent non-executive Directors of the Company is
appointed for a specific term which constitutes a deviation from
code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.

However, one-third of the Directors of the Company (both
executive and independent non-executive) are subject to
retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting under the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are in line to those of
the CG Code. The Board is comprised of professionally qualified
and diversified individuals.
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Directors’ Training

All Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as a
director, and of the conduct and business activities of the
Company. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training for its Directors. All directors, namely Mr. Kwok
Kenneth Wai Lung, Mr. Tsang To, Mr. Yip Denis Shing Fai, Mr.
Yuan Wenxin, Mr. Zhang Xiaoman, Mr. Chin Hon Siang and Mr.
Huang Xin confirmed that they had participated in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills or had studied the reading materials relevant
to corporate governance and other regulatory requirements in
order to ensure that their contribution to the board remains
informed and relevant during the Year.

All Directors had provided the Company Secretary with their
training records for the year under review. All Directors are
encouraged to attend relevant training courses and seminars that
may require keeping abreast with the latest changes in laws,
regulations and the business environment.

Board Process

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. In 2018, the Board held 4 scheduled
full board meetings. In addition, executive Board meetings are
convened when necessary to deal with day-to-day matters that
require the Board’'s prompt decision, and therefore usually only
executive directors attend. Individual attendance records on full
board meetings and committees meetings are set out on page
46 of this report. Directors who are considered having conflict of
interests or material interests in the proposed transactions or issues
to be discussed would not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and would abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions subject
to certain exceptions set out in the Articles of Association of the
Company. Any Director, Audit Committee member, Remuneration
Committee member and Nomination Committee member of
the Company may take independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company should they so wish.
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Board and Board Committee Attendance

The following table indicates the number of Board, Committee and
general meetings during the Year and the number of attendance
by each of the Directors:

EEAREEERR Y AR
FTAERESE HETEESLBIEAR
WAFEENBRTES Y HA RETEHER

S3 - PN

Number of meetings attended/held

HE/BTERAR
Remuneration Nomination

Name Board Audit Committee Committee Committee General
i3 13-4 ENZEE yHWzEg R#ZE% BRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung &% 4 9/9 N/A i B N/A TN B N/A i B N
Mr. Tsang To LELE 8/9 N/A i 33 N/A T 11
Mr. Yuan Wenxin (Note 1) R3O &4 (M 1) 5/6 N/A TR N/A TE R N/A T 17
Ms. Yang Xiaoying (Note 2)  #5EEi &+ (FizE2) 4/6 N/A @ N/A iR N/A iR 0/1
Mr. Bai Xuefei (Note 3) ASRAEE (i 3) 0/1 N/A @A N/A TiE N/A T 11
Mr. Yip Denis Shing Fai B ()

(Note 4) 8/9 N/A TiER N/A A N/A RN n
Independent Non-executive BIF#{TES

Directors
Mr. Zhang Xiaoman RNMEE 6/9 33 33 33 1/1
Mr. Chin Hon Siang BEEEE 8/9 33 33 33 17
Mr. Huang Xin EMEE 8/9 3/3 3/3 3/3 0/1
Notes: B3 -
1. Mr. Yuan Wenxin was appointed as an executive Director on 10 January 2018, 1. BEXODEAER-_ZE—N\E—A+BEZEANITE

6 Board meetings were held after his appointment. Subsequent to the year
ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Yuan Wenxin resigned on 10 January 2019.

2. Ms. Yang Xiaoying resigned on 17 July 2018, 6 Board meetings were held
before her resignation.

3. Mr. Bai Xuefei was appointed as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
on 1 June 2018 and resigned on 17 July 2018, 1 Board meeting was held

during his term.

4. Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Yip Denis Shing Fai
resigned on 10 January 2019.
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Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled
to have access to Board papers and related materials and has
unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external professional advice
if so required.

During the year, meetings of the Chairman and the independent
non-executive Directors without presence of the executive
Directors and the management were held and chaired by Mr.
Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung to discuss and review the performance
of the executive Directors and the management. This also includes
the adequacy of systems and controls in place to safeguard the
interests of the Group.

Directors’ Duties

The Board in charge of leadership and supervision on the Group's
affairs and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group. Each director has a duty to act in good faith and in the
best interests of the Company.

Matters that require decisions by the Board normally include but
not limited to overall Group strategies, major acquisitions and
disposals, annual and interim results, recommendation on the
appointment or reappointment of directors, and other significant
operational and financial matters. Directors are kept up-to-date by
monthly management information on a timely basis as well as on
major changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
financial statements and have them audited on an annual basis.
The Company has adopted the generally accepted accounting
standards in Hong Kong in preparing financial statements.
Reasonable and prudent judgment and estimates have been made.
The Group announces its financial results on a timely basis.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties including:

(a)

to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).

During the year, the Board reviewed the corporate governance

policy and practices of the Company.

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and

officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in

the discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors

and officers of the Company.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code Provision A2.1 provides that the role of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Since Ms. Yang Xiaoying has stepped
down from her role as the Chief Executive Officer on 21 December
2017, the Company does not have a designated position of Chief
Executive Officer until the appointment of Mr. Bai Xuefei as the
Chief Executive Officer on 1 June 2018. Subsequently, Mr. Bai
Xuefei resigned as the Chief Executive Officer on 17 July 2018.
Since then the Company did not have a designated position of
Chief Executive Officer.. The daily operation and management of
the Company is monitored by the executive Directors. Subsequent
to the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai
Leung, an executive Director and the existing executive president
of the Company, has been re-designated as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company on 10 January
2019. The Board will keep reviewing its current structure and the
need of appointment of a suitable candidate to perform the role
of Chairman.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established an Audit Committee, a Remuneration
Committee and a Nomination Committee with defined terms
of reference. Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are chaired by independent non-executive
Directors.

(@) Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee which
comprises of three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Chin Hon Siang, Mr. Zhang Xiaoman and Mr.
Huang Xin. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audit
findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and
has discussed auditing, internal control, risk management
and financial reporting matters (including the interim and
annual financial statements) with senior management and
the auditor. In addition, the Audit Committee has also
reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.
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The Audit Committee meet two times during the year to review

the Group’s annual and interim financial statements, review the

external auditor’s plan for the audit of the Group’s accounts,

review the internal control procedures and the financial reporting

systems of the Group and make recommendations with respect

to the appointment and reappointment of the auditor of the

Company.

(b)

(c)

Remuneration Committee

A Remuneration Committee has been established in
accordance with the requirements of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Zhang Xiaoman, Mr.
Chin Hon Siang and Mr. Huang Xin and one executive
Director, namely Mr. Tsang To. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and determination of
the remuneration policy and packages of the directors and
management executives. No director is involved in deciding
his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee meet one time during the
year to review the remuneration policies and remuneration
packages of the directors of the Company.

Nomination Committee

A Nomination Committee has been established in accordance
with the requirements of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Chin Hon Siang, Mr. Zhang Xiaoman
and Mr. Huang Xin. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and composition
of the Board, and select and make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of Directors and senior
management.
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The nomination process for executive director would in
general be tied to his or her ability to contribute through his
or her business acumen and strategic thinking process for the
business. As for an independent non-executive director, his
or her nominations are hinged on myriad of criteria whereby
he or she should possess the independence of mind.

The Nomination Committee meet two times during the
year to review the year to review the size, composition and
structure of the Board, assess the independence of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company, review
the suitability of the directors of the Company proposed for
re-election at the annual general meeting and approve the
nomination and appointment of the director, independent
non-executive director and chief executive officer of the
Company and recommend to the Board for approval.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the financial performance and
prospects of the Group in all the disclosures made to the
shareholders and the regulatory authorities.

Timely release of interim and annual results announcements
reflects the Board’s commitment to provide transparent and up-
todate disclosures of the Group’s performance.

The Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the financial
reporting process and the quality of the financial reporting of the
Group. The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the integrity
of the Group’s annual and interim financial statements. It also
reviews the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies and
the changes to these policies as well as ensuring these financial
statements comply with accounting standards and regulatory
requirements.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Company and the responsibilities of the external
auditor with in respect to financial reporting which are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 59 to 67.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, Mazars CPA
Limited, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$1,680,000
and HK$653,000 respectively. Fees for non-audit services, which
mainly consist of review of disclosure of financial information in
2018 interim report, agreed upon procedures in connection with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report and internal
audit function; and professional services in connection with certain
major transactions of HK$338,000, HK$165,000 and HK$150,000,
respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully
briefed on all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance
developments and that it has regard to them when making
decisions and would also facilitate induction and professional
development of directors. The Company Secretary is also directly
responsible for the Group’s compliance with the continuing
obligations of the Listing Rules, Codes on Takeovers and Mergers
and Share Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, Securities and
Futures Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Ms. Wong Yuk Ki (“Ms. Wong") was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 17 July 2018. She is responsible to
the Board for ensuring the board procedures are followed and
that the Board is briefed on legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments. Ms. Wong has confirmed that she had
received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for
the year ended 31 December 2018, in compliance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes the overall responsibility for the
establishment, maintenance, and review of an internal control
system that provides reasonable assurance of the reliability and
integrity of financial and operational information, effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the safeguarding of assets and the
compliance with laws and regulations. This system of internal
control is designed to manage rather than eliminate all risks of
failure where its goal is to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance regarding the achievement of organisational objectives.

The Board, through its Audit Committee and external auditor,
conducted review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system which covers all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance control.

The risk management contains the following processes, which
are connected to setting up targets, identification of risks, risk
prioritisation and assessment, risk owner appointment, review,
handling, reporting, follow-up, monitoring and reacting to
identified risks.

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by an internal
audit team, which reports directly to the Board and Audit
Committee.

With the adoption of a risk-based approach, the internal audit
team takes the lead to evaluate the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group by reviewing all its major operations
on a cyclical basis. The audit reviews cover all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls. Results
of the audit reviews in the form of internal audit reports are
submitted to the members of the Audit Committee for discussion
at the Audit Committee meetings. The internal audit reports are
also followed up by the internal audit team to ensure that findings
previously identified have been properly resolved.
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The Board also engaged an external professional firm to conduct
the annual review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems for the Year. The Group has
properly followed all recommendations, and ensures these
recommendations will be implemented within a reasonable time.

The Company regulates the handling and propagation of inside
information according to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Futures Commission
in June 2012 and as indicated in the corporate responsibility policy
and various affiliate proceedings to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the propagation of such information
is efficiently and consistently made. The Company regularly
reminds the Directors and employees about the due compliance
with all policies regarding the inside information with the latest
regulatory updates.

The Board has conducted a review of the systems of risk
management and internal control for the Year to ensure the
effectiveness and adequacy of the systems. Such review shall
be conducted annually. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal systems of Company for the Year were
effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year
and at the place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting.
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Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company,
shareholders are requested to follow article 72 of the Articles
of Association of the Company to propose new resolutions at
the general meetings. Pursuant to article 72 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, general meetings shall be convened
on the written requisition of any two or more members of the
Company deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such
a principal office, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognized clearing
house (or its nominee(s)) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of three months from the date of
deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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If a shareholder, who is entitled to attend and vote at the relevant
general meeting, wishes to nominate a person (not being the
nominating shareholder) to stand for election as a Director, he or
she should give a notice to the Company Secretary in writing of
the intention to propose a person for election as a Director and
notice in writing by that person of his or her willingness to be so
elected, no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of
the relevant general meeting and no later than 7 days prior to the
date appointed for the relevant general meeting.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”)
on 29 March 2019, pursuant to which the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company to
allow shareholders to share the Company’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for future growth. The
recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to
the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final
dividend will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s financial results, the general
financial condition of the Group, the Group’s current and future
operations, the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and the relevant financial covenants, liquidity position
and capital requirement of the Group, surplus received from the
Company’s subsidiaries and any other factors that the Board deem
appropriate. The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject
to the requirements of the Listing Rules and all relevant applicable
laws, rules and regulations in the Cayman Islands, Hong Kong and
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The
Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy in promoting
investor relations and communication by maintaining meetings
with institutional shareholders, fund managers and analysts
through different means including meetings, presentations and
correspondence. In an effort to enhance communications with
shareholders and investors, the Company maintains a website
(www.rentiantech.com) to disseminate information relating to the
latest business developments and all Company announcements.
The Company regards the Annual General Meeting (the “AGM")
as an important event as it provides direct communication between
the Board and its shareholders. All shareholders of the Company
are given at least a minimum of 20 clear business days notice
of the date and venue of the AGM at which time the Directors
and Committee members are available to answer questions on
the business. The Company supports the CG Code’s principle to
encourage shareholder participation. The Board, according to
the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by
poll. The results of the Company voting will be announced on the
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

MB MAZARS

To the shareholders of
Rentian Technology Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rentian
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to 250, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

 BYBBGEE

Mazars CPA LIMITED
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42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

T BT B 18 IR 424
Tel TE7: (852) 2909 5555

Fax 9 3: (852) 2810 0032

Email 75 #: info@mazars.hk

Website g 1ik: www.mazars.hk
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that, as at 31 December 2018,
the Group has total current liabilities of approximately
HK$3,133,983,000 that would be due for repayment in the
coming twelve months. As at the same time, the Group had bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$335,913,000. These
indicate a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Materiality Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

follows:

Key Audit Matter
ARFEZBIR

Independent Auditor’s Report
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EERERE SR BRE S EER T

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERNBRREERRERSH I L

Impairment review of intangible assets and goodwill

HIEEERBEZ B ERE

Refer to notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements

R A EIRENE 128 13

As a result of the acquisitions of businesses in recent
years, the Group, among others, recognised certain
intangible assets and goodwill.

HRNTIFIREER - & EXERA(HEPEE)ETEY
BENEE -

The aggregate carrying amounts of the Group's
intangible assets and goodwill amounted to
HK$67,873,000 and HK$244,092,000 as at 31
December 2018 respectively.

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H EBEEEETEELZE
2 WRE45 9 51l /67,873,000 7 7T & 244,092,000 7T

The carrying amounts of intangible assets and goodwill
are significant to the consolidated financial statements.
The impairment review assessments of the intangible
assets and goodwill were performed at relevant cash
generating units (“CGUs") which involved significant
judgements and estimates about the future results of
the businesses.
BEENBEZRESRHGREMBRREEATE -
HEPEENESE 2R ERN 2 TEERBRSELEMN
T BERPRERHEGREEEBRRES 2 A5t -

Our procedures, among others, included:
EECREFBEETER

— Assessing the competency, capability, objectivity
and results of the work of independent professional
valuers that were appointed by the management
and assisted management to determine the
recoverable amounts of the relevant CGUs;
FEmEREEZERGYEREETHBRSEL
Bizrlio ey BIEXMGEMIERE B8
MR RIEER

—  Evaluating and challenging the appropriateness of
the model used by the management to calculate
the value-in-use ("VIU") of the relevant CGUs;
HEREREEEA SRR cELEUEREE

MEBELEREE

—  Evaluating and challenging the composition of the
Group's future cash flow forecasts in each CGU,
and the process by which they were drawn up,
including testing the underlying calculations and
comparing them to the latest approved budgets;
HELRER BEEERBHSEABUARKREN
TR AR A BE 3 JA K I E B B TRRI 0 3B AE - B 4808
AT E AR 2 BT ETEE ELLE

—  Evaluating the determination of the recoverable
amount of CGUEs;
FHER W EIR G EA BN 2 S FRET

—  Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the business and
industry; and
EREBEZFUEBRITENRAEREIEZREREH

EREE R

—  Challenging the the adequacy of sensitivity analysis.
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Key Audit Matter
HRBEZBR

How our audif addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERBRRERERRERSBHZ L

Fair value measurement on financial assets

BRI BEEELNFEAE

Refer to notes 16 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

R A ERENF 168 18

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had unlisted
equity securities and unlisted partnership investments
with carrying amounts of HK$395,166,000 and
HK$20,285,000 respectively. These financial instruments
do not have a quoted market price in an active market
(the “"Unquoted Investments”). Certain unlisted
equity securities and unlisted partnership investments
were classified as available-for-sale financial assets and
measured at cost less impairment in previous years.
Upon adoption of HKFRS 9, they were reclassified as
financial assets designated as at fair value through other
comprehensive income or financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss and measured at fair
value.

A _ZE-N\F+_A=+—HB  EXEFERELED
51 /% 395,166,000 7 7T % 20,285,000 /& 7T 2 7K _E AR A&
HFRALTERKRE - 25T ERERTIS I &R
TE(BBERE] - NBEEFE  ETARETRAES
RAETABRRESERABLEENBEE - WIEKAR
ERMEFE - RERAB BV ERELEREOHR - HE &
BENOBRBERNEMEEBARLATERE MBEE
FRERRIBRATEFBZUBEE  WIRATFEAE -

The Unquoted Investments are valued on a basis
considered most appropriate by the management and
independent professional valuers, depends on the nature
of the underlying business which has been invested in.
ERERERBEEEABYZXLEMRARBREEL
EEETHE  WORTARECEBEEME

The valuation of the Unquoted Investments is complex
and requires the application of significant judgement by
the management.

ERERE 2HERREN  BERERARREAHE -
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Our procedures, among others, included:

BEZREFBRERETRER

— Assessing the valuation methodology, the

competence, capability, objectivity and results of
the work of independent professional valuers that
were appointed by the management and assisted
the management to determine the fair values;
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BYEXMGERMZEERE BF 887 T8I
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— Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge and understanding of the
business and market; and
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—  Challenging the adequacy of sensitivity analysis.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EERBRREERRERSBHZ L

Assessment of expected credit loss (“ECL") on loan
receivables and trade receivables

HEREZRE S MR B = BEERZ 1

Refer to notes 2, 19, 20 and 37(b) to the consolidated
financial statements
RGeS IRANE2 - 19 - 20K 37(b)

In respect of ECL on loan receivables and trade receivables,
the difference between the previously reported carrying
amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the new carrying
amounts based on ECL as at 1 January 2018 has been
recognised in the opening retained profits, foreign
currency translation reserve and non-controlling interests.
HREWEFRESERKFIE RREEBEMS - BER
—EHFFT A=t -BIZEEZWRESHEE_ZT-N
F-—A-—AZEHEEBRBRZERERBMNREER - b
KRB B LR R TP R -

At end of each reporting period, where appropriate,
the Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the end of reporting
period and the date of initial recognition. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
MEBREHERE - BEEECREZBEATHBBYHER
EHERBEYV LR BB FHRNEE ZEDNR
EITHE  FHMEB VS ERUREERR A BBRELM -
BB EEREENEEAN  BRBEKLRNES
i ERINK AR SRS T AT A5 2 ATRE R B R

The assessment of ECL for loan receivables and trade
receivables involves significant management judgements
and estimates on the amount of ECL at the reporting date.
HEKERNREFHRYGIAEZ RREEBR T EINE
RNEREFE RN REB R AR EEEESRE bt -

Our procedures, among others, included:

BEZBRFEEENRR

—  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s credit
risk management and practices, and assessing
the Group’s ECL policy in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRS 9;

TR BRECEFERREERER  WRESHE
HBRELANFE R 2R ENE EXKEZRHBE
BEBBUR

— Evaluating management’s determination of
significant increase in credit risk and the basis for
classification of exposures into different categories;
TEEEEETEERRAEEMEE S BTRS
BZREERTBEE

—  Evaluating the estimation methodology of ECL;
and

AHERBEEER AR R

— Considering the adequacy of the Group's
disclosures in relation to credit risk and transitional
arrangements of HKFRS 9.
kR BEEEEBAEERBRREEMBERELENEI
R BETB I BREL RN -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Company’s 2018 annual report but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’'s
internal control.
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Independent Auditor's Report
BIYZEERE

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Hiu Fun
Practising Certificate number: P05709
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or/Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GREEEREMZEBARR

Year ended 31 December 2018 #t# —FE— \F+_-H=+—HI FF

2018 2017
—E-N\F 4 F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FET FAT
Revenue & 3(a) 1,134,936 1,531,414
Cost of sales HE A (924,459) (786,378)
Gross profit EX 210,477 745,036
Other income HAm g A 3(b) 38,540 52,766
Selling and distribution expenses SHE K5 HR X (128,191) (100,710)
General and administrative —MRITHAX
expenses (422,199) (376,055)
Changes in fair value of financial 7482 VPE?H"AEFTEJ‘EEEZ
assets at fair value through profit  BIEEZ AT EEH
or loss 18 (1,479,954) 284,739
(Loss) Profit from operation K& (ER)ER (1,781,327) 605,776
Finance costs BTG A AR 5(a) (205,698) (190,103)
Share of result of associates JEMhERE N Rl 2 EA — 1,473
Gain on deemed disposal of BRIEL S & QR 2 e
associates — 1,265
Changes in fair value of contingent JE{SSAREZ A EEE)
consideration payables 28 16,524 —
Changes in fair value of contingent FEWESAREZ AFEZF
consideration receivables — 186,757
Forfeiture of a deposit paid for R E —ERBARE
acquisition of a subsidiary Y ZEe (3,000) —
Impairment of intangible assets BV AERE 12 (59,419) —
Impairment of goodwill e RE 13 (897,375) (200,000)
Impairment of available-for-sale AHHEMBEERE
financial assets — (61,109)
(Loss) Profit before taxation BRE AT (B5 18 ) iR F 5 (2,930,295) 344,059
Taxation 1A 8 (16,381) (37,394)
(Loss) Profit for the year FR(EE)ERN (2,946,676) 306,665
Other comprehensive (loss) Hih2mE (8 IRA
income:
Item that will not be reclassified to & E#H I E 187K
profit or loss: IBH :
Changes in fair value of financial &8 FREM 2 @K AL
assets designated at fair value NHEREZUBEE
through other comprehensive 2N EEE
income (34,239) —
(34,239) —
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

COERPEMZEARARE

Year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 =F—/\#F+_-H= +—51£¢/§

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E F#&T FHEIT
Jtems that are or may be ol A FEE P E R 1R Ik
reclassitfied to profit or loss: ZHE -
Changes in fair value of 1 HEMBEE L
available-for-sale financial NEEES
assets — (61,109)
Reclassification to profit or loss B Hj’%ﬁﬁxﬁﬁ)nz@ﬁ
upon impairment of available- B EEERIR
for-sale financial assets = 61,109
Exchange differences arising BMEBINEBES 2
from translation of foreign ME X =R
operations (53,474) 105,155
Share of other comprehensive JE(REEE ARl 2 HE
income of associates A — 1,314
(53,474) 106,469
Other comprehensive (loss) FREMEE(EE) KA
income for the year (87,713) 106,469
Total comprehensive (loss) FRE2E(SE) AR
income for the year (3,034,389) 413,134
(Loss) Profit attributable to: (BR)ZFEBR :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZ SN (2,835,001) 202,628
Non-controlling interests FEfE R (111,675) 104,037
(2,946,676) 306,665
Total comprehensive (loss) 2EHER)WALERER !
income attributable to:
Owners of the Company PiN/N ﬁ%*ﬂ_}\ (2,909,675) 278,902
Non-controlling interests JEVER (124,714) 134,232
(3,034,389) 413,134
HK cents HK cents
Basic (loss) earnings per share SRER(ERE)ZEF 10 (25.49) 1.91
Diluted (loss) earnings per share SREE(EE)EF 10 (25.49) 1.89
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE BRI R &R |

At 31 December 2018 R =—ZFE—NE+=-H=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F ok
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE F#&xT FHEIT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE REE g 82,029 84,774
Intangible assets mEEE 12 67,873 155,403
Goodwill B 13 244,092 1,141,467
Available-for-sale financial assets At HEB & 2= 15 — 313,786
Financial assets designated BEREME2EmBR AR AF
at fair value through other BEREZVBEE
comprehensive income 16 233,261 —
Financial assets at fair value RBEIRIE A FEEE 28
through profit or loss BEE 18 20,285 —
Pledged bank deposits EERIRITIFR 21 1,808 1,210
Deferred tax assets RIETRIEE E 25 3,828 1,009
Deposits for acquisition of a WE—HENB ARz iEe
subsidiary — 4,500
653,176 1,702,149
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 17 201,835 157,319
Financial assets at fair value RERIRIE A T ERRE 2 M
through profit or loss BEE 18 2,262,871 3,297,511
Loan receivables W E 19 149,609 126,226
Trade and other receivables g5 N H M EI A 20 709,258 884,168
Income tax receivables FEW PSR 3,004 —
Pledged bank deposits EERIRITER 21 9,451 4,820
Bank balances and cash RITEFERRE 22 335,913 738,495
3,671,941 5,208,539
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REAM R FRIE 23 448,524 415,259
Income tax payables FEB PRI 42,504 30,686
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE 24 1,324,863 724,659
Promissory notes A EE 26 645,975 199,881
Convertible bonds AR E 29 672,117 13,621
3,133,983 1,384,106
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SEMBRRE

At 31 December 2018 R —F— )\ + A =+—HA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P 5T FET FET
Net current assets REBEEZFE 537,958 3,824,433
Total assets less current EEHERABAE
liabilities 1,191,134 5,526,582
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 24 121 279
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIE B E 25 4,609 26,528
Promissory notes AR ER 26 90,662 539,943
Contingent consideration payables [E{FskAR(E 28 — 16,713
Convertible bonds Al E S 29 = 635,541
95,392 1,219,004
NET ASSETS BEEFE 1,095,742 4,307,578
Capital and reserves R R #E
Share capital [N 30 11,022 11,148
Reserves (G 893,300 3,829,066
Equity attributable to owners of RAEHB ANER R
the Company 904,322 3,840,214
Non-controlling interests VRS = 191,420 467,364
TOTAL EQUITY RERE 1,095,742 4,307,578

These consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 250 were FES8ED0BEZEAMBREBBIUTALTR
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 TEEeN _E-hNWF=A-tLBEE2it

March 2019 and signed on its behalf by R R T B
Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung Tsang To
SRIEHE g%
Director and Chief Executive Officer Director
EERITHAEE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eqmty
RERREZZER

Year ended 31 December 2018 Bt F —E— \F1+ - HA=+—HIFF&F

At o theonner o e Company

FRNEDAEEA
Share- Convertiole ~ Foreign
based Capitl bonds ~ curtency Non-
Share  Treasury  Share  payment  Capial redemption  Fairvale  equity transletion  Other  Statutory  Retained controling~~ Total
aptal  hares premium resee resenereseneresene resee resene resene resene o profits Subdotdl inferestsequity
N ik
xfie L AR BR AR A%
Rh ERRR BRAR ARG GABE BERR  BR BRER  BR ARER fRER ROEN Mt BR BESE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000 HKS'000  HKS'O00 K000 HKS'000 HKSOO0 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TRt TR TR TAn T TR TR TR TR TR ThR TR TEr TR TEn
(Notea) ~ (Moteb)  (Notec)  (Noted) Motef)  Moteg)  (Moteh)  otel)
(Ha) (WD) (W (Watd) (K2 (hto)  (bh) ()
At T January 2017 AF-rE-R-H 10,148 — L1905 955 10482 1173 — 019 (65675 1420 2590 BAT06 3201403 232,089 3433492
Profitfor the year EREH - - - - - - - - - - — 20268 200608 104037 306,665
Other comprehensive (loss) ~ EAZHAE
income for the year 131000
ltems thatare or may be EYTEET B
redassifed toproft orloss: — AEZEE ¢
Changes in ai value of THEERRER D
aalable-for-sal fnancil Feze
assets - - - - - - (61,109 - - - - - (61,109 - (61,109
Rechssfiafon opofitr ~~ AELERHERRE
loss upon impairment of ERPLES
avalable-for-sale financal 24k
asets - - - - - - 61109 - - - - - 61,109 - 61,109
Echange difeencesaisng~ BESIERHES L
from transation of foreign EiEE
operations - - - - - - - — 7490 - - — 7490 30,195 105,155
Share of other comprehensive  ERBEEAF 2 K2
income of assodates [0 - - - - - - - - 13 - - - 13 - 13
Other comprehensive income ~ £REH2EHA
for the year - - - - - - - - 621 - - — 7604 3019 106,469
Total comprehensive income ~ ER2ENALE
for the year - - - - - - - - 16 - — 068 218902 13423 413134
Tranfer g - - - - - - - - - - P - - -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 g@i#; —NE+=ZA=

At o tecnner o e Company

ERRALTREA
Share- Convertiole ~ Foreign
based Capitl bonds ~ curtency Non-
Share  Treasury  Shere  payment  Capial redemption  Fairvale  equity trantion  Other  Statutory  Retained controlling ~~Total
aptal  hares premium resee resene resene fesene  fesee resenereseneresene o profits Subdotdl  inferestsequity
W 4R

itz ;ONYE B AR #ik
Wi EGR MR AR AMEE REGE BE BARE BB AOER UREE REEN 0 @ DRSE
HKSO00  HKE000  HKSO0D  HKPO00  HKSOD  HKPO00  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOD  HKSO00  HKFOOD  HKFO0D  HKSOO0  HKSO0D  HKS000
T TEn T AL AL TAL TRL TEL TR T AL AL TAL TAL AR

(Notea) ~ (Moteb)  (Notec)  (Noted) Motef)  Moteg)  (Moteh)  otel)
(Bika)  (Mikb) (Mo (Wk) (W) (o) (R (R
Transactions with owners — EEEARTLRR
Contrbutions and ditrbutions —~ F£RAF
ksue of newshares retof  EHRIEHRER)
£Xpenses 1,000 — 350,009 - - - - - - - - — 351,009 — 351,009
Recogniton o equity FiTahEs
component of convertble ¥a
bonds - - - - - - - 93 - - - - 93 - 93
Equity-setled share-based Jhfeat u,ﬁ-L Rz
payments LRE - - - 09488 - - - - - - - - 19488 - 948
Share options fofeted duing R ZEREE
the year - - - (e - - - - - - - 4% - - -
1,000 — 30009 15332 - - - 93 - - — 14156 381430 - %1430

Changes inounershp inteests ~ #EEEE2S
Non-controling inerests JENBLAfEY,

aisng fomacquistionof -~ AR ER

hsidiares _ _ - — _ - - - - - - - — 109869 109,869
Caplel mectons fromnon- KRB -5

controling shareholdrs REMBLAEE

in & non-wholly owned
subsidiary - - - - - - - - - 656 - — 6% 23449 30015
Acauistion of addition nterest 3£ EHEBAT
in non-uhally onned Al
sbsidares without change )
in control - - - - - - - - - (859 - — (28529 (16,300) (44.829)
Acquiton of addton interest ~ SLATIREEERES
innon-uholl owned 2EIRLAZ
subsidares nrelaton o i
compensation from profi
QUarantee - - - - - - - - - iy} - - 42 (15979 (15,533
- - - - - - - - - (s - — s 08 7952
Totaltransactions with SERAETORS
owners g 1,000 — 30009 1533 - - - 933 - (s — 14156 359909 101,043 460952
At 31 December 2017 H28-tE12f
zt-A 11,148 — 342766 109897 10482 1173 — B0 10599 (42943 11661 562419 3840214 467364 4307578
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eqmty
RERREZZER

Year ended 31 December 2018 # 2 —F— NF+ _-_H=+—HILFZ

Atrbutaletothe owners 6f the Company

SARAATESA
Share- Falvlue ~ Converttle ~~ Forei Retaned
based Gpital— reseve— onds curengy proft Non-
Shae  Treasy  Share  payment Gl redempon  ronequty tanchfon  Other  Statutory (Accumuleted onroling~~ Total
aptl b premim rsene e resene  reding) rsene e reseme reseme Do) Sbotl  ntert equiy
i
HEf 8 TR
i BOGE B M R #28

B ERkR  RREE  REEE  MARE MERE 8B EMME B EMEE  nE (B N B hEE
BRSO RSO0 RSP0 BKSOOD HKSOOD BKSO0 HKSO00  HKSO0  HKSO KOO KOO HRSODD BRSO BKSOD RSO0
o O th th Ot th Ot th th T fh W th th R fE
Moe)  Moted)  Moied)  Moted Moo (otee)  (te)  Ooteg)  (loted)  (Notel)
) B B ORo B (R 06 (R BN ()

At anuary 201 ety seed)

11,168 - o N 1w - B 059 (M) e S 3M0 I 43058
Changes  accountin pocson
atooton o Hong Kong iranc
Renorting Standad 3 ote ) - - - - - - 0m - (414) - - () s G o)
At anuary 201 resee)
11,148 SN 1 1 1 11 A1 1 1 1 T 1Y A 91
Los for the e i - - - - - - - - - - — (00 Q00 (1067 (246875)
Otercompreenshe osforthe~~ EAEH2EER
Jear
Femsthat il ot b s o
pioftor s
Changes i vl o ity
Isrmens esgrtedas et fi
Vet through ot compefense a0TERY
e - - - - - - B - - - - - - B
- - - - - - B - - - - - - 3
Temstat e o ma b s o
roftorlgs:
Fichange dfences arsng o
tans\atmnofmfewunopemton - - - - - - - - (g - - - sy 3y (34
e 1 NN 11
Oterompehenielosforthe~— EAEHATRE
Jear - - - - - - B - () - - 1111 112 I
Tot cmpehensie loss for teyer  £A2EER4E = - = - - - - - — ) QS (T (o)

A
e

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

Trnsr - 5| (W) - - -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRER

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z =& — )\ +_-H=

Kbttt e o o e (ompany

SARAATESA
Share- Falrvlue ~ Converttle ~~ Forei Retened
based Gt reseve— onds curengy roft Non-
Shae  Treasy  Share  payment Gl redempon  on-equty tanchfon  Other  Statutory (Accumuleted onroling~~ Total
aptl b premim rsene e resene reding) rsene e resene reseme loses)  Subotl  ntert equiy
i
HEf 8 TR
i #O(fEE B M R A2
Bt GERR RBEE GRE BAGE REME 0B RERE B RMRE MR (RMER M BEME
BRSO0  BKSOOD  HKSUO  RKSOOD BRSOOD XSO0 BKSODD SO0 BKSOOD HKSOD RSO0 HKSOND SO0 HKSOD RSO
o ot Ot O th O th O th Ot o th o th th Ot O th fh th O th
Moe)  oed  Noed)  (oed  Noed  Moee) Dok Doeg  oef) ()
) B W G0 B (R 06 (R &N (h
Transacons withovners ?@Wﬁh 1
Conrbutons and ditrbuions
Shaes epuchsed and canceled
(ote 30 () - (g - - 106 - - - - - (g o - ()
Shaesrepurchased oot ot anceld
fote 30 - L —] - - - - - - - - - -
Diiends pid o non-ontoling
shreholers - - - - - - - - - - - - - (%) (U595
Revrsl ofeqiy et rare e
Dayments - - - (o) - - - - - - - - (o) - )
Share tons ot durng ey - - - [ - - - - - - - N - - -
() 0 me - 106 - - - - - NMB PO (5% (%)
Changes i s st
Diposalsof st in st s
ihoutlos of contol e 34
- - - - - - - - - i - - oo 1
- - - - - - - - - i - - oo
Total transacions with owners SEEARAZRGER (15 () onm ) - 10§ - - - 3l - N PORD) (e (5
e & - - - - - - - - - - B - - -
At 3t December 018 H28-NErzhzr-A 1 (0 3nsm om0 19 (B9 M (0D () 1678 (2605 SWIm sl 0

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k

BE

jE’lE#f/xg

75



76

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Eqmty

RERREZSDR

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+_-H=+—HI FF

Notes:

(a) Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds or consideration
from issuance of the Company’s shares over their par value.

(b) The share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant date
of unexercised share options granted to and other share-based payment
transactions with employees of the Group and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy as set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(o) The capital reserve represents the remaining credit balance pursuant to the
Group's capital reorganisation that took place in prior years.

(d) The capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on repurchases and
cancellations of the Company’s shares.

(e) Fair value reserve (non-recycling) has been set up and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the changes of fair value
in the financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

(f) The convertible bonds equity reserve represents the equity component
(conversion right) of the convertible bonds issued as set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(9) The foreign currency translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign currency
translation as set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

(h) The other reserve has been set up to deal with the changes in ownership
interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control. The difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised in equity.

(i) In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"), it is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profits of the PRC subsidiaries (as reported in the respective
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance
with the PRC accounting regulations), after offsetting any prior years’
losses as determined under the PRC accounting standards, to the statutory
surplus reserve fund before distributing the net profit. If the accumulated
statutory reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective PRC
subsidiaries, the subsidiary is not required to make any further appropriation.

() The balance represents the amount of share capital attributable to the ordinary
shares of the Company repurchased but not cancelled by the Company. At
31 December 2018, 3,760,000 ordinary shares of the Company are kept as
treasury shares.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

CARERBE

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z=F—/\F+ - HA=+—FIFFE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E F#&xT FHEIT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES I
(Loss) Profit before taxation MR 7 A (E548 )5 T (2,930,295) 344,059
Amortisation expenses BT 12 31,635 29,729
Amortisation of deferred day-one — JEFE & B U251 8

gain 26 (11,070) (20,479)
Allowance for (Reversal of WORF & HIE (B EmE)

allowance) write down of

inventories 2,655 (5,283)
Changes in fair value of contingent EffEiAREZ

consideration payables N EZH) 28 (16,524) —
Changes in fair value of contingent JEUSLAR(E 2

consideration receivables N EZH) — (186,757)
Changes in fair value of financial ~ RIBIRIRIZAFERERIE 2

assets at fair value through profit BB EEZ A FEEZH

or loss 1,479,954 (284,739)
Depreciation expenses EMZ 11 23,420 19,381
(Reversal of) Equity-settled share-  (#[E]) LARERS 45 & ARRD S+

based payments 2 IE (9,681) 29,488
Exchange difference EH =% 19,968 3,351
Finance charges on obligations BEREGH B

under finance leases 10 14
Forfeiture of a deposit paid for R WUk U B — R B A A

acquisition of a subsidiary BXfzize 3,000 —
Gain on deemed disposal of BIELEHE QR 2 W

associates — (1,265)
Impairment of available-for-sales  AJ{ft Hi & 81 % & E Fi A

financial assets — 61,109
Impairment of goodwill HERE 13 897,375 200,000
Impairment of intangible assets EEEERE 12 59,419 —
Increase in loss allowance on trade & 5 [ Y 2k 18 58 48 #5158 1

receivables 37(b) 118,377 1,337
Increase in loss allowance on loan  F&E U & ZE 1B H 1L hN

receivables 37(b) 24,377 —
Interest expenses on convertible AR ES A B

bonds 29 70,094 66,457
Interest expenses on promissory AN EER BT

notes 26 53,067 76,462
Interest expenses on interest-bearing 5t B & E X 85 %

borrowings 82,527 47,170
Interest income from financial PR B B TS 2 R S A

institutions 3(b) (10,627) (13,243)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z—\F+-H=+—HILFZF

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E F#&xT FHEIT
Long-term employee benefits in BENEREB 2 RAEERT
respect of profit guarantee — 19,060
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME « BEMEEZEE
and equipment 300 1,124
Share of result of associates JEMREE N a2 A — (1,473)
Changes in working capital: LELEE
Financial assets at fair value RIBRIRIEAFEREY
through profit or loss MEEE (186,882) (487,640)
Inventories & (55,317) (22,050)
Loan receivables FEWER (48,777) (57,753)
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H b e GRIE 189 (115,301)
Trade and other payables B 5 R H A FER IR 32,030 (31,620)
Cash used in operations KEFTAR S (370,776) (328,862)
Income tax paid BATER (28,833) (19,684)
Net cash used in operating REEXBMARESFHE
activities (399,609) (348,546)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Refund from (Deposit for) g B8 — I B BB A R 2 IR 3R
acquisition of a subsidiary (&%) 1,500 (4,500)
(Increase) Decrease in pledged bank B E#MEITEZILINCHD)
deposits (5,229) 3,451
Interest income received from BUR B BB
financial institutions F B HBA 3(b) 10,627 13,243
Addition to intangible assets BAEEAE 12 (5,521) (9,474)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - HE LR E
plant and equipment Fr 13I8 321 27
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHEEVBEE
financial assets — (17,289)
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BERKE
equipment 11 (25,615) (50,525)
Settlement of profit guarantee EIRBLEE 28 (5.718) —
Net cash outflow on acquisition of UKEEMIE AR ZIR& R L F58
subsidiaries — (62,880)
Net cash used in investing RETBFARSFE
activities (29,635) (127,947)
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Consolidated Statement of Cas FIow

Year ended 31 December 2018 %éigg /1f/57L —A= iEltﬁE/?
2018 2017
—ZE-N\#F —tF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E F#&xT FHEIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEER
Capital injections from non- JEIERAR R IFE
controlling shareholders — 30,015
Dividends paid to non-controlling  [AIFff /& 2 &) FEHE A% A BRR 1+ 2
shareholders of subsidiaries % & (145,955)
New bank borrowings raised FIERITEE 32 243,206 17,274
New margin loan raised METRER 32 685,499 425,079
New other borrowings raised s EMmEE 32 141,000 250,000
Payment for acquisition of non- Wi JE IR i 2 2 R
controlling interests — (44,829)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWEEHAATEFIE Y
ownership interests in B AR AR
subsidiaries that does not result FriSskIE
in a loss of control 34 1,494 —
Proceeds from issue of new shares, ZE{THTIRFTSRIAE
net of expenses (EBRBE) = 351,009
Proceeds from issue of promissory — ZE17H# 5, Z #5508
notes 32 — 464,500
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE 32 (42,125) (10,326)
Repayment of margin loans EBEHFRER 32 (425,079) (36,041)
Repayment of obligations under BEREREED
finance leases 32 (154) (149)
Repayment of promissory notes EBRALEE 32 (226,000) (565,240)
Repurchase of shares A 30 (21,303) —
Interest expenses paid BENF B 32 (151,094) (127,158)
Net cash from financing METEBRSFEHR
activities 59,489 754,134
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
FERERER

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —FE—\F+-H=+—HIFZE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Lz F#&xT FHEIT

Net (decrease) increase in cash RERBEEZEYWCEL)

and cash equivalents IR (369,755) 277,641
Cash and cash equivalents at FNzREeRBESEEY

beginning of year 738,495 439,726
Effect on exchange rate changes on [EREEHH IR G NIBEEEY

cash and cash equivalents B (32,827) 21,128
Cash and cash equivalents at end FR2EHERREZEY -

of year, represented by bank UBRTHERREAR

balances and cash 335,913 738,495
Major of non-cash transactions EAFREXS
Issuance of promissory notes as BT R BIBIEREER

the subscription consideration of BRREATE

equity instruments designated as ~ EIEZAXAR LA Z

at fair value through profit or loss  REEHR(E 16 & 26 225,000 —
Issuance of convertible bonds Lﬁkxmﬂﬁ e BT A AR

subject to the satisfaction of (EE2

the profits guarantee — 14,000
Transfer of convertible bonds to REER TR E R E RS 23(b) &

other payables upon maturity Hth e /I 29(b) 14,000 —
Waiver of promissory notes and s TR B ERR AN ER

relevant interest payables for KRR F B

the compensation from profit

guarantee — (173,851)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %7 = ZF—/\F+_-H=

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Rentian Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) is Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") except for those subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), Renminbi (“RMB")
is the functional currency.

The address of the registered office, principal place of
business activities and particulars of the Company are set
out in the “Corporation Information” section of the annual
report for 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total current
liabilities of approximately HK$3,133,983,000 that would
be due for repayment in the coming twelve months. As at
the same date, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$335,913,000. Subsequent to the end of
the reporting period, the Group had significant net realised
loss on disposal and unrealised fair value loss on its financials
assets at fair value through profit or loss, resulting in a
significant decrease in the carrying amount of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss under current
assets. These conditions and events indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets and discharge
its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Management has prepared cash flow projections which cover
a period of fifteen months from 31 December 2018 and are
updated for the latest circumstances of the latest practicable
date. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have
reviewed the Group’s cash flow projections. The Directors
closely monitor the Group’s liquidity position and financial
performance and have initiated measures to improve the
Group’s cash flows. These measures include obtaining
additional financing from certain financial institutions in
Hong Kong. The Group has obtained letters of undertakings
from the controlling shareholder and certain companies
controlled by the controlling shareholder confirming that
they will provide financial support to the Group to meet its
present and future financial obligations as they fall due in
the next fifteen months.

In the opinion of the Directors, in light of the above, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to fulfill its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the coming
fifteen months from 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the
Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down the
value of assets to their recoverable amounts and to provide
for any further liabilities which might arise. The effect of
these adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted
in the 2017 consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the following new/revised HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group and effective for
the annual period beginning on 1 January 2018:

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

HK(IFRIC) —

Interpretation 22

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 2: Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting
for the effects of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the
measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; share-
based payment transactions with a net settlement feature for
withholding tax obligations; and a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-
settled.

The adoption of the amendments did not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 22: Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

This Interpretation provides guidance on determining “the
date of the transaction” for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising from
a transaction in which an entity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency.

The Interpretation clarifies that “the date of the transaction”
is the date on initial recognition of the non-monetary asset
or liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance of recognising the related item, the date of
the transaction for each payment or receipt should be
determined in this way.

The adoption of the Interpretation did not have any
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments

The following terms are used in these consolidated financial
statements:

] FVPL: fair value through profit or loss.

o FVOCI: fair value through other comprehensive income.

o Designated FVOCI: equity instruments designated at
FVOCI.

J Mandatory FVOCI: debt instruments measured at
FVOCI.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018. It introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, impairment for financial assets and hedge
accounting.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 9,
comparative information has not been restated and the
Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to financial
instruments that existed at 1 January 2018 (i.e. the date of
initial application), except as described below:

(a) The following assessments are made on the basis of
facts and circumstances that existed at the date of
initial application:

(i)  the determination of the business model within
which a financial asset is held;

(i) the designation of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL or, in case of financial assets, at
Designated FVOCI; and

(iii) the de-designation of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVPL.

The above resulting classification shall be applied
retrospectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FESFEHEE)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) BRI B R EREER ()
HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued) BB IR ERE I - MFETAE)
(b) If, at the date of initial application, determining (b) MR ¥11A FE A B Bi5T1E B ¥R 1# R
whether there has been a significant increase in credit WREERBEEBELNERN
risk since initial recognition would require undue HIBZKASEE N - BIERASERE
cost or effort, a loss allowance is recognised at an {A3kE B R IEES 2 Ba i E B
amount equal to lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL") Bz EEBRSEER BEZ2E6H@
at each reporting date until the financial instrument is MG TAKRILHERRIE - &I
derecognised unless that financial instrument has low TERHERPHARREERRK
credit risk at a reporting date. Gh e
() For investments in equity instruments that were (0 HMELREBEBSSFIENEION
measured at cost under HKAS 39, the instruments are ?ﬁﬁﬁi$a+§2ﬂle§lﬂ&§ﬁﬁa :
measured at fair value at the date of initial application. ZETHAZVRERBE AFE
FTE e
Differences between the previous carrying amounts under BEBEFERIEI9RIA N 2 BEIR
HKAS 39 and the current carrying amounts upon adoption of HaFEERNT B SRS ELE IR
HKFRS 9 are recognised directly in components of equity at 1 BrHRARASHE EZHOBEEN S
January 2018 as summarised below: —NF—A—BZREBDRER  F
BT
Fair value Foreign
reserve currency Non-
(non- translation Retained controlling Total
recycling) reserve profits ~ Sub-total interests equity
AFERE
(REH e
28) BRERE REEF M OEERER RESE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2018 R=Z-NF-A-H
Recognition of additional BREIMEEER
credit loss — (489) (11,876) (12,365) (7,538) (19,903)
Recognition of fair value gain ~ HRATFERE(FE)
(loss) 20,000 — (5,085) 14,915 — 14,915
Tax impact BgyE — 75 1,780 1,855 1,131 2,986
Increase (Decrease) Bmoas) 20,000 (414)  (15,181) 4,405 (6,407) (2,002)

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %7 = ZF—/\F+_-H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies and the transition approach are
set out below:

(i)  Classification and measurement of financial instruments

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no significant effect on
the classification and measurement of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities, except explained
below.

The following table reconciles the original measurement
categories and carrying amount under HKAS 39 to the
new measurement categories and carrying amount
under HKFRS 9 for each class of the Group's financial
assets as at 1 January 2018:

2.

e B %W

— Bt FE

FEGTERA)

SRR BT BB B RS ()
BB RS RAIE IS A TAGE)
BRBERHBRRBEN A2 EER

e
=

FEZEBFBRIT

M TRZDENFE

BRI ESN - SRNEER TS
HEENEIRHUAREMBEE
K BaEZ D ERGEYEER

B/ 48R
2

TRARBELSFTERE 395
ZREFHEDBRIRE S BEEE
REBMBREERE IR 2T
ENBMEESERAEER_-F
—N\E—-F-BEBVBEEET
ZER

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k

87



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE ‘

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. IEEHKEE)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued) BRI B R EREER ()
HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued) BB EIREERE I - BT AE)
(i)  Classification and measurement of financial instruments () BBIAEzofENt=(#E)
(Continued)
As at 1 January 2018 R=ZF—NF—H—H

Measurement category and
carrying amount under HKFRS 9

RETEMBHREENFE IR

ZAESEREESHE
Carrying
amount
Measurement category REEBGTHER under  Amortised  Designated
under HKAS 39 EI9RZHESE HKAS 39 cost Fvoc FVPL
RiE EER
SR Hth2®E RIBERIE
$39%2 B W AR BATE
RESE RE  ATVERE RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT TER TET
Loans and receivables B R bR ()
(note i)
Loan receivables e E S 126,226 126,226 — —
Trade receivables 2 5 EWFE 611,147 591,244 — —
Note receivables ENEE 2,720 2,720 — —
Deposits and other debtors 174 o E i JEUTiR % 105,388 105,388 — —
Pledged bank deposits BEHRITER 6,030 6,030 — —
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBELEZEY 738,495 738,495 — —
Available-for-sale financial A#HEHKEE
assets
Unlisted equity securities in - A&EBEINEMA L2 FL
a private limited company ABRAFIZFELTR
incorporated outside Hong AN % (M &Eii)
Kong (note ii) 247,500 — 267,500 —
Listed equity securities in BB LT 2 RAES
Hong Kong (note i) (B3I 48,997 — — 48,997
Unlisted equity securities REBIRINEM AL 2 AL
in a private partnership ANEBEEZIELT
incorporated outside Hong ~ FRARZEH(HizEiv)
Kong (note iv) 17,289 — — 12,204
Financial assets carried at REFIRR LT EEES
FVPL (note v) R EEE (M)
Equity securities listed in BB LT RAES
Hong Kong 2,561,686 — — 2,561,686
Equity securities listed BARIN L2 RAE S
outside Hong Kong 3,042 — — 3,042
Equity-linked notes BRERAER 282,785 — — 282,785
Wealth management WEERER  FLM
products, unlisted 449,998 — — 449,998
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
 BEMBEERME

Year ended 31 December 2018 ﬁ%i'%gf/(¢+:ﬁ5 — B FE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. FESHBER(E)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

(iy  Classification and measurement of financial instruments

AR RIERT B R MR E AR ()
BB & ERFE I BT AGE
iy BMBEITAZDBNFEGE)

(Continued)
Notes: FHsE -
(i) These items continue to be measured at amortised cost. (i) ZETE B EE IR AT E -

The Group has recognised additional loss allowances for trade
and other receivables of HK$19,903,000 under HKFRS 9,
which decreased retained profits by HK$10,096,000, foreign
currency translation reserve by HK$414,000 and non-controlling
interests by HK$6,407,000 and increased deferred tax assets by
HK$2,986,000 as at 1 January 2018.

(ii) The unlisted equity securities in a private limited company
incorporated outside Hong Kong that were previously classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and measured at cost
less accumulated impairment of HK$247,500,000 are now
classified as Designated FVOCI since, at the date of initial
application, these investments are neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies and are designated as
Designated FVOCI.

The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of HK$20,000,000 as at 1 January 2018 was recognised in fair
value reserves (non-recycling) on 1 January 2018.

(iii) The listed equity securities in Hong Kong that were previously
classified as available-for-sale financial assets amounted to
HK$48,997,000 are now classified as FVPL since, at the date of
initial application, these investments are not designated or not
eligible to be designated as Designated FVOCI.

(iv) The unlisted partnership investments that were previously
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and measured at
cost less accumulated impairment of HK$17,289,000 are now
classified as FVPL since, at the date of initial application, these
investments are not designated or not eligible to be designated
as Designated FVOCI.

The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of HK$5,085,000 as at 1 January 2018 was recognised in
retained profits on 1 January 2018.

(v) These items continue to be measured at fair value.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RZZE—-—N\F—A—H A£EEE
RIBEEBUBRELREIRRES
Ko H fth 8 U 55 B R SR BB SN R E S 18
19,903,000/ 7T + (R B & A « ShHE
R R T IR B s E 1 4 Bl A A
10,096,000 7T ~ 414,000 7T &
6,407,000 7T » HEIE T 1B & /&= Bl
712,986,000 % 7T ©

REBTINEMA L 2 FLABRAA
ZHEETMBRAFHFRESE RS
B B 78 N R A AN R R B RUE
247,500,000 8 At £ - MIBALA S
HAETREMEEARARAFER
B REARGERBBE  %E&
BREIERIEEE - IMIERBARTER
EBEHPZHARNE(BEMBR
HERFEIRER) RIEEREER
EMe2mEmBRARAFEER -

RZE—N\F—A—BzZikEemEHE
A {H 2 #%820,000,000% 7T B 7
—ZE-NE—F—BRAFEHRE
(TEFHLE)FHER -

REBEMZBRAZHFREDEAR
& 81 15 & E 48,997,000 78 T F
2 MBARSBEANBEIRZAF
BRIE  REARVIIEEABE - Z
FREVWIHFETNAERIEERIEE
REMEEBAZQATFERE -

FETEARBKRERESERAMHE
EMBEELERKAR R R E
17,289,000 7Lt £ - MRE R H
HARBRIREATERE  REAR
RUBERBE 2SR EWIFETE
HEERIEEAEENEMEEEA
BATERE -

RZF—\F—-A-RZRESER
A {E2 =% 5,085,000/ TER =
T—\F— A — HRMR B R g

e

ZEEBEBERNTEFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Classification and measurement of financial instruments (i)
(Continued)

The following table shows the effects of transition to
HKFRSs 9 and 15 on the carrying amounts of financial
assets under HKAS 39 based on the measurement
category under HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018:

FEEBEAE)
BRANTET, SR BB R ()
BB RELAE Y - MHTAR)

MBTRzZDBENFTEE)

TRETBEZBBMIBHREER
FOH M E IS EIZERE B I
WMEERFIFHETIR T —\F
—A—BZitEnEET2EES
FHERIF 39 IE N EERT
SR FE

Carrying
amount
under HKAS Carrying
39 as at amount under
31 December Remeasurement HKFRS 9
2017 on transition as at 1 January
to HKFRS 9 2018
R-B—tF R-B-NF
+=ZA=t+-AH BEZEENH —A-BRE
REFHESTER HERAEIR  BRHBREEN
FI9RZREEE ZEFE  FIRZRELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER
(Decrease)
Increase
(FD)&Em
Amortised cost B
Loan receivables RYRER 126,226 - 126,226
Trade receivables BHRYHIA 611,147 (19,903) 591,244
Note receivables ERER 2,720 - 2,720
Deposits and other debtors e REAMEKIRR 105,388 - 105,388
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 6,030 - 6,030
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 738,495 - 738,495
Designated FVOCI EERHA2ARARATLE
EE
Unlisted equity securities in a private  RESEIN AL ZFLA
limited company incorporated BRARZFELHRA
outside Hong Kong &5 247,500 20,000 267,500
FVPL RERRELFEEE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong &8 £ 2 IRARE# 48,997 - 48,997
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong &/ £ 2R AE 5 2,561,686 — 2,561,686
Equity securities listed outside Hong  E/&3EI ET 2 fRAE S
Kong 3,042 — 3,042
Equity-linked notes eSS IS 282,785 - 282,785
Wealth management products, MEEREM ¥FLm
unlisted 449,998 — 449,998
Unlisted partnership investments FLMABRE 17,289 (5,085) 12,204
5,201,303 (4,988) 5,196,315
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 # % —Z— )4~ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9: Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Credit loss

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
39 with the ECL model.
ongoing measurement of credit risk associated with

model in HKAS
The ECL model requires an

a financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs earlier
than under the “incurred loss”

HKAS 39.

accounting model in

The Group applies the ECL model to financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The following table reconciles the closing loss allowance
on trade and loan receivables determined in accordance
with HKAS 39 as at 31 December 2017 with the
opening loss allowance determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018:

2.

REUH®

— Bt ﬁf/xg

FEEIBEAE)
BRAHET S E T BRI SR ()

BB IREERE 93 -

(i)

BB ITAGE)
EEER

BAMBREERF IRUEME
EEREMRRE B ELSE
39MZICELEEIRIRE - B
FEBERRIERFE 8 R
EEMABZEERR Filia®
HEGTEREIORZ[CELE
Bl RUS ERRAEMEES
e

AEBEEAEMEEERRIGEE
RBHRAGFEZPMBEE -

TRAR-_E—tHF+-_A=1+—
RIRRELGENEIREE
Z B 5 YRR N R E SR R &
BREEN —_FT-\F-A—-B1K
REBUBMEERIEIREEZ

VBB T T 2 HIR -
HK$000
FHBT
Loss allowance at 31 December 2017 under WZZ—+F+-_A=+—BIKEBSE
HKAS 39 ﬁ%ﬁ‘iﬁu’* 39%)‘%2)25%5%&1% 22,478
Additional credit loss recognised at E‘JLLATIEE RZE-—NF—H—B#®
1 January 2018 on: RZBEIMZEERE :
— Trade receivables —& Z WA 19,903
Loss allowance at 1 January 2018 under RZZE—N\F— A —HERREBUE
HKFRS 9 WMEERIE I 2 BEEE 42,381
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces, among others, HKASs 18 and 11 which
specified the revenue recognition arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services and the accounting for construction
contracts respectively. HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for revenue recognition and certain costs from
contracts with customers within its scope. It also introduces
a cohesive set of disclosure requirements that would result
in an entity providing users of financial statements with
comprehensive information about the nature, amount, timing
and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity’s contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to apply the cumulative effect
transition method and recognised the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
components of equity at 1 January 2018 (i.e. the date of
initial application). Therefore, the comparative information
has not been restated for the effect of HKFRS 15.

In addition, the Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
only to contracts that were not completed at 1 January 2018
in accordance with the transitional provisions therein.

The adoption of this standard does not have a significant
impact on the measurement and recognition of revenue of
the Group.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except
for financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI, which are
measured at fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries as at
31 December each year. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as that
of the Company using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balance, transactions, income and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

2.

REUH®

— Bt ﬁf/xg

FESHBEE)

FTEEE
RAEVBEBRREEARRREMEH B
AEHEEFt+-_A=+t—HALZH
Bz - MBRARZPBHRRIINER
AREMERZzBEFEEREAQAER
—BZ g BRER -

SERRREZABES X5 WX
CEBARRERSMELREEEH
5 - ﬁ)% Al Z FARAREREGE

HEERREERMEHEALE A ILS
QE§°
FERESRERE 2ERAREREGE

MR R Z IR A RFHE A
FE25 - RIKRB AR Z IFERER S
BREAEER B THE ARNRNK
WiE A RBRERLL OIS REEAF
ZEERE  VFRAFESILRGE
BRI AMEREEB AR BHEEF
BOERCHE LI E - AEEES
REZRKEERE - FRIFRABM B RS
ERRERMN S —FFEEE - BTRIEM
BRIV E R IR A FERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Contingent consideration arising from business combination

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. The subsequent
accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a
liability is re-measured at subsequent reporting dates with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té*g —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interest (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the holding
company had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary
and any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are
accounted for as a financial asset, associate, joint venture or
others as appropriate from the date when control is lost.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position which is
presented within these notes, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment losses. The carrying amount of
the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on an
individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable amount.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

2.

REUH®

3 B1F EE

FEEIBEAE)

HEREE(E)

RIS EE(E)
BAREEARAKIBA R 212 B

HEBRRZ ) ERREZ DI FERNE
EEGIREAMBEECAREZRZEZA
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HERBEERBBEMARRZARE
BN - AT B R BRE ZEARE
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B GHAREEREE BRARSIER

BEE BMENF - A4 RRHMbIE
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MEBARESAEEITH ZEE -84
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control of those policies.

The Group’'s investments in associates are accounted for
under the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost and
adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition changes in
the Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment. Except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses
when the Group's share of losses of the investee equals or
exceeds the carrying amount of its interest in the investee,
which includes any long term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the investee.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is
measured as the excess of the cost of investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the acquired associate. Such goodwill is
included in interests in associates. On the other hand, any
excess of the Group’s share of its net fair value of identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of investment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as an income.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the investees, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is measured
at the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value
of any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or loss
on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
("CGUs"). An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree, if any, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
an income from bargain purchase.

Any resulting gain or loss arising from remeasuring the
previously held equity interests in the acquiree at the
acquisition date fair value is recognised in profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the year in which they are incurred.
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A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual values over their estimated useful life. Where
parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis and depreciated separately. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2.

TEEHEES)

ME BERREE)
WERERETE  URSWE  BE

BBEE A AR FHEEZEY
¥ BERE ﬁIEHZBmW%EEﬁ%
B WY BERREEE SIS
BRI AFEH - AIBEERKARE i%%
ENERDHANE - ERAZEEF
R

Buildings 5% e 5%
Leasehold improvement 20%-50% HEMEERE 20%-50%
Moulds 10%-30% RE 10%-30%
Plant and machinery 9% R Mo 23 9%
Furniture, fixture and equipment 18%-50% RE - HBENRE 18%-50%

Motor vehicles 18%-33%
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of their expected useful lives or the terms of the
leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

RE 18%-33%
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FRISE S BRI E -

WME - BERREEBENLERFREDR
SEERAZEETEEERREENE
R IEMER - RIEREEMEL 2T
fo] 22 /&5 (32 th & P 1S SR IBDF FE B 7R B IR
HERERAE)FFABEBRIEER
FEZERERK -

Intangible assets BREE
Trademarks Bz

Trademarks acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trademarks
that have an indefinite useful life are tested annually for
impairment or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may be
impaired and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Customer relationships, customer contracts, computer
software copyright and software patents

The customer relationships, customer contracts, computer
software copyright and software patents acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Amortisation is provided on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 2-10 years.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
are capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
to complete the development.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it does
not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to
the extent of its continuing involvement and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

EBEHHE(E)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

Financial instruments (Continued) BETARE)
Financial assets (Continued) BB EEE)
Recognition and derecognition (Continued) R R ETHER(E)

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are
initially measured at their transaction price.

MBEEETEBREIBEARELN D2
B 5 AR M B AT E S (0
FRERRRATFEIR) WEMEE
EERRBEZRINAER - EHES
JEYK AN H RERZ 5B E ©

Classification and measurement ’\*E&d‘i
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) RUETHERE - MBEES B R () IEH
measured at amortised cost; (ii) Mandatory FVOCI; (iii) ﬁﬁﬁ}i$§+; ( i) 58 i A H Ath 2 m AR

Designated FVOCI; or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host is
an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated from
the host. Instead, the entire hybird contract is assessed for
classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(ii) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # % —Z— )4~ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

2)

Mandatory FVOCI

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at fair
value. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method, impairment gains or losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the financial asset is
derecognised. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument
that is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies in other
comprehensive income. The classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is transferred
directly to accumulated profits or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL,
and financial assets resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement in a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at fair value,
with any resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or
loss, which does not include any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets. Dividend or interest
income is presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)  acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in
the near term;

(i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition;
or

(iii) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

2.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets held
for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL, and financial assets resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They
are carried at fair value, with any resultant gain and
loss recognised in profit or loss, which does not include
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
Dividend or interest income is presented separately
from fair value gain or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are (i) acquired or incurred principally for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near future; (ii) part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or (iii) derivatives
that are not financial guarantee contracts or not
designated and effective hedging instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

The Group classified its financial assets into one of the
following categories before 1 January 2018:

1)

Financial assets at FVPL

2)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if (i) the designation eliminate or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
liabilities or recognising gains or losses on a different
basis; or (ii) they are part of a group of financial
assets and/or financial liabilities that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) they contain embedded derivatives that
would need to be separately recorded.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables including loan receivables, trade
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are not held for trading.
They are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except where receivables are interest-
free loans and without any fixed repayment term or the
effect of discounting would be insignificant. In such
case, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition over
the period to maturity. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

3)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated at this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories of financial assets. They are measured
at fair value with changes in value recognised as a
separate component of equity until the assets are
sold, collected or otherwise disposed of, or until the
assets are determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in other
comprehensive income shall be reclassified to profit or
loss as a reclassification adjustment.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost
less impairment loss.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the

Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the

liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified

in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include contingent
consideration payables, trade and other payables, interest-
bearing borrowings, promissory notes and convertible
bonds. All financial liabilities, except for financial liabilities
at FVPL, are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss (including interest
expenses) recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or
loss is transferred directly to accumulated profits or losses.
Interest expenses are presented separately from fair value
gain or loss. Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, all the fair
value gain or loss of financial liabilities at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i)

(iii)

acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the
near term;

part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking on initial recognition; or

a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or
not a designated and effective hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition as at
FVPL only if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or
recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases;

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or

they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at FVPL, except where
the embedded derivatives do not significantly modify
the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivatives is prohibited.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that
is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as
separate derivatives when they meet the definition of a
derivative, their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host, and the hybrid contract
is not measured at FVPL.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under HKFRS 9

Applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECL on financial
assets that are measured at amortised cost (including loan
receivables, trade receivables, other receivables, pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) to which the
impairment requirements apply in accordance with HKFRS 9.
Except for the specific treatments as detailed below, at each
reporting date, the Group measures a loss allowance for a
financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the
credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at
an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls over the expected life of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

2.

REUH®

3 B1F EE

FESHBEE)

B TR(E)

BB BHREEREIRBTYHEELE
REMIEF 25 E

BT N\F—H—A®#EH
REBBRIBRBINKN AT EZHBEE
(BRIEEKREXR B5EKFKIE - Hit
EW KT EEFBITERUARRS
FESEEYRAGEEBER  BES
B EREERFIOFEAEERER
E o BRTXFlsc BFEREBIN  RE
BEAH MUBEEZEERBRAY
BERE ARG AEEBGRASERN
2HEHEEFB BTN BEE
ZEBEGER -MUKEEZEERRA
VG HER Y E AL - AEESIE
BER12EAEBREEBSEZSETE
MHEEZEBEE -

AAEEHEEEE
BHEEBEAEEBRZH R MERL
it EEBEUMBITAZEFFHA
ERE N R ZIRAEE -

HUBEEMS EEBEBARESYN
ENERBzENReREHEBIEK
BzHenaefz =5RE-

HEREEEEEAVMEIAERS
HRNMERIEBEEZENSHMER 2
TEHEEEE  m12@AEHREEEIE
FRTEHESRE AR 12E AN sEE A&
ZHBTAENSEHMER 22 HERH
EEBE 2

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k

i

109



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i)  past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors

(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair

value reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial
instrument that meets any of the following criteria:

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té*g —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Assessment of significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. In particular, the following information is taken into
account in the assessment: (i) the debtor’s failure to make
payments of principal or interest on the due dates; (i) an
actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);
(iii) an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and (iv) actual or expected
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse effect on the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(iy it has a low risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade and other receivables without a significant
financing components or otherwise for which the Group
applies the practical expedient not to account for the
significant financing components and operating and finance
lease receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events

that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash

flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a

financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

significant financial difficulties of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market for that financial
assets because of financial difficulties; and

the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)
Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject
to the write-off. The Group expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that
are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery is recognised in profit or loss.

Applicable before 1 January 2018

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether there is objective evidence that financial assets,
other than those at FVPL, are impaired. The impairment loss
of financial assets carried at amortised cost is measured as
the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flow discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Such
impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods through
profit or loss when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under HKFRS 9
(Continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

When an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired,
a cumulative loss comprising the difference between
its acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortisation) and current fair value, less any previously
recognised impairment loss in profit or loss, is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity instrument are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in fair value
of available-for-sale equity instrument after recognition
of impairment loss is recognised in equity. Reversal of
impairment loss of available-for-sale debt instruments are
reversed through profit or loss, if the increase in fair value
of the instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit
or loss.

For an available-for-sale financial asset that is carried at cost,
the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss shall not be reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

EBEHHE(E)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2.

Convertible bonds AR RES

The component of the convertible bonds that exhibits AMBRESEEBERB 2B NEGEE Y
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the BIARAKRERBEE  EPHBREITK
consolidated statement of financial position, net of issue 7K o

costs.

On the issue of the convertible bonds, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for a
similar bond that does not have a conversion option; and this
amount is carried as a long-term liability on the amortised
cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redemption.
The early redemption option components are measure at
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EXRATGEREEZBUESR 2T
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RHAE  EERERIRDEEER
Bk REBELOERORETEAZA
FERE - RERMRE - RFHEO#E

fair value at the issue date. In subsequent period, the early DERFERE  AFEEHENER
redemption option component is measure at fair value with IRFERR °

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion FISREERDEZE BRI ARRE

option that is recognised and included in the convertible
bonds equity reserve within shareholders’ equity, net of
issue costs. The value of the conversion option carried
in equity is not changed in subsequent years. When the
conversion option is exercised, the balance of the convertible
bonds equity reserve is transferred to share capital or other
appropriate reserve. When the conversion option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance remained in the
convertible bonds equity reserve is transferred to retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and equity TR TR IE B IR ER TR ES 2
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation EL&T”\* PEPTISRESEEZS
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when TEZHM pEEAHBKRESZARE
the instruments are first recognised. Transaction costs that LRI D o BITRAI R EEEBEZ
relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are allocated %%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁzﬁﬁ%?ﬁ\l PRI AEEERE

to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

Revenue recognition

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group’s rights to receive payment have been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Applicable from 1 January 2018

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The Group's revenue from the integrated smart internet-of-
things (“loT”) solutions (“loT solution”), human-machine
interactive devices ("HMID") and intelligent documentation
service ("IDS") businesses represents the sale of electronic,
printer, terminal and hardware products to enterprise
customers and the provision of information technology
related consultation services and printing outsourcing
services.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or a
service promised in a contract with a customer and identifies
as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the
customer either:

(a) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services) that
is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(a)

the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria

is met:

(a)

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 # % —Z— )4~ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sale of product is recognised at a point in time at which
the customer obtains the control of the promised asset,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title is passed.

Service income of consultation and printing outsourcing
services are recognised over time when services are rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation because
the method provides a faithful depiction of the Group’s
performance and reliable information is available to the
Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that
it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance
obligation. The Group applies the output method as services
completed to date over the life of the contract.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate
with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and its customer at contract
inception by reference to, where appropriate, the interest
rate implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate that
discounts the cash selling price of the goods or services
to the amount paid in advance or arrears), the prevailing
market interest rates, the Group's borrowing rates and other
relevant creditworthiness information of the customer of the
Group.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credited-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Applicable before 1 January 2018

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably and on the
following bases:

o Sale of products is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers
and the title is passed.

o Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.

o Realised gain or loss on financial assets at FVPL is
recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
gain or loss on financial assets at FVPL is recognised
to restate to their fair value at end of the reporting
period.

o Interest income from financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before
the Group transfers a good or service to the customer,
the contract is presented as a contract liability when the
payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
A receivable is the Group’s right to consideration that is
unconditional or only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. IEEHKEE)

Foreign currency translation IR E

Items included in the financial statements of each of the AEBESERB ZMBERRAMYIEB K
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the BEEREENMEZEELEREMA
primary economic environment in which the entity operates BB ([Theea¥ et 8 - REeMB®mE
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial AR RR 2N BB T2 - MkRIE
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), SEER  BRlgRBEAAZRELIY
which is the Company’s functional currency, and rounded to FA4L o

the nearest thousands unless stated otherwise.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the INER ZERABR %%‘EZE?’Z}@;@?%%
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at BEEE  ASEEZERHNILFE

the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and %%@;ﬁ%?\\%aﬂﬁzgﬂgééﬁﬁﬁ
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and EAZIIEWRZ REBERBRIRS E
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary R AEFBENRAFEY R IEEHEE
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are IH B M ELE 2 INENZE R EIBRIEEIR
recognised in profit or loss. Foreign exchange gains and R EMARE R G SR RES
losses resulting from the retranslation of non-monetary items HmEEENREERARGEREEBZIEE
carried at fair value are recognised in profit or loss except for MIEB mES - BIFEEEE P IRER
those arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in R e

respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
equity, in which cases, the gains or losses are also recognised
directly in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented and, where applicable, goodwill
and fair value adjustments on the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities arising on an acquisition of a
foreign operation which are to be treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation, are translated at the
closing rate at end of the reporting period;

o Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange rate;

o All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising from
a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a
separate component of equity;

o On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
the disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, a disposal involving the loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a partial
disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest is no
longer equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to the foreign
operation that is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the separate component of
equity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when
the gain or loss on disposal is recognised;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)

J On the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not recognised in profit or loss;

J On all other partial disposals, which includes partial
disposal of associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and, where
applicable, other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition, is
calculated using the weighted average cost method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period of the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té*g —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, interests in associates and
interests in subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use (“VIU”). In addition, the
Group tests its intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets that are not yet available for use
for impairment by estimating their recoverable amount on an
annual basis and whenever there is an indication that those
assets may be impaired. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest group of
assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as expense in profit or loss
immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as income in
profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. IEEHKEE)

Government grants BB

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where i B & B IR 8 & U 7 B I & 75
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received AFrAEME KLY AIAEBEEDERATE
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the EHR E@mSEAYEIR 91
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income ERGEERNTRAEBNZFEERE
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic WA DA EE IR IR B 2 AR o (4l
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where B REE  BIBAFEESAELERA
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a P/ HRAEBEBEERB B2
deferred income account/recognised as a deduction from W YR BBEE RN AFTHIEE
the carrying amount of the relevant asset and is released to R E AR AIBZRIR ©

profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset on a systematic basis.

Leases HE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms REEGRRERE R 2 BRI DR

of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards O ReES T ERBAZHAE ’é‘?’\*ﬁﬁ}t’aﬂ
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as EHE - TEEMBESENSEAKLEH
operating leases. g

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of RBERMEHERAEZEELRHEEEY
the Group at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets NP ESIKERENHRECBIEE R
and the present value of the minimum lease payments. RRAKEEE - HREBAZEES
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the Bt ABRE M BARARIERREHER
consolidated statement of financial position as finance lease o mEEREHEREATEED YE
obligation. Finance charges, which represent the difference EEATEZES RNEBHEESRRNE
between the total leasing commitments and the fair value BREIRME - UkBZ e HEES®
of the assets acquired, are charged to profit or loss over the BrEFEHEBX -

term of the term of the relevant lease so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit RiEgeHERN 2 HeNEBESH
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant NIABEHEBBRIRNER o

lease.

Lease incentives are recognised in profit or loss as an integral HEEENERRERATRAEERE
part of the net consideration agreed for the use of leased Frigp e 2 FREZ—&5D

asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.

Defined contribution plans

The Group, other than overseas and PRC subsidiaries,
operates Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF"”) schemes to
provide retirement benefits for its full time permanent
employees in Hong Kong. The obligations for contributions
to retirement benefit schemes are recognised as expenses
in profit or loss as incurred. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group with independent
trustees.

Pursuant to the law and regulations of the PRC, contributions
to the defined contribution retirement schemes for the
Group’s PRC staff are made to the relevant government
authorities in the PRC, which are calculated on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated
under the requirements in the PRC. These contributions are
recognised as expenses in profit or loss as incurred.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
payment under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is
the amount of expected future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their services in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calculated using the projected
unit credit method and discounted to its present value and
after deducting the fair value of any related assets, including
retirement scheme benefit. Re-measurements are recognised
in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Other long-term employee benefits: Contingent payments
under profit guarantee arrangements

The Group’s obligation in respect of contingent payments
is the amount of expected future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their services in the current and
prior periods under the profit guarantee arrangements.
The obligation is calculated using the projected unit
credit method and discounted to its present value. The
measurement takes into account various factors including
the expectation of attaining the earning targets. Re-
measurements are recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group's employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair
value of share options granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a reserve
within equity. The fair value is determined using the binomial
model, taking into account any market conditions and non-
vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled, ending on
the date on which the entitlement of relevant employees to
the award is no longer conditional on the satisfaction of any
non-market vesting conditions (“vesting date”). During the
vesting period, the number of share options that is expected
to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior periods is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, with a
corresponding adjustment to the reserve within equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill; or other asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
is not recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and
tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investment in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2. IEEHKEE)

Related parties BAEAL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the F'E BEALTREREERBEE L ALHE
Group. 8o
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is (@) EMALTHEEBUOFS LATF
related to the Group if that person: U BB ER B 7 PR e
() has control or joint control over the Group; (i) HEBAAREB ZEH L
VEHIRE

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) HAEBBEZEARFZ =k

(i) is a member of the key management personnel (i) AEREELAEBEIERA A
of the Group or of the holding company of the ZEEEEAR o
Group.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) (I EREUNFTA LA N EMEA - B/l
conditions applies: HREEFPrRE -

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEAEEBEER %8
same group (which means that each holding ZKERFI(ERMZERAT]
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is N EMNCIAEES =N B
related to the others). BEEERE) -

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy —HAERAEZ EREHME
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a NAlgEEAR(HE—EE
member of a group of which the other entity is a REFKEZEEZKNEZ
member). /N A = W/NST DI

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third (i) MEEBEEBHER -—F=H2
party. Y-S

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and (ivy —BEBRE=-FEELE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. ERA Mr—EBERAEZS

=HZHERT] o

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v ZERS BEBRRENG
the benefit of employees of either the Group or g MEXmABRNEEK
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is HEBHECERBZES -
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are MAEEX S BZt& - 8l
also related to the Group. BRZEXFTEAEEER

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi)
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii)
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
holding company of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (viii)
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the holding company
of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and

judgements are made by the management in the preparation

of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going basis
and are based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.

(i) Estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for trade and other receivables, and loan receivables
by using various inputs and assumptions including risk
of a default and expected loss rate. The estimation
involves high degree of uncertainty which is based
on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade and receivables,
and loan receivables. Details of the key assumption and
inputs used in estimating ECL are set out in note 37(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Allowance for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the condition of
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and
makes allowance for inventories that are identified
as obsolete, slow-moving or no longer recoverable or
suitable for use in production. The Group carries out
the inventory review on a product-by-product basis and
makes allowances by reference to the latest market
prices and current market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(i)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of investments and receivables

The Group assesses annually if investment in
subsidiaries and associates has suffered any impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 and follows the guidance
of HKFRS 9 in determining whether amounts due from
these entities are impaired. Details of the approach
are stated in the respective accounting policies. The
assessment requires an estimation of future cash flows,
including expected dividends, from the assets and the
selection of appropriate discount rates. Future changes
in financial performance and position of these entities
would affect the estimation of impairment loss and
cause the adjustments of their carrying amounts.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life are impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
VIU of the CGUs to which the goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful life are allocated.
Estimating the VIU requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Details of the estimates used to calculate the
recoverable amounts of goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful life are given in notes 13 and 12
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Based on the Group's assessment, amounts of
approximately HK$897,375,000 and HK$59,419,000
have been provided for the impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets respectively (2017: Impairment of
goodwill of HK$200,000,000).
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(i)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business, where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impair the income tax
and deferred tax provision in the year in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for
the withholding tax that would be payable on the
undistributed earnings of certain entities of the Group
in the PRC as those earnings are not expected to
be distributable in the foreseeable future. Details of
deferred tax liabilities are disclosed in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management reviews the residual value,
useful lives and depreciation method of property,
plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period, through careful consideration with regards to
expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(i)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment (Continued)

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group’s management has to assess whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amounts of the asset would be determined by
reference to the higher of VIU and fair value less costs
of disposal. VIU is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated
with estimations in the timing and magnitude of the
future cash flows and fair value less costs of disposal,
the estimated recoverable amount of the asset may be
different from its actual recoverable amount and profit
or loss could be affected by accuracy of the estimations.

Estimated useful life of customer relationships,
customer contracts, computer software copyrights and
software patents

The Group determines the estimated useful life and
related amortisation charge for customer relationships,
customer contracts, computer software copyrights
and software patents classified as intangible assets
with reference to the estimated period that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of customer relationships, customer contracts,
computer software copyrights and software patents.
The Group will assess annually and revise the useful
life of customer relationships, customer contracts,
computer software copyrights and software patents to
reflect the actual economic benefits derived from the
customer relationships, customer contracts, computer
software copyrights and software patents.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(i)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
directors of the Company have determined the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets designated at FVOCI or FVPL, promissory notes,
contingent consideration payables, convertible bonds,
share options granted and other employee benefits, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. The management of the Group will exercise
their judgements based on their experience to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the valuation model. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the assets/liabilities,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the
18, 26, 28, 29
and 31 to the consolidated financial statements provide

directors of the Company. Notes 16,

detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination
of those assets and liabilities.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(i)

Judgement
Control over Enterprise Development Holdings Limited

In April 2017, the Group acquired additional 24.01%
equity interests in Enterprise Development Holdings
Limited (“Enterprise Development”), a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Together with the additional
16.64% equity interests acquired, the Group held
40.65% equity interests in aggregate in Enterprise
Development and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “"ED Group”). Although the Company held less
than half of the ownership interests and voting rights
in Enterprise Development, the Group has considered
that it has control over Enterprise Development on a
de facto power basis after considering (i) the voting
rights held by the Group is relatively larger than other
investors; (ii) dispersion of shareholdings of other
investors in Enterprise Development; and (iii) relatively
low and passive participation of the other shareholders
at the shareholders’ meetings. Accordingly, the
financial results of Enterprise Development have been
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements of
the Company since April 2017.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(i)

Judgement (Continued)

Following the completion of placing of Enterprise
Development’s shares in June 2017, the Group’s equity
interests in Enterprise Development were diluted from
40.65% to 38.72%. Together with the additional
4.84% equity interests acquired after June 2017, the
Group held 43.56% equity interests in Enterprise
Development as at 31 December 2017. Mr. King
Pak Fu (“Mr. King”) (controlling shareholder of the
Company) undertook that he shall cast the voting
rights controlled by him in Enterprise Development
in the same manner and the same way as does the
Group in all shareholders’ meetings. As at 31 December
2017, Mr.
interests in Enterprise Development through his wholly-

King held approximately 14.76% equity

owned investment vehicles and therefore, together
with the voting rights held by Mr.
has 58.32% voting rights in aggregate in Enterprise

King, the Group

Development. Accordingly, the financial results of
Enterprise Development have been consolidated in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company as at
31 December 2017.

After the disposal of 0.57% equity interests held by
the Group during the reporting period, the Group held
42.99% equity interests in Enterprise Development,
together with the voting rights held by Mr. King of
approximately 14.43% equity interests in Enterprise
Development through his wholly-owned investment
the Group has 57.42% voting rights in

aggregate in Enterprise Development. Therefore, the

vehicles,

Group continues to consolidate the financial results of
Enterprise Development. Details of the equity interests
disposed during the year are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial

statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised

HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year, which

the Group has not early adopted.

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) —
Interpretation 23

2015-2017 Cycle !

Leases '

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments '
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Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee benefits '

Amendments to HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures '

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation '

Amendments to HKASs 1 Definition of Material 2
and 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business ?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts *

Amendments to HKFRS Sale or Contribution of Assets
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture °

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

The effective date to be determined
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Future changes in HKFRSs (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impacts of these amendments are expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.
As the Group has not completed its assessment, further
impacts may be identified in due course and will be taken
into consideration when determining whether to adopt
any of these new requirements before their effective date
and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 significantly changes, among others, the lessee
accounting by replacing the dual-model under HKAS 17
with a single model which requires a lessee to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the rights and
obligations created by all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. For
lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for these two types of leases
differently. HKFRS 16 also requires enhanced disclosures to
be provided by lessees and lessors.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which
are currently classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase
in both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss
over the period of the lease.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs (Continued)
HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

As disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, at 31 December 2018 the Group’s future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amounted to HK$36,158,000 for properties, which
is payable between 1 and 6 years after the reporting date.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and
hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases upon the
application of HKFRS 16. The combination of straight-
line depreciation of the right-of-use asset and the effective
interest rate applied to the lease liability will result in a
higher total charge to the profit or loss in the initial years of
the lease, and decreasing expenses during the latter part of
the lease term, but there is no impact on the total expenses
recognised over the lease term. The directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of HKFRS 16 would not have
significant impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group comparing HKAS 17 currently adopted by the
Group. In addition, the application of new requirements may
result changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure
as indicated above.

2.

 BAMBR

— Bt FE

FESHBEE)
EBVEREENZRREBE(F)
BB BHHEERE 165 - HE (&)
WMUNGRE SR FEIS TR - ©
ZE-N\FF+ZA=F+—H TEER
TRAIHEECEHETEBAME R R E
{KF & 7 £36,158,0008 T AR
WMEABMB—Z2NFAXIN - MFTE
B SRR/ EEAYBKEER
E16RTHECTEE - BAERE K5t
FEZEHERRTAEEAERARES
& BRIFZFHERB B BEREER
FloREARFEERIERARKERIE
HIMHE - BltERlmR - ERBEEZER
EMELERANAEGECERAIERE
ZENEEVBRFEREEERKRINR 2
LB WRDHEBRESS 2R
MEHNERAAER A BBELESY
2. RKARIEETES  BEAEER AT
RN BARERE17%  ERAES
RS ERE 16 TS ALER 28
BHRARKRAEEBRTE - I &
AT S LA ZFE - 2
PIRIEEEE -
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eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

R A A

3. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 3.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and other income by REBUE M EMBAIZ D EE 2 DT ¢
category:
2018 2017
—B-N\# —=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(a) Revenue W=
Revenue from contracts with BBMIEHRELERE 1552
customers within HKFRS 15 REEFFEA 2 INm
Sale of products I 2 o 788,430 918,243
Rendering of services RS 445,472 420,272
1,233,902 1,338,515
Revenue from other sources K@ﬁ@%?ﬁzqﬂlé
Dividend income from financial B MR IR - 18 B 12 7 B
assets at FVPL %ﬁFZHﬁ A 52,547 47,991
Interest income from financial RIBEIRIE A T ERIE 2 B
assets at FVPL BAEZFSHA 2,318 —
Net realised (loss) gain on disposal & B & IRIZ A T ERIE
of financial assets at FVPL ZHBEE 2 DB (&
(note i) B) Yz S RE (HEE) (167,523) 126,883
Interest income from loan FEME k2 F B
receivables 13,692 18,025
(98,966) 192,899
1,134,936 1,531,414
Note: MisE
(i) Represented the proceeds from the sale of investments at FVPL of (i) BHERBRRIZAFER IiZ&ﬁZﬁfr
HK$1,762,099,000 (2017: HK$1,897,001,000) less relevant costs and F=¢ IE1 ,762,099,000/8 T(— T —+ 4

carrying value of the investments sold of HK$1,929,622,000 (2017:
HK$1,770,118,000).

(ii) The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31 December
2018 that was included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year is HK$34,684,000.

1,897,001 ooo,%m)mafafﬂZZK&EﬁE&

& 2 B & 181,929,622,0003% 7T (= & —

4 :1,770,118,000 7T) °

iy EAFVENABEZHEE—
AZ+ - HIESEOBRZEESER
34,684,000 7T

2018 2017
—E-N\F T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THBT FHET
(b) Other income Ha A

Amortisation of deferred day-one  IEFE & B Yoas 2 84 (F7E 26)
gain (note 26) 11,070 20,479
Government grant (note) ER T BY (B 5E) 13,667 14,687

Interest income from financial K EBSHEE R B YA

institutions 10,627 13,243
Others Hth 3,176 4,357
38,540 52,766

Note: Government grant represent rewards to certain subsidiaries of the
Company located in the PRC with no further obligations and conditions
to be complied with.
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e MR MR

Year ended 31 December 2018 ﬁ§:§7/1¢+iﬁ5ﬁ*51&¢/§

3. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME (Continued) 3. WBEREMKAE)

(c) Disaggregation of revenue

BE-Z2-\F+-A=1+—-HLEHFE

() W#HEDHF

Year ended 31

December 2018

loT solution HMID IDS Total
WD 4
fRRT R AKES EREERRE at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTET THET THET
Revenue from contracts &EFHHEEER
with customers within S 15% 2K H
HKFRS 15 BEFEHRzWE
Major products TEER
loT solutions products WIE AR R T B
Em 102,643 — — 102,643
HMID electronic products  A#EEE T E R — 80,622 — 80,622
Printer products FTEN# o — 287,622 — 287,622
Terminals, software and 4% - & &z
hardware products B E R 22,676 294,867 — 317,543
125,319 663,111 — 788,430
Major services FTERH
Provision of loT solutions 12 £ ¥ E 48 &R
services FRRE 213,537 — — 213,537
Provision of printing REITENGN
outsourcing services AR 7% — — 225,750 225,750
Others =) — 6,185 — 6,185
213,537 6,185 225,750 445,472
Total revenue 4 3 338,856 669,296 225,750 1,233,902
Timing of revenue s 328 T 20 R
recognition
At a point in time RE—R 2R 125,319 663,111 — 788,430
Over time W& B R 213,537 6,185 225,750 445,472
338,856 669,296 225,750 1,233,902
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating segments, based on information
provided to the chief operating decision maker (the
“CODM") who is the executive directors of the Company,
for the purpose of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance. This is also the basis upon
which the Group is arranged and organised.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there
are four reportable and operating segments as follows:

(a) 1oT solution

(b)  HMID

(c) IDS

(d) Securities and other investment (“Investing”)

The Group’s other operating segments do not meet any of
the quantitative thresholds for determining as reportable
segments. The information of these other operating
segments are is included in the “Unallocated” column.

Segments results represent the results from each reportable
segment without allocation of finance costs. The following
analysis is the measure reported to executive directors, being
the CODM, for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, all direct segment
assets and liabilities are grouped under respective reportable
segments and the remaining assets and liabilities are grouped
as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial State ents
e BB’

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —ZF—/\E+_-H= *Eﬂfi/*

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 4, DEER(E)
By business segments 3
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable AEENEREE R A REDE Y D
segment is set out below: BH|T -
Year ended 31 December 2018
BEZZ-\E+ZA=t-HLEE
loT solution HMID IDS Investing  Unallocated Total
NEE
BRRE AREE  BRERERY RE FEAE &zt

HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000
TR TR TER TEn TR TR

Revenue from contracts with ~ BBEHHREELE15%
customers within HKFRS 15 LREEFAH

Sale of products, at a point in time RE-HLHEESR 125,319 663,111 - - - 788,430
Rendering of services, over time BB RIR AR 213,537 6,185 225,750 - - 445,472
338,856 669,296 225,750 - - 1,233,902

Revenue from other sources KRB EMRE 2 Wi
Dividend income from financial ~ RERBERATEREL

assets at FYPL BBEEIREMA - - - 52,547 - 52,547
Interest income from financial RERBRATEREL
assets at FYPL BBEELMEMA - - - 2318 - 2,318
Net realised loss on disposal of ~ HERERIERATER
financial assets at FVPL BlOKEEIRER
EBEIE - - - (167,523) - (167,523)
Interest income from loan EUEFZFIBIA
receivables - - - - 13,692 13,692
- - — (112,658) 13,692 (98,966)
Total revenue el 338,856 669,296 225,750 (112,658) 13,692 1,134,936
Operating results FEE |
Segment results PEEE (1,131,541) 13,640 27,179 (1,596,798) (37,077) (2,724,597)
Finance costs B (205,698)
Loss before taxation BB BIEE (2,930,295)
Other information HthER
Segment assets PEBE 825,820 675,618 96,160 2,517,466 210,053 4,325,117
Segment liabilities PERR (208,675) (234,528) (54,931)  (2,543,444) (187,797)  (3,229,375)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

By business segments (Continued)

4. TEERE)
BREBIE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2018
BE-E-NF+-A=t+-ALEE

loT solution HMID IDS Investing  Unallocated Total
NE@
BARR ABED  EHERRE RE FEAE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Tan Thn Thn TEn TAn
Other information &R
Additions to property, plantand  FEWE - BRE REED
equipment and intangible REREE
assets 18,021 4,952 8,137 - 26 31,136
Loss allowance on trade BORNGEBEER
receivables (106,402) (11,816) (159) - - (118,377)
Loss allowance on loan receivables ENEZEBHEE - - - - (24,377) (24,377)
Allowance for write down of HMAFERE
inventories - (2,655) - - - (2,655)
Change in fair value of financial ~ RNERERATEREL
assets at FVPL BBEEZATE
& - - - (1,479,954) - (1,479,954)
Change in fair value of contingent  ERFAREZATFE
consideration payables g 16,524 - - - - 16,524
Depreciation and amortisation NEREHE (41,998) (7,405) (4,181) - (1.471) (55,055)
Forfeiture of a deposit paid for  RUGRE— B LA
acquisition of a subsidiary Bxfiziks (3,000) - - - - (3,000)
Impairment of gooduwill BEHE (897,375) - - - - (897,375)
Impairment of intangible assets ~ EFAEFE (59,419) - = = = (59,419)
Research and development costs — BF5 RFE KA (16,718) (5,939) (2,749) - - (25,406)
Reversal of share-based payment BB BB RAE 2 AR
in respect of share options 2308 - - - - 9,681 9,681
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -
 HREHMBHmRMTE

Year ended 31 December 2018 # % = F— /| 4+= = — Bt FE
4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued) 4.  PEERE)
By business segments (Continued) D)
Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-S-+F+-A=t-ALEE
loT solution HMID IDS Investing Unallocated Total
L
EYES NEES  BRERRS && AR st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL AT AT TAT AL

Revenue W
Sales of products HEER 455,072 463,171 - - - 918,243
Service income RBRA 213,147 6,200 200,925 — — 420,272
Dividend income from financial ~ RERBERATEREL

assets at FVPL YHEEZREMA - — - 47,991 — 47,991
Net realised gain on disposal of ~ HERBHERATER

financial assets at FVPL BrHBEEZBER

hEFE - - — 126,883 — 126,883

Interest income from loan EUEFZFIBIA

receivables — — — — 18,025 18,025
Total revenue s 668,219 469,371 200,925 174,874 18,025 1,531,414
Operating results fexs
Segment results PERE 200,571 24,100 25,002 369,072 (84,583) 534,162
Finance costs R A (190,103)
Profit before taxation BRE AR 344,059
Other information HthEs
Segment assets NREE 2,306,521 678,604 119,605 3,639,994 165,964 6,910,688
Segment liabilities PERE (258,717) (170,544) (63,0100 (1,964,179) (146,660)  (2,603,110)
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A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

4. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)

By business segments (Continued)

4. HEERE)
REKDEE)

Year ended 31 December 2017
BE-S—tFT-A=T-ALEE

loT solution HMID IDS Investing Unallocated Total
bl
[ IES NEEE)  BREREH RE RMEAE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL Tin AL TATL TAL
Other information RfhER
Additions to property, plantand  FENE « BER
equipment and intangible FBIREVAE
assets
— Additions fﬁ 32,975 5530 17,815 — 3,679 59,999
— Additions — Acquisition of RE — WENELT
subsidiaries 32,191 — — — — 32,191
(Allowance) reversal of loss BoRNFTEEEREL
allowance on trade receivables (4% )& (572) (172) 7 - — (1,337)
Reversal of allowance for wiite  HiE/ZSEEEME
down of inventories — 5,283 — — — 5,283
Changes in fair value of EUSIAREZATE
contingent consideration 2%
receivables 186,757 — - - — 186,757
Change in fair value of financial ~ PEHERATFEREZ
assets at FVPL BBEEL
DYERS - - - 284,739 - 284,139
Depreciation and amortisation & f & (35,768) (6,759) (5,916) — (667) (49,110)
Impairment of available-forsale WK EHKEERE
financial assets — — - (61,109) — (61,109)
Impairment of goodwil BERE (200,000 - - - - (200,000)
Research and development costs BT R #HK A (12,997) (7,039) (2,266) — — (22,302)
Share of result of associates e NE £E 1473 - - - - 1473
Long-term employee benefitsin ~ BEIAFRE 2 REES
respect of profit quarantee &H (19,060) - — — - (19,060)
Share-based payment inrespect  BERFIRE 2 UK
of profit guarantee 238 (10,423) — — — — (10,423)
Share-based payment in respect B RIERRIE 2 MRk A
of share options LHE — - - - (19,065) (19,065)
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # %7 = ZF—/\F+_-H=

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas:
Hong Kong (country of domicile) and the PRC.

The following table sets out information about geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and goodwill (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services are provided or the goods
are delivered. The geographical location of specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the assets,
in the case of property, plant and equipment, the location
of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of
intangible assets and goodwill.

Revenue from
external customers

e B %W

— Bt FE

. PEER(E)

A
AEEESREELRAELE B8
(SEM 08 ReRE -

TERHFNEBENAKEXRBINBEL Z
Wt o R (i) NREEYE - BB MRS
BEELRHE(EEFRRDEE)Z
IR EER - BP IR E ATRH
REXRNERZULERER - 18EF
MBEEZHIEMNENEERS FIHEH
(HEBYx - BEERE) oS E
2 E (BB EENREE) RER -

Specified
non-current assets

REMPEF 2= EEHRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-NE E—+HF —E-NF —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FABT FTET FHET
The PRC R 1,231,606 1,271,832 391,696 1,377,902
Hong Kong &5 (98,966) 208,691 2,298 3,742
Overseas SN 2,296 50,891 — —
1,134,936 1,531,414 393,994 1,381,644

Information about major customers FHEXEREFZER

No single customer individually contributed 10% or more of
the Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017.

REZz2-_Z—N\EFER-_FT—+F+-H
Z+—HLEFE BEE-RFPALE
B ER10% A £ o
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A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

5. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBiA(EE)EF
(Loss) Profit before taxation is stated after charging M B AT (B8 )@ A0k (BT A) T A&
(crediting): TH1E 50K -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FE—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(a) Finance costs 2R3 %N
Interest on promissory notes A EEA B
(note 26) (F45E26) 53,067 76,462
Interest on convertible bonds AT AR (EHF) B
(note 29) (PR5E29) 70,094 66,457
Interest on interest-bearing AFEEEFRE
borrowings 82,527 47,170
Interest expenses for financial LR EK AR B
liabilities at amortised cost BFERX 205,688 190,089
Finance charges on obligations BMEHEGEHR  REER
under finance leases 10 14
Total borrowing costs BIEBER A 205,698 190,103
(b)  Other items HMER
Loss allowance on trade receivables & 5 & U 3k T8 &5 18 5 118,377 1,337
Loss allowance on loan receivables  JEUE R E1B1E R 24,377 247
Allowance (Reversal of allowance) WORF & 58 (g )
for write-down of inventories 2,655 (5,283)
Amortisation of intangible assets ** & E#H **
(note 12) (f5E12) 31,635 29,729
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN &
— Audit-related assurance services — — ZEERIZEE RS 1,650 1,500
— Other services — E AR 653 788
Cost of inventories * TFERA 597,601 650,316
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #% - = MEEITE
equipment 23,420 19,381
Exchange loss, net b 5B 185 1,722 3,351
Operating lease charges on premises % 7 & LHETH 25,775 23,892
Research and development costs 9% R A B Rk AR 25,406 22,302
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %
5. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5. RBIAT(EE) %R (E)
2018 2017
—B-N\F IZ—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
(b)  Other items (Continued) Hivg B (&)
Staff costs, including directors’ BIKA @ BIEESH
remuneration: [
— Salaries and other allowances — Fre MEHAMRRL 224,123 159,780
— Contributions to defined — REHEIE IR
contribution plans 34,354 29,152
— Share-based payment in respect — — ARIFEIIE Z AR
of share options 2 %38 (9,681) 19,065
— Share-based payment in respect  — B/ MRE 2 ARG
of profit guarantee X2 KB = 10,423
— Long-term employee benefits in  — B/EGEFIRE 2 REE
respect of profit quarantee SR = 19,060
Note: * Cost of inventories includes HK$38,272,000 (2017: it * TERABIEEEIRE ERE
HK$28,128,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation and i E X IR 2 38,272,000 T
operating lease charges, the amounts of which are also included (ZF — 4 :28,128,000/8 7T )
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above for FRARENTERSRAIERGFA LX
each of these types of expenses. BRI %R HER TR -
o Included in “General and administrative expenses” in the o FFAREBRRREMEEKRARERZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive [ RITHAZ] -
Income.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

6. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 6. EERESTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEREETHAE#HME
The aggregate amounts of emoluments received RRREERESTHAEBE KK
or receivable by the Company’s directors and chief EU & @smmTs

executive are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2018
BEZZ-\FtZf=1-HLEE

Basic salaries, Retirement Equity-
Allowance Benefit settled
and other  Discretionary scheme  share-based

Fees benefits bonus  contributions payment Total
Exge- BRGE
2RR BUKEN  ARGRA

ik AR Btsa EE e LB st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
TR TR TR TiEn TR TR

(Note (i)) (Note (ii)
(B3 ) (B i)
Executive directors UnEs
Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung DERTE(BEE])
("Mr. Kwok") - 2,375 - 18 (677) 1,116
Mr. Yuen Wenxin RULEE
(Appointed on 10 January 2018 (R=F—-/\E—A+H
and resigned on 10 January 2019)  EZARR-E-NE
—ATREE) - 1,952 - 18 - 1,970
Mr. Bai Xuefei RERTE
(Appointed on 1 June 2018 and  (R=ZE—/\E/RA—B
resigned on 17 July 2018) BERRN-Z-N\&
AT REE) - 511 - 3 - 514
Ms. Yang Xiaoying BERLL
(Resigned on 17 July 2018) (R=F-NE
TATLERED) - 858 - 1 - 869
Mr. Tsang To BEis - 360 - 18 (319) 59
Mr. Yip Denis Shing Fai ("Mr. Yip") EREsA([E54))
(Resigned on 10 January 2019) (A =ZF-AF—A+H
BE) - 5,781 - 16 - 5,797
Independent non-executive BUkyTES
directors
Mr. Zhang Xiaoman )y 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chin Hon Siang RREEE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Huang Xin bk 240 = = = = 40
70 1,837 - 8 (996) 11,645
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Year ended 31 December 2018 ﬁ§i§7/1¢+jﬁ5 —BIFFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 6. ESRREETHASMEE)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EBEKBSTHRAEME(Z)

emoluments(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2017
HE-E—+E+-A=1t-BILEE

Retirement
Basic salaries, benefit  Equity-settled
alowance and  Discretionary scheme  share-based
Fees  other benefits bonus  contributions payment Total
ERFe EaRE
4R RINEH DRGRA
fe EitigAl Bigia B LR it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TARL TARL TARL ThR ThR

(Note (i)) (Note (ii))
(R () GEED)
Executive directors YiEs
Ms. Yang Xiaoying RRERL - 1,250 - 18 911 2179
Mr. Tsang To e — 360 — 18 638 1016
Mr. Yip Denis Shing Fai EREEE
(Appointed on 21 December (RZZ—tF
2017) TZAZ+-REZA) - 175 - 2 - 177
Mr. Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung PEREE
(Appointed on 21 December (RZZ—tF
2017) TZAZ+-REZA) - 59 - - 6 65
Mr. Choi Chi Fai BEERE
(Resigned on 21 December 2017)  (RZZ—+#
TZRAZT-BE) - 1,824 - 18 1,140 298
Independent non-executive BukdnEs
directors
Mr. Zhang Xiaoman )y 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chin Hon Siang RELEE 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Huang Xin EMik 240 - - - - 240
70 3668 - 56 2695 7139
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F

6.

M| RMEE

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

Note:

(i) Mr. Kwok is entitled to a discretionary bonus in respect of each
financial year of the Company in an amount to be determined by
the board of directors which is subject to a cap. No discretionary
bonus was paid or payable to Mr. Kwok for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

(ii) Equity-settled share-based payment represents share options

granted to the directors of the Company under a share option
scheme adopted by the Company. The value of these share
options is measured according to the Group’s accounting

policies for share-based payment transactions.

Details of share options granted to the directors of the Company
and other employees, including the principal terms and number
of options granted, are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.

No director waived and agreed to waive any
emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017. An incentive payment of HK$1,730,000 was
paid to Mr. Yip to join the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil). No compensation for
loss of office was paid or payable to any director for
both years.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at end of the reporting period or
at any time during the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017.
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6.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Among the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2017: two) are executive directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial

7.

REUH®

— Bt ﬁf/xg

BEEFHAL

A GEEFATR=A(ZT—1LF:
MAL) BHATEERESTTBAER - &
FE2MeRRE B RERN 6 N -

statements.
The emoluments paid to the remaining two (2017: three) FRNEMEGBRM(ZT—+F : =f1)
individuals during the year were as follows: AT ZMEIT
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Basic salaries, share option and EXF ¢ - BRERERM
allowances 2,993 9,455
Retirement benefit scheme RRAEAFT B R
contributions 18 66
3,011 9,521
The emoluments fell within the following bands: & F AT EE

Number of individuals

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000

1,000,001 L2 1,500,000 % 7T
1,500,001 L Z 2,000,000 % 7T
2,500,001 7 L2 3,000,000 7 7T
5,000,001 & L% 5,500,000 %8 7T

During the year ended 31 December 2018, HK$1,730,000

(2017: HK$Nil) were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and other employees)
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group and no
emoluments (2017: HK$Nil) were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals (including directors and other
employees) as compensation for loss of office.

AE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—F
1 N
1 1
— 1
— 1
2 3

REBEE-_ZT-N\Ft+_-_A=1+—BLLHF
B AEERAUGSHFAL(BEE

BEREAMES )X 11,730,000 (=
T—F: TET)EREBMEALN
BAKER S AKBEWERR
NEEHFAL(BEESREMER)X
N EABRBECCEZ—tF: 2
BT °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

TAXATION

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group's
entities either have no assessable profit or incurred a loss
for taxation purposes for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: the Group’s entities either have no assessable profit
or their assessable profits are wholly absorbed by unrelieved
tax losses brought forward from previous years).

The applicable PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) for the
PRC subsidiaries is at the statutory rate of 25% (2017: 25%)
based on their taxable profit, unless otherwise specified
below.

Seven (2017: seven) PRC subsidiaries of the Company
have been officially designated by the local tax authority
s “High and New Technology Enterprises”. A reduced tax
rate of 15% (2017: 15%) for the period of three years was
granted as long as those PRC subsidiaries meet the high-tech
enterprise qualification.

In 2017, a PRC subsidiary of the Company was qualified as
software enterprises and granted a tax holiday of two-year
tax exemption followed by three-year 50% tax reduction
(subject to annual review), starting from the first profit
making year from the PRC tax perspective under the then
effective tax regulations. This PRC subsidiary made the first-
year profit in 2016. As a result, it is exempted from EIT for
2017, and is subject to EIT at 12.5% from 2018 to 2020 and
at 25% from 2021 onwards.

Withholding tax represents tax charged by the PRC tax
authority on dividends distributed by the Group’s PRC
subsidiary during the year.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B %W

Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %
TAXATION (Continued) 8. WIEE)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Current tax N E TR
PRC EIT PR RATEN
Current year REE 10,574 45,321
Over provision in prior year BEFEBEEER (4,110) (1,066)
6,464 44,255
Withholding tax TR 31,878 —
Deferred tax (Note 25) EZEBE (M5 25) (21,961) (6,861)
Tax expenses for the year FAHEMEX 16,381 37,394
Reconciliation of tax expenses IR X B IR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
(Loss) Profit before taxation FrELRT (B8 ) m A (2,930,295) 344,059
Tax at rate applicable to the REMAEERER
jurisdictions concerned MEAE 2HIE (489,798) 48,462
Non-deductible expenses IR 185,171 32,706
Tax exempted revenue R (16,797) (28,787)
Share of results of associates JEMREE N | 2 A — (243)
Utilisation of previously BRI AR TR 2 BIAE 18
unrecognised tax losses — (23,780)
Unrecognised tax losses ANER 2 HIEEE 308,939 10,827
Over provision in prior year BT SRR (4,110) (1,066)
Withholding tax A 31,878 —
Others Hth 1,098 (725)
Tax expenses for the year FABIBHRXL 16,381 37,394

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.72% (2017:

14.09%), representing the weighted average of the rates

of taxation prevailing in the territories in which the Group

operates.

IEFHERAMELRE16.72% (ZE—+
F:14.09%)  BIRNEBEEMEME

ZE AT IFE o
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e

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F

10.

M| RMEE

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

DIVIDENDS 9.

The directors of the Company resolved not to declare any
payment of final dividend for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 10.

The calculation of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share

are based on the following data:

RE
ARBEF;

ZRTHREBEE_ZT

—N\FRk

T+t A=+—HILEFETK
Eﬁﬂiﬂﬁﬂné R

BR(EE)ER
SRREA L R BRI ERUT
B

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Numerator 7 F
(Loss) Profit attributable to BARitESRERREE(EE)
owners of the Company used in BNz AR EHEB AEN
computing basic and diluted (loss)  (E5%8) & F
earnings per share (2,835,001) 202,628
2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
Note ‘000 shares ‘000 shares
Bt T F iz
Denominator &
Weighted average number of ARG ESRER(EE)
ordinary shares in issue during the & X7 FAC 31T
year used in computing basic (loss) A% HIkEF 15
earnings per share (a) 11,123,292 10,625,103
Effect of dilution — weighted e ® — Lmizinig
average number of ordinary shares 15
Consideration shares RERD (b) — 79,648
Weighted average number of ARG EgREE (&)
ordinary shares in issue during the — Z#| 2 FRE 31T
year used in computing diluted I AR INAE T 2
(loss) earnings per share 11,123,292 10,704,751
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2018 takes into account the effects arising
from the repurchasing of shares during the year ended 31 December
2018 as set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
year ended 31 December 2017 takes into account the effects arising
from the placing of shares in July 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s dilutive potential ordinary
shares comprise consideration shares to be issued under the profit
guarantee arrangement as the directors of the Company are virtually
certain that profit guarantee arrangement was met.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, other dilutive
potential ordinary shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted
(loss) earnings per share as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive
or the specific conditions were not met.

(a)

k gﬂ'ﬁ? (=] ,\jigiﬁ

Year ended 31 December 2018 ﬁi* F—)F+-H=

et

10. SRSE)BA(H)

BEE -

<NER- J=T=RILFE 2
E%ﬁ% BB e st ks A B
RMFEMBRBE—FT-—NE+=A
,+ HILFEBRRAMEEZTE - 1
BEZ—tF+-A=+—-HLFEZE
BT BRINETFHBEFER _F—1F
TARERMMEL 2HE -

RZEBE—tF+ZA=+—8 KRAZE
BRI e E S RBEENRE LT
ZREBD  RARAAREER /5 NRFR
BLHEAEERENK -

REBEE_Z-NEFR_ZT—-—+tF+=A
=+—HIEFE  AEGREE(EE)RT
ﬁE%#Eﬁ@E%E%@&*%E%HA
ZELBRRGAERBELEIFTERE AR
B o
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eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

11. ME - BERRE

Buildings Furniture,
outside Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
Hong Kong  improvements Moulds machinery  equipment vehicles Total
fIRERED B8 %EBR
ZBF  HENERE E BERKS B4 AE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tix Tin TiEn TiEn T T T
Carrying amount kESH
At 1 January 2017 EA_ —t¥-5-8 — 6,514 17,202 7,589 15,249 1,930 48,434
Additions - acquisition of — RERERE
subsidiaries - - - - 1,488 - 1,488
Additions AE 13,331 6,819 3,517 16,784 9,645 429 50,525
Disposals i - (653) - - (498) - (1,151)
Depreciation ik (300) (3378) (5,404) (2,341) (7,159) (799) (19,381)
Exchange realignments s 534 474 122 1,164 131 104 4,809
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%
tZA=1-A 13,565 9,776 16,537 23,1% 20036 1,664 84,774
At 31 December 2017 R_F-1&
t-A=f-8
Cost fk 13,878 18,376 29,878 21,079 33,012 3,805 126,088
Accumulated depreciation ZifthE (313) (8,600) (13,341) (3,883) (12,976) (2,201) (41,314)
13,565 9,776 16,537 23,1% 20,036 1,664 84,774
Carrying amount kESH
t 1 January 2018 RZZ-\§-A-H 13,565 9,776 16,537 23,19 20,036 1,664 84,774
Additions HE = 6,057 3419 10,818 4,784 537 25,615
Disposals e - - - (38) (409) (174) (621)
Depreciation it (617) (4,684) (6,085) (3,958) (7,331) (745) (23,420)
Exchange realignments A (677) (443) (754) (1,473) (906) (66) (4319)
At 31 December 2018 R-2-NF
TZR=t-H 121 10,706 13,117 28,545 16,174 1,216 82,029
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\§
tZA=1-A
Cost s 13,159 23413 31,612 35,021 3,0M 2978 139,254
Accumulated depreciation ZiiTE (888) (12,707) (18,495) (6,476) (16,897) (1,762) (57,225)
121 10,706 13,117 28,545 16,174 1,216 82,029
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RERBRRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %
11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1. V¥ BERREE)
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment with a net book value at RREHERBIREFES 12,271,000
end of the reporting period of HK$12,271,000 (2017: BT(ZZE—+14% : 13,565,000 L) 2
HK$13,565,000) were pledged to secure loans of ME  BWEMEZRECDIHEGR  (ERZFEE
HK$5,693,000 (2017: HK$5,007,000) as set out in note B RER M5 24(b) PT#L 5,693,000 8 7T
24(b) to the consolidated financial statements. (ZZF—+4%F :5,007,00087L) 28K
AR o

The net book value of the Group’s property, plant and REBEME - MEREER_Z—N\F
equipment as at 31 December 2018 included an amount TZA=+—RZIREFEBREBRLE
of HK$19,000 (2017: HK$248,000) in respect of assets BEERERM E24(q) FTE B E M E A
held under finance leases as set out in note 24(g) to the EEBEZEEZ19,0008T(ZE—+
consolidated financial statements. £ 1 248,000/87T) °
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A B IS R R M EE ‘

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12. BREE
Computer
software Customer Customer Software
copyright contracts  relationships patents  Trademarks Total
ERBHRE EEAH EFB% BHEF [G:d @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT FAR TAT TAT FER
Carrying amount RESHE
At 1 January 2017 W-E—+5-A—H 2,527 — 108,076 — 32,236 142,839
Additions - acquisition of  RE — WEMBA]
subsidiaries — 2,976 11,974 8,433 7,320 30,703
Additions NE — — — 9,474 — 9,474
Amortisation B (652) (1,677) (26,936) (464) = (29,729)
Exchange realignments B3 % — — — 920 1,196 2116
At 31 December 2017  RZE—+%
+ZR=t+—-8 1,875 1,299 93,114 18,363 40,752 155,403
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E
+-fF=1-8
Cost A 2,961 2,976 136,677 18,845 40,752 202,211
Accumulated amortisation 25T E (1,086) (1,677) (43,563) (482) — (46,808)
1,875 1,299 93,114 18,363 40,752 155,403
Carrying amount RESE
At 1 January 2018 RZB-N\E—A—H 1,875 1,299 93,114 18,363 40,752 155,403
Additions RE - - — 5,521 - 5,521
Amortisation 3t (651) (974) (27,934) (2,076) - (31,635)
Impairment WiE (1,224) - (58,195) — = (59,419)
Exchange realignments  [E 3 f% — - — (1,090) (907) (1,997)
At 31 December 2018  R=ZF-\5+=f
=t+-H — 325 6,985 20,718 39,845 67,873
At 31 December 2018  R=F-\5+=f
=t-H
Cost KA 2,961 2,976 136,677 23,167 39,845 205,626
Accumulated amortisation 2zt (1,737) (2,651) (71,497) (2,449) - (78,334)
Accumulated impairment ~ 2;HE{E (1,224) - (58,195) - - (59,419)
— 325 6,985 20,718 39,845 67,873
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Customer contracts, certain customer relationships and
software patents were acquired as a result of the acquisition
of ED Group in April 2017. Amortisation for customer
contracts, customer relationships and software patents are
provided on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 2, 4 and 10 years respectively and their carrying
amounts are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.

Certain customer relationships and computer software
copyright were acquired as a result of the acquisition of
the Next Concept International Investment Limited (“Next
Concept”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Next
Concept Group”) in April 2016. Amortisation is provided
on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 5 years. The carrying amounts of customer relationships
and computer software copyright are measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the Company
consider the operating environment of the Next Concept
Group in the PRC continues to be very challenging which
indicated that the business of Next Concept Group will
experience significant decline in the future and these
intangible assets acquired as a result of the acquisition of the
Next Concept Group were tested for impairment (see note
13) and impairment loss of HK$59,419,000 was recognised
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).

 BAMBR

— Bt FE

12. BREE(E)

BEFAHN ETEFPBARRZHEERII
AR —FT—tFOAKRBEEREEMmME
A BFAH BEPBARRERMHENZ
BENORR2F - 4FRI10F 2 fE5T
A AFEHMANERERIR  MAKRES
BRI AR R MR ERB R E

ETEFBERERTFREDRAR =
E-REOARBESBERREBRA
AEDRENB AR (SHEESE
)M A - EHENESF 2 AR
FHANESERE - TFARNEN
B A 2 WR T 2 BRAR AN R & R AT
R ERBEE -

R_ZE—NF+_A=+—H " KAQF
ZEERA HEL5ERPREZERR
BNBR#  RTESKEEZEBKA
BHEGHEBRABTR  MzSEKE
ESEEMBBCEREED EITR
BERSAWFEIZ)  HE_T—N\F
+Z A=+ —HBLEFEERERRER
859,419,000 (=T — 1 F : TH
JT) °
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

12.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Trademarks were acquired as a result of the acquisition of
Smart Express Development Limited (“Smart Express”) and
its subsidiaries in September 2014 and ED Group in April
2017. The trademarks acquired have been granted for period
of 10 years by the relevant government and can be renewed
at the expiry date of each trademark with insignificant cost.
Coupled with the fact that previous trademarks acquired
have been previously renewed for further 10 years with
an option of renewal at the expiry date, the Group has
determined that these assets have an indefinite useful life.
Trademarks are therefore measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, trademarks were tested
for impairment (see note 13) and no impairment loss was
charged for both years.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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HEDRAABR -_Z—OENLAR
ZF —+F M A K Smart Express
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Express ) R EMEARIA R REH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B %W

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the
acquisitions effectively included amounts in relation to the
benefits originated from future market development and
the assembled workforce of the acquired businesses. These
benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill because
they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable
intangible assets. None of the goodwill recognised is
expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

The carrying amounts of trademarks with indefinite useful
lives (see note 12) as at 31 December 2018 includes an
amount of HK$32,495,000 (2017: HK$33,226,000) and
HK$7,350,000 (2017: HK$7,526,000) which are attributable
to the Group’s CGU of Fuijian Start Computer Equipment
Company Limited* (“FSCE”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as “FSCE Group”) and ED Group respectively.

Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %
13. GOODWILL 13. B8
2018 2017
—E-N\F = —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Reconciliation of carrying IR & BEE IR
amount

At beginning of the reporting period % 4] 1,141,467 1,194,558
Acquisition of subsidiaries g b= PNG] = 146,909
Impairment losses BB EE (897,375) (200,000)
At end of the reporting period AEREELELRA 244,092 1,141,467

At 31 December R+=A=+—H
Cost FA 1,341,467 1,341,467
Accumulated impairment losses ZEHREEE (1,097,375) (200,000)
244,092 1,141,467

EEREBZRAARKBEEMINZ
REERLEEFRERKMSER LM
WEEBEAANZNESHE - 25 H
ARG AR E T B E 2 R IR
- B reEmBENMER - BHCE
RZBEBT A BRHBMEN -

BEETREANRFHZAE(RMIE12)
R-_E—N\FE+_A=+—HBZIEAZ
B8 1532,495,0008 L (ZF — £ 4F ¢
33,226,0007% 7t ) 2 18 [ 7,350,000
BIt(ZZ—+4F 7,526,000 )
DoRREAEREREEEKEES
RAGI([EBEMR]D REMB ARG
BEENERDULACREEZE
SELEBM -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

13. GOODWILL (Continued) 13. BE(E)
All of the goodwill related to the operating segments ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’\\}\%ﬁ@%%ﬁﬁ&%
of HMID and loT solution. Goodwill is monitored by the G R REE DT - BEEEEIRMN
management at each CGU within HMID and loT solution TABES D ERYBREERTENE

segments.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the

ZEERCELEMERHE -

BEREASHEIEEANEEMEREE

Group’s CGUs identified as follows: PEEBLAT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —FE—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHEIT
HMID business segment A%EEJ%?%‘J}?@
FSCE Group EINEEE 114,786 114,786
loT solution business segment VB RBATRELESE
Shenzhen CNEOP Technology RN ERBH AR AF]

Company Limited * (“CNEOP") ([H¥E]) 3,792 49,845
Shenzhen Hexicom Technologies wYNTEEREH AR AR

Company Limited * (“Hexicom") ([8EE]) 9,135 49,652
Guangzhou Wealth-Depot Logistics BN AE L X R EAR A

Technology Company Limited * (TRED

("Wealth-Depot”) 7,609 52,309
Next Concept Group EoEE — 702,225
Hangzhou Lepei Telecommunication  #u M &&BEER A A ([ 44 )

Company Limited * (“Lepei”) 25,741 25,741
ED Group T EEE 71,631 135,511
Beijing Weein Software Technology 1t RikEE 4RI AR A A

Company Limited * (“Weein") (T4 11,398 11,398

244,092 1,141,467
* The official names are in Chinese and the English names are translated B ABUAR X R%E  EXEELEERS

for identification purpose only.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té*g —NF+=H=

13. GOODWILL (Continued)

The Group has engaged independent valuers, Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL"),
APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited (“APAC"”) and
Graval Consulting Limited (“Graval”) to perform an appraisal
of the value of the CGUs in the HMID and loT solution
business segments. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have
been determined on the basis of higher of the CGUs' fair
value less costs of disposal and VIU calculations.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, based on the valuation
reports prepared by APAC, the recoverable amounts for the
HMID business segment’s CGU was determined based on VIU
calculations using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 17% (2017: 17%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year are extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% (2017:
3%). Based on the assessment, the recoverable amount for
the HMID business segment’s CGU was estimated to be
higher than its carrying amount and no impairment loss was
recognised for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, based on the valuation reports
prepared by APAC, JLL and Graval, the VIU of the respective
CGUs in loT solution business segment were higher than its
fair value less costs of disposal (2017: except for the CGUs
of ED Group and Next Concept Group). The recoverable
amounts of these CGUs were therefore determined based
on the VIU calculations using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rates applied to the
projections was 19% to 31% (2017: 20% to 22%) and cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
a growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%). The key assumptions
have been determined based on past performance and
management expectations for the industry development.
The discount rates used was pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to these CGUs. Based on the valuations, the
recoverable amount of certain CGUs was lower than their
carrying amounts, impairment losses of HK$897,375,000 was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018.

13.

REUH®

3 B1F EE
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HARESRYBERRTREBE DR
ZEE ReELBMZAKESRER
BeEEEM R FEBESEXANER
BEABEZUARSERE)ETE -

RZEBE-NFR_ZTE—tF+_A
=t—HB RETSAMBRHEZMEER
FoAREPRSELEMZAKOES
BUSREEEMERESFH M
pREEEREeRSMAETERER
ATEEET c REemETERAMARE
B1T%(ZF—HF 1 17%) > M5FH
BBRERENFEAI% (ZE—1F
3%) ZEEEHRE - RBEE_T—N\F
MZZE—+tF+_A=+—HILFE "
ERNBRE  AREPRSELEM
ZAWE e REFSRIRE SR - I
ERER R EREE -

RZZ—)\F+-_A=+—8  REs:
K HEBITREECEMBR ZHE
WE - MBMBRATREBYHEEE
CEABEMZFEREESREATE

BMEHERAR(—T—LF: TERER
SENESEBZRASELEN) - A

It ZEREELESEU 2l KEEE
LA AR B IR B BT HE W 2 5 F HA 2 B IR
EEFERABReREBEAETERER
EJF%/zi}%)I ° iﬁi/mgﬁ_ ﬁ”ﬁﬁﬁﬁaﬁii_f
B19% E3M%(ZF — £ F:20% %
22%) MS5FHEEzZRERETE A
3% (ZE—+F 3% ) 2 IEREEE
TEBRFTHEEBRBLARERHTE
BRIBEAETE o FTARBE AT AL
ERMZEReEEBN 2FERR
REE-_ZE—\F+-A=+—HILF
B ERBEE ETHeEESEN
ZA Bl BEANIRESE W2 R
BB 518 897,375,000 7T °
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

13. GOODWILL (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, based on the valuation report
prepared by JLL, the fair value less costs of disposal of the
respective CGU of Next Concept Group was higher than
its VIU. The recoverable amount of the CGU was therefore
determined based on the fair value less costs of disposal
by the management. As the recoverable amount was lower
than the carrying amount of the CGU, an impairment loss
of HK$200,000,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2017. The calculation of the fair value less costs
of disposal are based on adjusted ratios of enterprise value
("EV") divided by earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT")
("EV/EBIT") of several comparable public companies (ranging
from 5.7 to 11.2) multiplied by the EBIT of Next Concept
Group and control premium of 18%, and discounted for the
lack of marketability (“DLOM"”) at 17%. The comparable
public companies are chosen based on factors such as
industry similarity, company size, profitability and financial
risks.

As at 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount for a
group of CGUs in ED Group were determined, based on
quoted market prices of Enterprise Development on the
Stock Exchange at end of the reporting period, to be higher
than the carrying amount of these CGUs. Accordingly, the
Group’s management considers that trademarks and goodwill
attributable to CGUs in ED Group are not impaired.

The directors considered that the goodwill related to the
operating segment of IoT solution business were impaired
as significant reduction in a number of major customers
following the fierce market competition and the uncertainties
casted by US-China trade war that resulted in a decline of
revenue during the current year and reduced anticipated cash
flows from the future operating synergies from exploiting
the customer base of the Group’s existing loT solution, HMID
and IDS businesses. It is expected that future performance in
loT solution business will follow the actual situation in the
current year and aggregate impairment loss on goodwill of
HK$897,375,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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14. SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

Details of the principal subsidiaries at end of the reporting

period are as follows:

Particulars of

 BAMBR

— Bt FE

. WEAE

FTEWRBRFRBERERD 21BN
N

issued
Place of and fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/Type Place of  share capital/ interests held
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ERAIHE/ BRTRER KA
HWELARER EEEREN mew¥ RE/GMEAHE FisRAREE AL TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# [}
Gauteng Focus Limited The BVI/Limited Hong Kong — 100% —  Investment holding
liability company
Gauteng Focus Limited ABRLBE/BRLA  BA RERR
Loyal Fine Limited The BVI/Limited Hong Kong  United States Dollar 100% —  Investment holding
liability company ("USs”) 1
Loyal Fine Limited EBRaME/BRLE BB E50 REER
Easy Talent Limited The BVI/Limited Hong Kong  US$10 — 65.79%  Investment holding
("Easy Talent") liability company (2017: 66.14%)
BIRRLAA(ES]) LBRAHE/BRAF  BE 10%7 (ZF-t%: REBR
66.14%)
Enterprise Development The Cayman Islands/Limited  Hong Kong  HK$52,650,898 — 42.99%  Investment holding
liability company ordinary shares (2017: 43.56%)
PR REHR/ERAT (20 52,650,898 75 ¢ (ZF-tF: RESRK
Lk 43.56%)
Forefront International Hong Kong/Limited Hong Kong  HK$100,000 — 100%  Provision of management
(Hong Kong) Limited liability company ordinary shares services for the Group
HK$6,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
(note (1))
®h(BR)ERAA Bk /ARLA B 100,000/ 7% Bk REASERHER
6,000,000/7 Bk
ERZEETRD
(HZE )
Great Develop Group Limited Hong Kong/Limited Hong Kong  HKS$1 ordinary share — 100%  Investment holding
liability company
REEEARLA Bk /ARLA B 1ELEBR RERR

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k

169



170

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of

14. HEAT(2)

issued
Place of and fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/Type Place of  share capital/ interests held
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
AMALLE/ BRTRER ARF
WEARER EEERER Bk  RE/amEkEs FisRABERA L IERK
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
Holly Good Group Limited Hong Kong/Limited Hong Kong  HK$1 ordinary share — 100%  Investment holding
liability company
EEEEERAT B/ ERAA B BT EER RERR
Jiashengtai (HK) Limited Hong Kong/Limited Hong Kong  HK$1 ordinary share — 51%  Investment holding
liability company
FRR(ER)ERAT Bk /ERAA B BT EER RERR
King Billion International Limited ~ Hong Kong/Limited Hong Kong  HK$1 ordinary share — 100%  Investment holding
liability company
SEERERAA ER/ERAA B 1BTEER RERR
Luck Success Development The BVI/Limited Hong Kong — — 100%  Investment holding
Limited liability company
Luck Success Development ZERAHE/ARLAA BE RERK
Limited
Next Concept The BVI/Limited Hong Kong  US$100 — 51%  Investment holding
liability company
£ LRRAHE/ERAN  BA 10057 RARR
Premium Talent Group Limited The BVI/Limited liability Hong Kong — — 100%  Investment holding
company
Premium Talent Group Limited ~ XBREZES/ERRE BB RERR
Red Square Group Limited Hong Kong/Limited Hong Kong  HK$1 ordinary share — 100%  Investment holding
liability company
TREEERAT B/ ERAA B BT ERR RERR
Rentian Finance Company Limited  Hong Kong/Limited Hong Kong  HK$2,000,000 — 100%  Money-lending
liability company ordinary shares
FREBERAT &t/ BRAA 30 2,000,000 7 83
Sino Wealthy Limited The BVI/Limited Hong Kong  US$1 — 100%  Trading of securities
liability company
Sino Wealthy Limited ZERSHE/BRLAA  BE 157 BHEE

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Year ended 31 December 2018 ﬁ§i§7/1¢+jﬁ5 —BIFFE

14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. WEAR(E)

Particulars of

issued
Place of and fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/Type Place of  share capital/ interests held
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
AMALLE/ BRARMR ARF
WEARER EEERER Bk  RE/amEkEs FisRABERA L IERK
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
Smart Express The BVI/Limited Hong Kong  US§2 — 100%  Investment holding
liability company
Smart Express ZERSHE/BRLAA AR ES RERR
Beijing Orient LegendMaker The PRC/Limited The PRC  Registered and paid- — Provision of integrated

Software Development liability company up capital of business software
Company Limited * RMB110,000,000 solutions
(IREFEEEMER
BRAF)
IRRARSENHERERAR  RE/BREAAF e AMR&RATAR (Z2—t%: REFABXUHRARE
%110,000,000 7T 66.14%)
Weein The PRC/Limited The PRC Registered capital of — 51%  Provision in (i) research,
(ERBERHREERAR) liability company RMB20,408,163 development and
and paid- production of mobile
up capital of internet technology
RMB11,548,163 consulting services; (ii)
(note i) the provision of Tencent
Wechat's enterprise
technology solutions;

and (iii) the operation of
network carrier's mobile
marketing and education
institution’s mobile
servicing platform.

ERRESHRE AR AT wE/ERETLH B HARERARE (VREBBEBRERIHE -
20,408,163 7% R AEREARE
BRERARE (il ARG S ERT
11,548,163 7 BARE Ri)Tefs
(Ristii) EERVEEERIRHR

RRBRETA

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k 171



172

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of

4. WEAR(E)

issued
Place of and fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/Type Place of  share capital/ interests held
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ARRIHY/ BRTRER ARF
WEARER EEERER Bk  RE/amEkEs FisRABERA L TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
CNEOP The PRC/Limited The PRC Registered capital of — 61% Research, development and
(FmptEREERAR) liability company RMB20,000,000 production of mobile
and paid- data capture intelligence
up capital of terminals; provision of loT
RMB20,000,000 application and solutions
(2017: based on automatic
RMB14,375,000) identification and data
(note iii) capture technologies;

AmRERRARAT

BREEERRIGARAA

T/ ERELAT

The PRC/Limited
liability company

T/ BREEAT

HE AMERARE
20,000,007 &
BRERAARE
20,000,000
(Z5—+&:
AR#
14,375,000 77)
(sii)

The PRC Registered and paid-
up capital of
RMB148,181,800

B ARG REAAR
148,181,800 7T

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

and operation of loT data
servicing platform
BRYBERE LR Y
BAE  ARAHERE
HERERIRENBA
Ve ES &W&%
BERRETAER

— 100%  Design, manufacturing
and distribution of
printers, terminals and
POS electronic products
and provision of related
services under its own
brand name "Start" in the
PRC

R BIRGt - SR A HHTED

B RRERPOSETE
m e WHEAmEATENE
& (Start) JRE BB R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

14. WBAT(E)

Particulars of

 BAMBR

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

— Bt FE

issued
Place of and fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/Type Place of  share capital/ interests held
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
ARRIHY/ BRTRER ARF
WEARER EEERER Bk  RE/amEkEs FisRABERA L TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
Hexicom The PRC/Limited The PRC Registered and paid- — 70%  Research and development,
(MITEERREERAR) liability company up capital of manufacturing and sales
RMB30,000,000 of 1oT and Industrial 4.0
network solutions in the
PRC
MITERRRZARAR hE/EREELA i MRS ER BT - BE R E e
ARE BRIZAVBEBAAE
30,000,000
Jiangsu Start Dima Data The PRC/Limited The PRC Registered and paid- — 76.92%  Software and technology
Processing Company Limited * liability company up capital of development and printing
(IHEEEXEEREER RMB13,000,000 outsourcing services in the
) PRC
IHERRZHERRERAA  TE/EREELA i AMRGRER R ER R
ARE RITANEIRHE
13,000,000 7¢
Lepei The PRC/Limited The PRC Registered and paid- — 52.50%  Research and development,
(MMERBEERLR) liability company up capital of design and manufacturing
RMB1,300,000 of optical transmission
network equipment and
software products for
Gigabit-Capable Passive
Optical Network and
Ethernet Passive Optical
Network communication
MNERBEERAT hE/EREELA i AMRGRER e REARBETAERK

AR 1,300,0007T

BRRCABERLER
RERE EERRR
REREHER
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

Particulars of

4. WEAR(E)

issued
Place of and fully paid Percentage of equity
incorporation/Type Place of  share capital/ interests held
Name of subsidiaries of legal entity operation registered capital by the Company Principal activities
AMALLE/ BRARMR ARF
WEARER EEERER Bk  RE/amEkEs FisRABERA L IERK
Directly Indirectly
E# 3
Qingdao Jiashengtai Technology ~ The PRC/Limited The PRC Registered capital — 51%  One-stop solution, including

Services Co. Ltd *
(EEERFNREBARA
7))

ERRERHRRBERLA

Wealth-Depot
(BENABISRBARAR)

RE
BNABIZREARAT

liability company

hE/BRELL

The PRC/Limited
liability company

hE/BRELL

of US$2,000,000
and paid-

up capital of
US$400,000

hE & 42,000,000
ETRERER
400,000% 7T

The PRC Registered capital

RMB30,000,000
(2017:
RMB7,296,000)
and paid-
up capital of
RMB7,296,000
(note iv)

mE HRERARE
30,000,000 7T
(Z5—tf:
ARE7,296,000
) RERER
ARE7,296,000
T(hitiv)

Unless stated otherwise, the percentage of equity interests
held by the Company for the years ended 31 December 2018

and 2017 are the same.

* The official names are in Chinese and the English names are translated

for identification purpose only.

174 RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

but not limited to
marketing research,
software design, IT
solution and strategic
business consultation
and development,
to companies in the
commodities industry in
the PRC
MREAFERTXL AAR
f-uABARR B
BARRTSRERE -
Bkt BRI
TERRBEBTAR
Gk

— 83%  Design and manufacture of
the standard returnable
radio-frequency
identification smart bins,
implementation of smart
warehouse and smart
logistics solution

Bapiesa-nhhipt
FIEEnS  ENEE
BRRBENRIER
S

BRIEREER  SUAQRTREE=S
—NER=ZF—tF+-_A=+—H1t
FEFEHRRBRAEZADL -

* B AAR AL - B RERREMAE
bill s
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Holders of deferred shares have no rights to vote at general meetings
or receive any dividend. Upon winding up, they are entitled to one half
of the balance of the company’s assets after HK$100,000,000,000 has
been distributed to holders of ordinary shares.

The remaining registered share capital of RMB8,860,000 are committed
by non-controlling shareholders to inject on or before 31 December
2020.

Share premium of RMB5,625,000 has been transferred to the registered
capital during the year.

The remaining registered capital of RMB18,844,320 and RMB3,859,680
are committed by the Group and non-controlling shareholders
respectively to inject on or before 11 September 2045.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

REUH®

—NFE1+-H=

3 B1F ¢/§

. WEARE

B E

@i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BIERDZIHAEABRTIREAS FRE -
TRER MRS, o E5 8K - ZARIE
EE# 100,000,000,000 7 JT # & %t AR 5k
FEBRZFEA  MHBEZ —FHELER
MZHEAEE -

H g M A A R % 8,860,000 7T A FEIE IR
BER-T_EF+_A=+—BHZAE
)\o

B& 17 % B A R ¥ 5,625,000 7T B A AN F € 8
BEEMEAN -

HHEFMERARE 18,844,320 AR
#£ 3,859,680 7T Al 1 A 5 B I SE 12 AR AR 3R
REZTEAFAA+T—BRZANEA ©

EMNBRAANBE_Z-—N\FE_F
—tF+ A=t ALFERNEME
B EEACHITEEER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 F 3k

175



176

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RRME
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

material non-controlling interests (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to
Next Concept Group and Easy Talent and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Easy Talent Group”) that
have material NCI. The summarised financial information
represents amounts before inter-company eliminations.

14.

MRS A = (&)
BEEANEAFEZERESZHEARZ
MBER
TRETERBABEAFEREaE
SEEMESNENBARGHENE S
KW ZEH - YHEHBREIR R RIME
HHEHAT 2 BEE -

Next Concept Group

2018 2017
2% —T—tf

Proportion of NCI's ownership IR R 2 B R L
interests 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THBT FHET
Current assets MENEE 184,322 361,961
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,703 90,542
Current liabilities mEBeE (176,240) (21,340)
Non-current liabilities EMBEE — (21,253)
Net assets BEFE 10,785 409,910
Carrying amount of NC| FEVERR a2 IR 2 BE 5,285 200,856

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

14. EBAT(E)
BEEREAFEREZZHELATZ

material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (Continued) BB R ()
2018 2017
=t Bt —F—t%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue & 8,070 193,232
(Loss) Profit for the year FR(EE)REF (101,164) 154,821
Total comprehensive (loss) income X2 (E18) Y A 4258
for the year (119,219) 174,437
(Loss) Profit attributable to NCI SREBRIEERRER 2 (BB ) & (49,570) 66,457
Dividends paid to NCI B EERER CRE 137,154 —
Net cash flows (used in) generated (AR kEa ™ 3|&E 2
from: BemEFE .
Operating activities RS (3,212) 116,275
Investing activities WEFE 10,934 12,338
Financing activities BEEH (189,382) 5,943
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interests (“NCI"”) (Continued)

14.

R E(E)
FEEBEAFERERS ZWELAZ
BB ER ()

Easy Talent Group

BE55HE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ET—F

Proportion of NCI's ownership RS B EA
interests L 34.21% 33.86%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THBT FHET
Current assets MENEE 275,349 328,094
Non-current assets ERBEE 35,864 38,073
Current liabilities mEBeE (59,879) (63,964)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (1,742) (2,408)
Net assets BESE 249,592 299,795
Carrying amount of NCI RS 2 IR £ R 85,376 101,523

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %
14. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 14. MBQR (&)
Financial information of subsidiaries with individually BEENERFEREZZHMBEARZ
material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) (Continued) BB R ()
Easy Talent Group
BE2EH

Post-acquisition

Year ended period ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

BZE Bz

—E-N\F —ET—tF

+=A=+-B +-A=t-A
LEE R

HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAT
Revenue U %5 179,021 220,010
(Loss) Profit for the year/period FRHR(ER)ER (36,903) 9,201
Total comprehensive (loss) income FRHRNEE(EIR) A @5
for the year/period (53,186) 26,423
(Loss) Profit attributable to NCI BRI 2 (518 ) a7 (13,758) 3,289
Dividends paid to NCI B FEERER 2 RE = —
Net cash flows (used in) generated (AR E F3|&EZ
from: WEMEFHE
Operating activities R (3,561) 59,532
Investing activities WEEE (5.016) (2,419)
Financing activities A& EED (1,360) (502)
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TR EEEE

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 15.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+&F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt aE FEx FAT
Listed equity securities in Hong REB LM ZBRAFZS
Kong, at fair value BEAFE 18(a) — 48,997
Unlisted equity securities in a private A& IEINTMAELZ FLA
limited company incorporated BR AR IE LR
outside Hong Kong, at cost T IR AN 16 — 247,500
Unlisted equity securities in a private REBBINTMMALZ FLA
partnership incorporated outside BBLEZIELTRA
Hong Kong, at cost BH LR 18(f) = 17,289
— 313,786

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the
Group has designated the unlisted equity securities in a
private limited company incorporated outside Hong Kong
as financial assets designated at FVOCI and reclassified the
listed equity securities in Hong Kong and unlisted partnership
investments as financial assets at FVPL.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

RZF-N\F-A—-BRBEEVBER
SEAFIOWRE - ARBEIIEENETER
SNEM RS Z FRABR AR Z FE LM AR
AEFREENEMLEZERAZRFE
BREZHBEE  ABNEB LW
AEFLIFLTABREDELSN AR
RIEAFEREZVBEE -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # % = F— /| 4+= = —BIFFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

16. EEREMR2EARARATEE

BeMBEEE
2018 2017
—g-NF —EtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT AT

Unlisted equity securities in a private

limited company incorporated outside BRAEZIEEHRA
Hong Kong FH

The balance represents the Group’s equity interests in Co-
Lead Holdings Limited (“Co-Lead”), a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liabilities. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group held 10.77% equity interests in Co-Lead which
was included in available-for-sale financial assets as set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Due
to the allotment of new shares to other investors during
2018, the Group's equity interests in Co-Lead were diluted
from 10.77% to 8.58%. The principal activity of Co-Lead is
investment holding.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, a decrease in
fair value of HK$34,239,000 (2017: HK$Nil) in Co-Lead was
recognised in fair value reserve (non-recyling). The fair value
of Co-Lead was determined by Access Partner Consultancy
& Appraisals Limited (“Access Partner”), an independent
valuer, which was based on the price-to-net book value
("P/B") ratios of the comparable companies and adjusted
by minority discounts at end of the reporting period and is
catrgorised within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

No investment in financial assets designated at FVOCI has
been disposed of during the year. There was no transfers
of any cumulative gain or loss arising from financial assets
designated at FVOCI within equity during the current year.

REBEBRINEMALZ A

233,261 —

ZEREAEEN BN REBELHS
AL 2 BBR A & Co-Lead Holdings
Limited ([ Co-Lead |) Z fx ANz o A=
T—t+tF+-A=+—H AEEHEH
Co-lead 2 10.77% IR A #e 2 - B 5 A
BAMBRRWEISHE 2 AHEE
PIEEE - AR Co-lead R = — N\F
EMEMEEERENR  WAEER
Co-lead 2 R Az 10.77% EH =
8.58% ° Co-lead 2 T 2 X B /IR EE

Bt o

REEZZT—\F+A=+—HIEF
J€ - Co-Lead 2z A F1HEIRE 2> 34,239,000
B ZE—tF  TET)ERATFE
HE(TEHDE)FHER - Co-lead 2
N ERB A ER R BN RS
ERARI(IERE]EFE - WWHREA
BUHRAFNMERERA 2HIRE -
Wt b BERTEELARME - BB
SERATEEER =52 -

AEEHELEFFEECANEMEEEK
ANBRANFEREBZVBEE - NFERE
mANEREMEEBARA T EEE
2B ERE S 2 A 25U sk g
B o
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eV RRME |

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

17. INVENTORIES 17. 78

2018 2017
—E-N\E IE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Raw materials E MR 111,939 94,523
Work-in-progress E&m 33,660 27,286
Finished goods SR Oh 56,236 35,510
201,835 157,319
At end of the reporting period, all inventories, excluding RMERERE - RIEEAEAZILEET
those fully provided for with nil carrying value, are stated at REHBEBEZEFEIN  ETEHIRK

cost. R o

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

GEUMBBRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %7 = ZF—/\F+_-H=

18. RERRZEAFTEREE 2K

— Bt FE

PROFIT OR LOSS EE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B3t FET FET
Held for trading BIEEE
Equity securities listed in Hong BB I TIRARRE S
Kong (a) 1,696,636 2,561,686
Equity securities listed outside BRI ETRAE S
Hong Kong (a) — 3,042
Bonds listed outside Hong Kong BB ET 2 EFH (a) 348,765 —
Others mandatorily measured at HAthsg fI RN B iR IZ AT
FVPL BEREET=
Equity-linked notes (the “ELN") BREHBRRE (b) (9) = 282,785
Wealth management products, MEEEEM FFLm
unlisted (0 (9) 55,565 449,998
Unlisted equity securities in RBEBRINEMA L 2
a private limited company FABRRAFIZIEE
incorporated outside Hong MR ZE %
Kong (d) 136,212 —
Unlisted equity securities in REATMEK S ZFLA
a private limited company BRARIZIEET
incorporated in Hong Kong N (e) 25,693 —
Unlisted partnership investments FELEMERIRE (f) 20,285 —
2,283,156 3,297,511
Analysed as: DR
Current portion mENE 2,262,871 3,297,511
Non-current portion IEmE S 20,285 —
2,283,156 3,297,511
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eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The fair values of listed equity securities and listed bonds are based on
quoted market prices in active markets at end of the reporting period.
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group has
reclassified the listed equity securities in Hong Kong of HK$48,997,000
included in available-for-sales financial assets as set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements as financial assets at FVPL.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fair value loss on
listed equity securities of HK$812,945,000 (2017: fair value gain of
HK$264,967,000) and listed bonds of HK$31,305,000 (2017: HK$Nil)
were recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of the ELN was determined by the issuer of the ELN,
based on the expected proceeds received from disposal of the
underlying securities at the quoted market prices at end of the
reporting period after deducting any accrued transaction costs.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fair value loss on the
ELN of HK$282,785,000 (2017: fair value gain of HK$11,665,000) was
recognised in profit or loss (note (g)).

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the unlisted wealth management
products comprise of unlisted funds and financial products.

As at 31 December 2018, these unlisted wealth management products
were subscribed from (i) a company registered and approved by
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong; and (i) a bank in
the PRC (2017: (i) a company registered and approved by the Asset
Management Association of China; (ii) a company registered and
approved by Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong; and
(i) certain banks in the PRC. These products were redeemable at the
discretion of the Group from time to time and the intention of holding
them was for short-term investment. Included in these products,
HK$22,875,000 (2017: HK$258,924,000) and HK$32,690,000 (2017:
HK$53,795,000) were denominated in RMB and US$ respectively.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

18, REHIERATERE S
B (4

MeE

(@ LETRABHERETESFZATFEDERR
EHAERALERMISABRZMETE - 1
—E-N\F- A RENE BN ERE AR
FBINE  AEBEE B AREMBRERN
aftSFﬁéXﬂ tHEMBEEZES TR

## 48,997,000/ 8 TEF D EZIEAR
ta SRR DN FERIE 2 M EE »

RBE-_E—\F+_A=1+—HILLFE "
ETIRARE 2 A FEEHE 812,945,000 %8
JT(=F — £ F : A FE R 264,967,000
77t ) & k™ & %31,305,000%8 T(ZF
—F  TETT)BERBRIRPER -

(b) BEHMAZEZATEAREAOREET
AERHEMERBILTISRE L SHBZE
2 At BTSSR - SRR E A AT 52
DAL -

REE_Z—\F+_A=+—HILFE"
%R AN 4R 2 X (A E5 18 282,785,000 8
T(ZZ—+F : A TFERE 11,665,000
TU)ERBEIRFER (M () °

(0) RZE-—NERZT—tF+_A=+—
B LT EEEEREEFLTEER
Eﬁf%guu ©

—N\FE+=ZA=+—8  %ZSkLm
M) BB REEBER R
BRI ZAF  K(i)PE
— M4 ETT(f S—HF () HEELDRL
HEFREESERGRAZAT : (i) —
HEERREEEB SR EEHEREZE
ERAZAF Ri)PESE TRTRE -
ZEEMAAAEBTERNIEED - §EE
REBIRERA - ZFEmT 22,875,000
7L (= % — 4+ 4 : 258,924,000 7T ) &
32,690,000 70(= % — £ 4 : 53,795,000
BT DBIAAREE RETEE ©

oo o
R BE |

v
/




18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

The fair values of these products were reported and provided by the
fund managers and the banks. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the fair value loss on these products of HK$291,779,000 (2017:
fair value gain of HK$8,107,000) was recognised in profit or loss (note
(g) for the fair value loss of HK$270,655,000 for certain unlisted funds).

In August 2018, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
Satinu Resources Group Limited (“Satinu”), a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liabilities, pursuant to which the Group
shall acquire 2.11% equity interests in Satinu at a consideration of
HK$175,000,000 by issuing Promissory Notes J (as hereinafter defined
in note 26). The fair value of the Promissory Notes J was determined
by APAC. The principal activities of Satinu are provision of integrated
financial services, securities brokerage services, money lending,
securities and other direct investments.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fair value loss of
HK$35,028,000 (2017: HKS$Nil) in respect of the investments in Satinu
was recognised in profit or loss. The fair value of the equity interests
in Satinu was determined by Access Partner, which based on the P/B
approach and adjusted by minority discounts at end of the reporting
period and is categorized within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

In August 2018, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
Simagi Finance Company Limited (“Simagi”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability, pursuant to which the Group
shall acquire 11.63% equity interests in Simagi at a consideration of
HK$50,000,000 by issuing Promissory Notes K (as hereinafter defined
in note 26). Due to the allotment of new shares to other investors,
the Group's equity interests in Simagi were diluted to 10.10% at end
of the reporting period. The fair value of the Promissory Notes K was
determined by APAC. The principal activity of Simagi is engaging in
money lending business.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fair value loss of
HK$22,976,000 (2017: HK$Nil) in respect of the investments in Simagi
was recognised in profit or loss. The fair value of the equity interests in
Simagi was determined by Access Partner, which based on the price-to-
earning (“P/E") approach and adjusted by minority discounts at end of
the reporting period and is categorized within level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

'ﬁ-%“ & B 7% ¥R

Year ended 31 December 2018 é@%:;

—NFE1+-H=

18. RERERAVERE > UK
EE(E

Hiat : ()

(0)

(%)

ZEEMZATEHAESEERIFTRER
Rit- RBE-ZT— /\F+-_A=+—H1t
FE  ZEFEMmIATEEE291,779,000
B(ZZ—t4F : AFEES8,107,000%
TERBREFERE(9#EAR TR
FHES A FERIE270,655,00087T) °

I

RZ=ZZT—NFNA K& HE Hsatinu
Resources Group Limited ([ Satinu ] + —fE7 5
BRZESFMK L BRAR )T RE
Wk Bt AN E AR K (E 175,000,000
BLEBRETALREI(ERER T XM
26) Wi Satinu 2.11% R Az - R AEER
BIZAFEATZAETE - Satinuz T2)E
B REHRBRSMBRE EFCLRS - &
B B5REMEERE -

REE_Z—\G+_A=+—HILFE "
BRAR Satinuk & 2 X TF{EEE 35,028,000
BL(ZZ—tF: THET)BRBHEIKRP
TR o SatinuR AR 2 AT ERERERE
E MW TRE R RS SR BEATMIRE S
o WA BUESITRIELRAENE - HE
PERARATEEBRII=T=F -

RZZE—NF /A K%K E HSimagi
Finance Company Limited ([Simagi] © —
EREBIMALZABRAR )T LRE
Wk - R - AN SR B ZE 42 (K 850,000,000
BLBEBRBETEALEBRK(EER T X
26) W B Simagi 11.63% AX A fE 25 - @ R
SimagiM E MR EERFEHR - WAEE
RSimagiz RAERHEEEREHERA
210.10% ° A HREKZ A FEHRIAE
T o Simagi 2 E BEB AR BEEER -

REBEE-_Z-NF+_A=+—HLHF
E BB RSmagiREZAFEER
22,976,000 BT (—ZF—+F : TEILIERN
B IRPHER © Simagi Az 2 A FER
TRIEEE  WWRBNRE SR B A
WREFE U BUESITEIELBER
EHEEOBAATEEBRAI=E -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # = —

e

E-NF+_A=1—HIFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

In March 2017, the Group entered into a subscription agreement with
an independent third party and agreed to contribute US$10,000,000
(representing approximately 5.69% of the committed capital of
the partnership at the date of subscription) in a private partnership
incorporated in the Cayman Islands (“Partnership Commitment”). As
at 31 December 2017, the Group held 4.59% of the committed capital
of the partnership which was included in available-for-sale financial
assets as set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, the Group has
reclassified the unlisted partnership investments of HK$17,289,000
as financial assets at FVPL and recognised a fair value loss of
HK$5,085,000 in retained profits at that date.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has further
contributed US$1,719,000 (equivalent to HK$13,492,000) (2017:
US$2,218,000 (equivalent to HK$17,289,000)) and held 4.59% of the
committed capital of the partnership as at 31 December 2018. The
remaining Partnership Commitment will be contributed by installments
requested by the general partner of the partnership upon at least 10
business days’ in advance written notice.

The fair value of the unlisted partnership investments was determined
by APAC, based on the asset approach and adjusted by minority
discounts at end of the reporting period and is categorised within
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the fair value loss on the unlisted partnership investments of
HK$3,135,000 (2017: HK$Nil) was recognised in profit or loss.

In late 2018, the Group was unable to contact the issuers, companies
registered and approved by the Asset Management Association of
China, for the redemption of the ELN and certain unlisted funds, and
noticed from the media that the issuers’ office in the PRC has not been
in operation. Subsequently, the Group is yet to receive any response of
the redemption matter. In view of such incidents have cast significant
doubt on the recoverability of the ELN and these unlisted funds, the
directors of the Company considered their fair values to be zero and
fair value loss on the ELN and unlisted funds of HK$282,785,000 and
HK$270,655,000 were recognised in profit or loss respectively.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

18, REHIERATERE S
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Notes to the Consolidated_Financial Statements

REVBHRRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 ﬁi* E—\E+ A= *ﬁﬁi/g
19. LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. ERER
Loans granted to borrowers are repayable according to BRABKR 2 EFARRBRERSRKE
repayment schedules. The balance comprises loan receivables B ABALBRBIERR TIZEZ EW
from: B
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ihy=2 FET FHET
Loan receivables BUE K 194,276 146,516
Less: Loss allowance B - TR 37(b) (44,667) (20,290)
149,609 126,226
Notes: Bt E
(@) At end of the reporting period, (1) loan receivables of HK$129,298,000 (a) RIEHEERB - (1) 129,298,000 7T 2
were unsecured, carried at fixed interest rate of ranging from 15% to BHRERAEER REETFMNENTI5
18% per annum (2017: HK$90,628,000 were unsecured, carried at EZ18EFE(=ZF—+%F : 90,628,000/
fixed interest rate of ranging from 10% to 18% per annum) and within T ERERAEER - REEFHENT
the respective maturity dates; (2) no loan receivables was secured 10EZ18EFB)AESEYEAE : )%
(2017: HK$31,981,000 was secured by listed securities with fair value EHEAERER(ZT—+F 31,981,000
amounted to HK$91,313,000, carried at fixed interest rate of 15% per BT 2 FEWE FRAR T E91,313,0008 T
annum and within its maturity date and HK$3,617,000 was secured, 2 EMESEERRIZETEFFE15EF
carried at fixed interest rate of 5% per annum and within its maturity B B 34 8 HA J2 3,617,000 7% T fE B X
date); and (3) remaining loan receivables of HK$64,978,000 (2017: BEER REETFANERSEFFERTE
HK$20,290,000) were unsecured, carried at fixed interest rate of #H) 5 K (3) 64,978,000 ﬁ(:%*t
ranging from 5% to 15% (2017: 5%) per annum and overdue. 4+ 20,290,000/ 7T ) 2 EHRERE R A
B REEFEFEN ?SEIBE(_;
—tF 5E)FEREBY -
(b) The loan receivables of HK$64,138,000 (2017: HK$122,609,000) and (b) 64,138,000 L(= & t¢ 122,609,000
HK$85,471,000 (2017: HK$3,617,000) were denominated in HK$ and 7 Jr ) 185,471,000 jt(=— T — + 4 :
RMB respectively. 3,617,000 7T ) 2 FEY ff?)h\/ﬁ?uwh’éx&)\
R#sHE -
(0) Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk and loss (0) FHAAEERERERFIEY 2 EERR R

allowance for loan receivables is included in note 37(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

ERBEER SN G MEMERME37(b)
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A B IS R R M EE ‘

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. 5K EKE

2018 2017
—E-N\E IE—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
M E FET FAET
Trade receivables B S EWRE
Trade receivables B 5N IE 452,323 613,335
Less: Loss allowance i HEEE 37(b) (134,483) (2,188)
(a) 317,840 611,147
Notes receivables EkEE (b) 2,337 2,720
Other receivables Hib e shE
Prepayments to suppliers [ FE P T~ 2 1B () 225,419 159,189
Prepayments TEfT IR 4,030 5,724
Deposits and other debtors & R H Ath FE AR 51 159,632 105,388
389,081 270,301
709,258 884,168
Notes: MizE -
(a) The ageing analysis of trade receivables, net of loss allowance, based (a) B S rEWFE(NBEEEHR)IREEFE
on the invoice date, is as follows: IEE DT -
2018 2017
—®-N\F N =
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH&xT FHT
Within 90 days 90X 212,906 435,504
91 - 180 days 91F 180K 9,858 33,261
181 - 365 days 181 7% 365K 25,534 59,390
Over 365 days 365 KA E 69,542 82,992
317,840 611,147
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20.

21.

22.

Notes to the Consolidated Financia| Statements

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
€)] (Continued)

The Group allows a credit period of 30 — 90 (2017: 30 — 90) days to its

customers.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for trade receivables is included in note 37(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b) Notes receivables were not past due at end of the reporting period and
will mature within 30 to 180 days (2017: 30 to 180 days).

(o) These prepayments to suppliers are unsecured, interest free and will be
used to offset against future purchases from suppliers.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

At end of the reporting period, the Group pledged
bank deposits amounting to HK$11,259,000 (2017:
HK$6,030,000) to banks to secure trade finance facilities
and banking facilities granted to subsidiaries. Deposits
amounting to HK$9,451,000 (2017: HK$4,820,000) have a
maturity period within one year and are therefore classified
as current assets. Deposits amounting to HK$1,808,000
(2017: HK$1,210,000) have a maturity period more than
one year and are therefore classified as non-current assets.
The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 0.3%
(2017: 0.35%)
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement

per annum as at 31 December 2018. The

of relevant trade finance facilities and banking facilities.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At end of the reporting period, the bank balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$315,835,000
(2017: HK$623,353,000). The government of the PRC has
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.

20.

21.

22.

GANBEREME

Year ended 31 December 2018 %fi‘%q —NF+=H=

— Bt EE

B5 R EMmBKE

BT - (48)

RIE (&)

(@ (&)

AEBKTFEEFIOEN(=ZZ—LF:
308 90) R ZIEEH -

ERASERMESEERRRE SRR
FERFE CEBBNGEE B ®RKRM T
37(b) °

(b) W ZE A SRS BAR AT AREE - 55730
Z180K(ZZF—+ % 308180k ) W E|
Hﬂ °

(0 ZEENHERZS Iﬁi%ﬂﬁﬂi =B R
AREERRARERRE S

EERRITEX
RREHERD  AEEMSZ KR
B R 1T 1F 311,259,000 jt( = &
— -+ % :6,030,0008C) tEAERTF
MBARESMEEFEERBITRE Z
4 29,451,000 (=T — £ F:
4,820,000870) 2 R EAR B — A -
At »E A REEE 1,808,000 7T
—F— 41,210,000 7T ) Z1F X
HRA—FUL B2 BRIERDE
E-RZZE-—N\F+A=1+—H B2
BERBRTERREEEMNEROIE(ZE
—tF:035E)FHE c EEHRTHF
FENEEE SRMEEERRITHELS
TEIRERRRR o

RITEERRS

RREBERA - AEEBUARKEEAE
2 R 1T #5717 /315,835,000 (= &
—+4% 1 623,353,000 7T) ° FEEAT
EEBINEES - MEZEFESELR
B 78 52 PR B AR B IR T e 02 B 5 PR )
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A B IS R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. B RHEMENRE

2018 2017

—E-N\E IE—+F

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
(= FET FET

Trade payables to third parties E=FEFEMNHE (a) 215,548 209,963

Notes payables EAEE 25,824 —

Other payables HAb R RIE

Accrued charges EErER 87,582 109,546

Amount due to a non-controlling FET— R IEEIRAR R FUIR

shareholder — 6,004

Interest payables FETFIE 32 31,364 26,392

Other creditors H i FEFIR IR (b) 51,635 29,141

Trade deposits received BWE SiEe (0) 36,571 34,213

207,152 205,296
448,524 415,259

Notes: BiRE -

(@) The credit period of trade payables is normally within 90 (2017: 90) (@) EBIENHBEZEEH-—KRNO(ZT—+
days. The ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice F:90)RAER - BEHEMNFIAKREER
date is as follows: HZREDTIT ¢

2018 2017

—2-nE T Y

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH&xT T

Within 90 days 90 K 169,219 199,469
91 - 180 days 91Z 180K 5,648 3,047
181 - 365 days 1815 365K 13,064 1,999
Over 365 days 365 KA E 27,617 5,448
215,548 209,963
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAMBBRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 ﬁ§i§7/1¢+jﬁ5 fﬁﬁfi/;?

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

23. ESREMENZEE)

Notes: (Continued) sk : (48)

(b)  The balance included amounts due to the Selling Shareholder B (b) EHZEHRBEERNERBEBZHE(EERT
(as hereinafter defined in note 29(b) to the consolidated financial X4R A BT RARMITE 29(b)) 33,360,0008 7T
statements) of HK$33,360,000 (2017: HKS$Nil). (ZZ—+tF - T#)

() The balance represents the contract liabilities from contracts with () RERENREHERBREEAMBRE
customers within HKFRS 15 at end of the reporting period and the EBFISHEARPII N ZANELEZAN
movements (excluding those arising from increases and decreases both B MAWBERFAZEB(TERER
occurred within the same year) of the contract liabilities during the year R—FEBNERIEEZEB)NAT
are as follows:

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

FExT

At 1 January n—A—H 34,213
Recognised as revenue R R E (34,684)
Receipt of advances or recognition of receivables L B 38 5 32 1+ 5 HEBR B WU ZR TE 38,985
Exchange realignment FE 5 % (1,943)
At 31 December W+—_A=+—H 36,571

As at 31 December 2018, all contract liabilities are expected to be
settled within next 12 months.

RZE-NF+ZA=+—8 EHMEA&
Ha/RNARK12EAREN -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

24. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 24. GTEBE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —LtF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B3t FET FAET
Bank borrowings, unsecured and BITEE - BERK
guaranteed BER (a) 28,405 5,103
Bank borrowings, secured and RITIEE - BEAR
unguaranteed mER (b) 14,801 11,707
Bank borrowings, secured and RITHE - BEFR
guaranteed BER () 200,000 27,616
Margin loans, secured and FRER  BEAR
unguaranteed YRR (d) 685,499 425,079
Loan from a third party, unsecured R E—HZE=HF2EH
and unguaranteed IR R (e) 5,000 5,000
Loans from financial institutions, REMBHEE 2 BN
secured and guaranteed BEARBER (f) 391,000 250,000
Obligations under finance leases MEHEE (9) 279 433
1,324,984 724,938
The maturity of the interest-bearing &t B &8 2 2|H1E R
borrowings are as follows: LU
Within 1 year —FRN 1,324,863 724,659
2 to 5 years —ERF 121 279
1,324,984 724,938
Portion classified as current liabilities D ARBEAEBZ D (1,324,863) (724,659)
Non-current portion FEmENEE D 121 279
Analysis of the amount due based ERERBEMETER]
on scheduled payment dates B Z B ERIB AT
set out in the loan agreements (W@ET—HZEEIF“ 2
(ignoring the effect of any BRzZ2)IAT
repayment on demand clause) is
as follows:
Within 1 year —FR 1,324,863 474,659
2 to 5 years —EHRF 121 250,279
1,324,984 724,938
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INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Bank borrowings, unsecured and guaranteed

The bank borrowings were denominated in RMB (2017: RMB) and
carried interest (i) at the prevailing interest rate of loan prime rate
plus 178 basis points; (ii) at prevailing interest rate of loan prime rate
plus 0.55%; or (iii) at fixed rate of ranging of 5.655% to 8% per
annum (2017: prevailing interest rate of loan prime rate plus 135.50
basis points). At end of the reporting period, (i) bank borrowings of
HK$5,180,000 were guaranteed by non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary; (i) bank borrowings of HK$5,009,000 were guaranteed by
a director of a subsidiary, non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary
and a third party; (iii) bank borrowings of HK$6,831,000 were
guaranteed by a subsidiary; and (iv) bank borrowings of HK$11,385,000
were guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the Company and
a third party (2017: HK$5,103,000 were guaranteed by a director of a
subsidiary and non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary). The bank
borrowings are wholly repayable within one year.

Bank borrowings, secured and unguaranteed

The bank borrowings were denominated in RMB (2017: RMB) and
carried interest (i) at the loan prime rate plus 0.475%; or (ii) at
fixed rate of 5.655% per annum (2017: (i) the loan prime rate plus
1.4% per annum; or (i) at fixed rate of 5.655% per annum). At
end of the reporting period, (i) bank borrowings of HK$5,693,000
(2017: HK$5,007,000) were secured by the Group's property, plant
and equipment; and (ii) bank borrowings of HK$9,108,000 (2017:
HK$6,700,000) were secured by certain trade receivables. The bank
borrowings are wholly repayable within one year.

Bank borrowings, secured and guaranteed

The bank borrowings carried interest at The Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR") plus 4.6% per annum (2017: (i) at the
prevailing interest rate of loan prime rate plus 170.30 basis points;
(i) at fixed rate of 5.655% per annum; or (iii) at the loan prime rate
plus 1.52% per annum). The bank borrowings were secured by the
charges over the entire issued share capital in certain subsidiaries of the
Company, guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the Company
(2017: bank borrowings of HK$6,003,000 were secured by certain
trade receivables and guaranteed by the Company, non-controlling
shareholders and directors of a subsidiary; and the remaining bank
borrowings of HK$21,613,000 were secured by pledged bank deposits
and guaranteed by a director of a subsidiary). The bank borrowings are

wholly repayable within one year.

Included in bank borrowings, HK$Nil (2017: HK$27,616,000) were
denominated in RMB.

24.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # = —

e

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

24. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Margin loans, secured and unguaranteed

The margin loans were secured by certain listed equity securities
held under the securities margin account, with a total market
value of HK$1,523,247,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:
HK$1,561,083,000). These loans carried interest rate of (i) ranging from
5.125% to 12% per annum; or (ii) at prime rate plus 2.5% per annum
(2017: ranging from 3% to 8.25% per annum) and are repayable on
demand.

Loan from a third party, unsecured and unguaranteed

The loan due to an independent third party is unsecured, carried
interest rate of 9% per annum (2017: 9% per annum) and are

repayable within one year.

Loans from financial institutions, secured and guaranteed

The loans due to financial institutions of HK$250,000,000 is secured
by 203,854,292 share of Enterprise Development, guaranteed by the
controlling shareholder of the Company and carried interest rate at
The Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited (“BOCHK")'s HK$ prime
rate plus 2% per annum (2017: the same). The loan is due in July
2019 (2017: July 2019) pursuant to the loan agreement. The loan
agreement contains clauses which give the lender the right at its sole
discretion to demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Company has complied with the covenants and met the
scheduled repayment obligations, and therefore the loan was classified
as current liabilities in 2017 even though the directors of the Company
do not expect that the lender would exercise their rights to demand
repayment.

The remaining loans due to financial institutions of HK$141,000,000
(2017: HK$NIl) is secured by a securities account, with a total market
value of HK$451,396,000 as at 31 December 2018, guaranteed by the
controlling shareholder of the Company and carried at fixed rate of

6.625% per annum. The loans are wholly repayable within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %7 = ZF—/\F+_-H=

24. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (Continued) 24.

Notes: (Continued)

Obligations under finance leases

e B %W

— Bt FE

AEEEE)

BT - (48)

(g) MEBEER

Present value of minimum lease

Minimum lease payments payments
BEHEENR BREAENRERE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—tF —Z-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET FET FA&T
Amount payable & RRIE
Within one year —&FR 164 164 145 154
In the second to fifth years E-EZERF(BREE
inclusive EME) 122 286 134 279
286 450 279 433
Future finance charges ARBEER (7) (17)
Present value of lease HEBKRE
obligations 279 433
Amount due for settlement R12{E R AR EFEZ
within 12 months &% 158 154
Amount due for settlement R12{ERBREEEZ
after 12 months &% 121 279
279 433

The obligations under finance leases are interest-bearing at 1.45%
(2017: 1.45%) per annum and are repayable in monthly instalments

with the final instalment due in April 2020.

MEMERBRFMNE145E(ZFT—+
Fo145E)FE - ASADPEE &
—HERN _ZT_ZFOAFHE -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

25. DEFERRED TAXATION 25. EEHE

The following is the analysis of major deferred taxation assets AT AREEMEREERERIEEE
(liabilities) recognised by the Group and movement thereon: (BE)MEEH 25
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 3,828 1,009
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIRAE (4,609) (26,528)
(781) (25,519)
Allowance
for trade
and other Fair value
receivables adjustments Others Total
B 5 RkHAd AFE
FEW R IB IR ik Hith Hh st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F
—H—H 549 (30,518) — (29,969)
Additions — acquisition of & — UEEMNTE
subsidiaries UNC] — (2,865) 377 (2,488)
Credited to profit or loss 5T A1BZEIR 6 6,855 — 6,861
Exchange realignments b H F R 41 — 36 77
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+t%F
and 1 January 2018 TZA=+—BRK
(previously stated) —E-N\F
—HA—H
GBEZRTY)) 596 (26,528) 413 (25,519)
Effect on adoption of RINE B EmE
HKFRS 9 (note 2) HRE KB
(MisE2) 2,986 — — 2,986
At 31 December 2017 R-T—+F
and 1 January 2018 +-—A=+—HEF
(restated) —E-N\E
—A—H(&E5) 3,582 (26,528) 413 (22,533)
Credited to profit or loss  FF AIEZIR
(note 8) (PF5E8) 42 21,919 — 21,961
Exchange realignments PE A % (190) — (19) (209)
At 31 December 2018 R=-FE—N\E
+= H +—H 3,434 (4,609) 394 (781)
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Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

25. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At end of the reporting period, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$2,386,821,000 (2017:
HK$555,725,000) available for offsetting against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The expiry dates of unrecognized tax losses are as
follows:

REUH®

— Bt ﬁf/xg

25. EIERIE(Z)

RIBERERA - AEEBRBRNIEA

[E718 492,386,821 ooo,%ru(_ —+
fF : 555,725,000 0 ) A K 8 K
R F) o EiaﬁAfkadE/ﬁlJﬂ%X/mfrlJX/,u

BB ZERAEERDELH AL

E - RERZHBEEBRZIHAWT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Tax losses without expiry date WA 2 HIEEE 2,374,434 555,725
Tax losses expiring on 31 December RZ-ZEZ=F+=H=+—HE|H

2023 Z IR EE 12,387 —

2,386,821 555,725

The accumulated profits of HK$181,459,000 (2017:
HK$527,707,000) from certain PRC subsidiaries would be
subject to additional tax if they are distributed. No deferred
tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of the accumulated
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, these accumulated profits, at the present time,
are retained for financing the continuing operations of the
entities and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future.

HETHBEMHERRZ R EF
181,459,000 7t(= T — £ %F:
527,707,000 8 70) i Ik - BN
BINRIE - MR AR RIEHZEWNBER
RAIZIREBR BARFIEERA%RS
,\qu/m*'JE AIRBIEZEMB AR 2
Bregds TERARBERIIE ¥
ﬂmmtnJEE%?%W%UBMEHZWE

ERELEHRIERAE -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

26. PROMISSORY NOTES E(R B
Debt Deferred
component day-one gain Total
BB ELEE H K= st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT FHEIT
At 1 January 2017 R-ZT—+4F
—H—H 964,793 33,256 998,049
Fair value of promissory notes 227774 H ZE A1)
issued at the inception date wBHEB 2 AFE 452,791 — 452,791
Day-one gain of newly EBITEALEERY]
issued promissory notes at 1R S R R 1B = IR A
inception not recognised in o= R= €
profit or loss — 11,709 11,709
Interest charged for the year FRFEZE 76,462 — 76,462
Interest payable on promissory &t AH {th B FIE 2
notes included in other EHERERNTE
payables (39,617) — (39,617)
Amortisation of deferred B B W B SE
day-one gain — (20,479) (20,479)
Set-off with contingent I SH RS AR AE
consideration receivables (173,851) — (173,851)
Settlement ®wE (565,240) — (565,240)
At 1 January 2018 MZZE—N\F
—H—H 715,338 24,486 739,824
Fair value of promissory notes B 2 17& X ZE AT
issued at the inception date WAz AFEE 219,909 — 219,909
Interest charged for the year FRFEZT
(note 5(a)) (Mf3E5(a)) 53,067 — 53,067
Interest payable on promissory & AE M FENFUIE 2
notes included in other A R RN R B
payables (note 32) (BF5E32) (39,093) — (39,093)
Amortisation of deferred day-  JEIT & H W
one gain (note 3(b)) (F33E3(b)) — (11,070) (11,070)
Settlement wE (226,000) — (226,000)
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-—N\F
+=HA=+—H 723,221 13,416 736,637
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %
26. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued) 26. ARRE(E)

2018 2017
—E-N\E TE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

The maturity of the promissory AL ER 2 B EER AT

notes is as follows:

Within 1 year —FR 645,975 199,881
2 to 5 years —ZRF 85,662 534,943
Over 5 years HEMNUE 5,000 5,000
736,637 739,824
Portion classified as current liabilities D 4EAREBEZ D (645,975) (199,881)
Non-current portion e ENEB S 90,662 539,943

Promissory Notes A, Promissory Notes B, Promissory
Notes F, Promissory Notes G, Promissory Notes H and
Promissory Notes |

In prior years, the Group issued several promissory
notes (“Promissory Notes A”, “"Promissory Notes
B”, “"Promissory Notes F”, “Promissory Notes G”,
“"Promissory Notes H” and “Promissory Notes 1")
of HK$80,000,000, HK$400,000,000, HK$8,000,000,
HK$1,500,000, HK$5,000,000 and HK$450,000,000, at
5% interest rate per annum with 7 years of maturity, at
6% interest rate per annum with 2 years of maturity, at
6% interest rate per annum with 4 years of maturity, at
6% interest rate per annum with 5 years of maturity, at
6% interest rate per annum with 7 years of maturity and at
6% interest rate per annum with 2 years of maturity from
the date of issue respectively, to several independent third
parties.

EARBA ZAAREB - AAREF -
EARBG  AARBHRELREREI

RBEEFEE REHBZETD A
80,000,000 7T * 400,000,000 % JT -
8,000,000/ 7T * 1,500,000% 7T °
5,000,000% 7T & 450,000,000 7T 2
ZHERAEBR(RLEEBA]  [RZLE
BB [AREEEF]  [ARHEEEG]:
[AREBHIREARLEREI]) TEEE
NE=ZT  RARBARFERNESE
T REABITHEEI M TR -
EHEEREBIRFFNECEET KNEE
TR MM ERRE - AN EEBF
REMNEEIEIT REBETABRE
mPOFER R AN ERGIRFN X6
[E34T - REBETHBE R AFEL
B AHLEBRHEFEMNERcERT B
FRET AR M FR R - MR
SRR FNE6ERT - RAEITHEH
REET M M B R o
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

26. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued) 26. AAEE(E)

Promissory Notes A, Promissory Notes B, Promissory
Notes F, Promissory Notes G, Promissory Notes H and
Promissory Notes | (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, interest expenses
on Promissory Notes A, Promissory Notes B, Promissory Notes
F, Promissory Notes G, Promissory Notes H and Promissory
Notes | of HK$9,686,000, HK$Nil, HK$480,000, HK$90,000,
HK$300,000 and HK$32,746,000 (2017: HK$8,900,000,
HK$18,221,000, HK$412,000, HK$48,000, HK$50,000 and
HK$13,642,000); and amortisation of deferred day-one gain
on Promissory Notes A, Promissory Notes B and Promissory
Notes | of HK$5,050,000, HK$Nil and HK$5,854,000 (2017:
HK$5,049,000, HK$4,804,000 and HK$1,982,000) were
recognised in profit or loss respectively.

The Promissory Notes B of HK$400,000,000 matured and
was fully settled in 2017.

Promissory Notes C

In January 2016, the Group issued promissory notes of
HK$200,000,000 in aggregate at 4% interest rate per
annum with 2 years of maturity from the date of issue to
a financial institution in Hong Kong (“Promissory Notes
C"). Promissory Notes C is guaranteed by the controlling
shareholder of the Company and secured by the charges over
the entire issued share capital in certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, interest
expenses on Promissory Notes C of HK$2,038,000 (2017:
HK$16,978,000); and amortisation of deferred day-one gain
on Promissory Notes C of HK$166,000 (2017: HK$8,644,000)
were recognised in profit or loss.

The Promissory Notes C of HK$200,000,000 matured and
was fully settled during the year.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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26. PROMISSORY NOTES (Continued)

Promissory Notes D and Promissory Notes E

In connection with the acquisition of 51% equity interests
in Next Concept Group in April 2016, the Group issued
two promissory notes (“Promissory Notes D" and
“Promissory Notes E”) of HK$165,240,000 each to the
selling shareholders of Next Concept Group as part of the
acquisition consideration. Promissory Notes D and Promissory
Notes E were issued at interest rate per annum of 3% and
matured on 30 April 2017 and 30 April 2018 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no interest
expenses on Promissory Notes D and Promissory Notes E
(2017: HK$6,998,000 and HK$11,213,000) were recognised
in profit or loss respectively as the Promissory D and
Promissory Notes E were fully settled in 2017.

Promissory Notes J and Promissory Notes K

In connection with the acquisition of financial assets at FVPL
in August 2018 as set out in note 18(d) and 18(e) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group issued two
promissory notes (“Promissory Notes J” and “Promissory
Notes K”) of HK$175,000,000 and HK$50,000,000 to
Satinu and Simagi respectively as subscription consideration.
Promissory Notes J and Promissory Notes K were both issued
at 6.5% interest rate per annum with 1 year of maturity
from the date of issue.

At the issue dates, the fair value of Promissory Notes
J and Promissory Notes K were HK$171,240,000 and
HK$48,669,000 respectively on initial recognition and
measured based on the present value of their expected future
cash flows. In obtaining the present value, risk-adjusted
discount rate of 9.3% per annum were applied as an input.
The risk-adjusted discount rates were estimated by APAC
based on the interest rate of notes issuers with similar credit
rating of the Company. Subsequently, Promissory Notes J and
Promissory Notes K were measured at amortised cost by using
an effective interest method until extinguished on redemption.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, interest
expenses on Promissory Notes J and Promissory Notes K of
HK$5,847,000 and HK$1,880,000 were recognised in profit
or loss respectively.

Partial settlement of HK$26,000,000 in Promissory Notes J
was made during the year.

 BAMBR

— Bt FE

26. EHEE(E)

EHEEEDREALEREE

TR E—ARAFHAKRBESE
Ecs1%lkrAiExm AEEBETEA
165,240,000 7 7T 2 M 10 3 3 = 4R ([ &
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=R  (EABLWERE -

[y

REBEE-_Z—N\F+_-_A=+—B1IHF
B BARARZEDRARZEREER
TE—EFRELEE  AMEAKEED
RAHRZREMENSHAI(ZT—+t
% 16,998,000 7L & 11,213,000 78 7T)

AAEBIREAGZEEK

BERZZ—N\FNAKBERIERIK
REATERB HBEE(EBERAH
PR A B TS 3R 3% MY RE18(d) 2 18(e))
K £ & 5 Bl [ Satinu & Simagi # 17
175,000,000 7% 7t &% 50,000,000 7T 2
MEHLEBR((REER)RIARLE
BK])  ERRBRE - ANER) R
HREBKORFERN R65ERHIT N
fTHHARRET —FREEH -

RETHH RARBINEALR
BKRNTERAF 2 X FED IR
171,240,000 7% 7T } 48,669,000/ 7T
WRBERARRBE S REZHEMNE -
BHERRERESERFERIZIEZR
BRI R ATHR © Bl FHER
BERDDARBEARBEE 2 REHE
TAZHERGEEZRRARMGE - HiR -
AR RE ) AR REKRAERMN XX
REBHAAAE  BERBERREHER
ALk e

REEZZT—\F+ZA=+—HIEF
G AR ERIRAREEKZFERS
% 515,847,000 7% JT K& 1,880,000 JT
ERERIRER o

26,000,000/ 7T 2 % H E2EIE R F R

SN 4=
=] E%DE- ©
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

27. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

The group companies in Hong Kong participate in the MPF
scheme which is a defined contribution scheme managed
by independent trustees. The assets of the fund are held
separately from those of the group companies and are
managed by independent professional fund managers. Under
the MPF scheme, each of the companies (the employer)
and its employees make monthly contributions to the MPF
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the MPF legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 (2017: cap of
HK$1,500) and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. These subsidiaries
of the Group are required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

Contributions of approximately HK$34,354,000 (2017:
HK$29,152,000) were made during the year ended 31
December 2018.

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material

forfeited contribution available to reduce its contributions to
the retirement benefits scheme in future years.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

27.

REMHKEE

AEBEETEEB 2 ARBE2MNEES
FTE ZETEIDBRBLETAERE LR
EMFGTE - ZEGCEERAEERE
NElZBEDHRIER  THBUEER
PEBER - BREBERESHE - ERF
(BEx)RHEBBEREEBRSEMNMA
E o 5BEAMRESFEEHAESR
EEWAS% 2R - BREEZEA
MR ERA1,5008L(ZF —+F:
1,500 70) - HH 2 HRAE 8 Rt
g o

AEETENERR2EE STBERA
PramBElREBEARBHTEIZKE -
AEBZHBRABAMEARENGEE
BETEXRAZETEDLL - MERE
MES - AEBERANRKRENG 8 21
—BEERELEEHRMN -

REBREZ - Z—\F+-_A=+—
HIEFEED ZHF 44 34,354,000/5
T(=ZF—+4F 29,152,000 7T) °
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %
28. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 28. ENHARE

2018 2017
—E-N\E TE—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At beginning of the reporting period ¥R Ei %) 16,713 15,540
Fair value change N EZS (16,524) —
Settlement of profit guarantee EAREBLEE (5.718) —
Compensation from profit guarantee i FI|{# 55 85 (& 5,590 —
Exchange realignments ME 5, e B (61) 1,173
At end of the reporting period AEREELELRA — 16,713

In April 2016, the Group completed the acquisition of
75% equity interests in Lepei. As part and parcel of the
acquisition, the Group and the selling shareholders of
Lepei (the “Selling Shareholders A") entered into a
profit guarantee agreement (the “"PG Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group shall pay cash up to the
value of RMB4,898,000 (equivalent to HK$5,718,000) and
RMB9,477,000 (equivalent to HK$11,064,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and year ended 31 December
2018 respectively (“Lepei Compensation”), to the Selling
Shareholders A if the profits after taxation of Lepei for the
years ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 reached
RMB4,500,000 (equivalent to HK$5,346,000), RMB5,850,000
(equivalent to HK$6,950,000) and RMB7,605,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$9,036,000) respectively (the “Lepei
Profit Guarantee”). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, this profit guarantee is for the exchange of
control for Lepei and therefore considered as contingent
consideration payables.

MZZE—NEFMA - ANEE RS %
M75% IR Atz - (ERIEZ —H5 -
AEBHZEF  ERBRIERRE
ADRIM— 1 FIRE R - Bt - ngd
MEBEE—_ZT—-—RF - ZT—+tFR=F
—N\F+_A=+—BHILFEZKBRFE
i 9 Bl B A R # 4,500,000 7T (85
725,346,000/ 7t ) + A K ¥ 5,850,000
JT(#8 % 706,950,000 7T ) & A R #
7,605,000 T(HH % 7 #99,036,000%
) AASREAREBEE - —+tF+=
A=Z+—BLEFERBEZZT—N\F
+TZA=+—BLEFESRIRERRKEA
S EERS ARK 4,898,000 T(HHE
785,718,000 7T ) & A K 9,477,000
TL(FAZEH 11,064,000 7T ) 2 38 & ([ 4
mEsE D ([EMEMNRE]) - ARAE
ERE ZRMREBEARIBLEN 2
HliE - E R AR RARE -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

28. CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLES 28. ENRARREE)

(Continued)

If Lepei is not able to meet the Lepei Profit Guarantee,
the Selling Shareholders A have jointly and severally,
unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed to compensate
the Group, from deducting not more than RMB5,608,000
(equivalent to HK$6,663,000), RMB7,290,000 (equivalent
to HK$8,661,000) and RMB9,477,000 (equivalent to
HK$11,260,000) for the years ended 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 respectively from Lepei Compensation if
the profits after taxation of Lepei for the years ended 31
December 2016, 2017 and 2018 do not reach the guarantee
level. The additional consideration or compensation shall be
settled in cash.

In December 2018, the Group has paid additional
consideration of RMB4,898,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,718,000) to the Selling Shareholders A as the
accumulated profit after tax of Lepei for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2017 exceeded RMB10,350,000
(equivalent to HK$12,296,000).

Since the accumulated profit after tax of Lepei for the years
ended 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 was less than
RMB17,955,000 (equivalent to HK$21,332,000), the Group
considered that the Lepei Profit Guarantee was not met.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

s 8 M R EE B S s AR FE - RIERR
RERAE HERERIH - EEH RT
Tt’ﬁtfﬁiﬂ*%ﬁlﬁlﬁﬂ AR WA
iﬂ”ﬂ@i_é /\¢ S _‘EE&_
T N\F+_A=ZT—BHLEFEZHRH
B M AREERRBKRE BIgtEZE
ZE-REF 2t EFRZT-N\F
TZA=T—HIEFED R EMEEE
BT %N AR 5,608,000 (/8 %
76,663,000 7T ) + A K # 7,290,000
JL(#8 % 748,661,000 7T ) & A R ¥
9,477,000 7T (FBZ 74 11,260,000 75 7T) °
BEIMUERESEELIRS S -

R_ZE—N\F+_A AEBEAER
IR WAL EEINMCE AR 4,898,000
JL(HH & 75,718,000 7T ) 1E & 4 M
BHE-_Z—A"FrR-_T—+tF+=-A
= +t—HIEFEBBARK 10,350,000
TL(HHE12,296,000870) 2 2Tk
Bim A o

HREMBEE_T—~"F —_T—tF
MNZZ2-N\F+_A=t—HILFEZ
2R IEE N DR AR 17,955,000
TL(HBZER4921,332,000587T) » AEH
RELEMEFREARBLEN o
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Year ended 31 December 2018 ﬁ§i§7/1¢+jﬁ5 *Eﬁfi/;?

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The movement of liability component at amortised costs of

29, WA A%

okt

A BREF R B A BER D2 S

the convertible bonds is as follows: wm
2016 2017
Convertible Convertible
Bonds Bonds Total
—E-RE —E—+tfF
AR ES MERES Foy
(Note a) (Note b)
(Mizxa) (MizEb)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2017 RNZE—+F—H—H 599,150 — 599,150
Nominal value of convertible BRI BRESRZ
bonds issued HE — 14,000 14,000
Equity component at the issue REITRB RS
date — (933) (933)
Liability components at the issue  WETREZ BELS
date — 13,067 13,067
Interest charged for the year FRFEXH 65,903 554 66,457
Interest payable on convertible FTARMBERNFTIE
bonds included in other R EHEN TS
payables (34,286) — (34,286)
Exchange realignments [E i A% 4,774 _ 4,774
36,391 554 36,945
At 31 December 2017 and at RZZE—tF+=H
1 January 2018 =f+—BER
—E2—\F—A—H 635,541 13,621 649,162
Interest charged for the year FRMEX
(note 5(a)) (BF#E5(a)) 69,715 379 70,094
Interest payable on convertible STARAMERFIEZ
bonds included in other AHBRESFERTE
payables (note 32) (M7E32) (34,436) — (34,436)
Reclassification (note 23(b)) EF I 23(0b)) — (14,000) (14,000)
Exchange realignments [ 5 % 1,297 — 1,297
36,576 (13,621) 22,955
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=A
=+-—H 672,117 — 672,117
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

—HﬁHﬁF#(,ﬂ

2018 2017
—E-N\E TE %
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
The maturity of the convertible AR ES 2 B HERAT
bonds is as follows:
Within 1 year —FR 672,117 13,621
2 to 5 years —ZRHF — 635,541
672,117 649,162
Portion classified as current liabilities D iEARE B E 25D (672,117) (13,621)
Non-current portion JEMENE S — 635,541
Notes: MisE
(a) On 9 September 2016, the Company, as the issuer, entered into (a) R-TB—XNEABAB AAFAEEZ

a placing agreement with a lead manager, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to issue, and the lead manager
conditionally agreed to procure (a) the first round investors to
subscribe for the initial convertible bonds in the principal amount of
US$80,000,000 (the “2016 Convertible Bonds 1”); and (b) the second
round investors to subscribe for the additional convertible bonds in the
principal amount of US$30,000,000 (the “2016 Convertible Bonds
1), at the initial conversion price of HK$0.586 per share (collectively
referred to the “2016 Convertible Bonds”) based on the agreed
exchange rate of US$1 = HK$7.755.

On 23 September 2016, the Company issued 2016 Convertible
Bonds | of US$80,000,000 to two investors which is convertible into
1,058,703,070 conversion shares at maximum. The 2016 Convertible
Bonds | are secured, interest-bearing at 5.5% per annum and have a
term of 3 years. As 2016 Convertible Bonds | will mature in September

2019, they are therefore classified as current liabilities.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT

TAN)EEBEBELRAGT L —HEREHZS -
Bt ARRABRHERBET MERL
MAREHRERERE () EHIREERE
BH AR ES 2&@%&12%80,000,000%
T —-R"ETERESFD ROF
“HBEAERBEINTRRES $$§
%330,000,000E ([ =B —RXEATRRE
F1]) - YIS EREAFTRO.586 B T (5B
[—2—AFA@RES])  ZHEEEX
FEIJLH 775580 E -

RZE—ARFENAZ+=8 " AARAWE
% & # %1780,000,000 02 Z T — " F
AR E S | (A % AT ER /5 1,058,703,070
REBRD) o —T— R NFrAIRREFIRE
B HEFRSSEAFBRFHAE=F -
HRZZE—AFARREFIER=_Z—N1
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Year ended 31 December 2018 %@%i%gf/(ﬁ—t+iﬁ_:

29. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

In August 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 51% equity
interests in CNEOP. As part and parcel of the acquisitions, the Group
and a selling shareholder of CNEOP (the “Selling Shareholder B")
entered into a profit guarantee agreement, pursuant to which
the Company shall issue and allot the convertible bonds in the
principal amounts up to the value of HK$29,060,000 and pay up to
HK$8,290,000 in cash to the Selling Shareholder B subject to the
satisfaction of the profit indicator.

On 25 May 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$14,000,000 (the “2017 Convertible Bonds"),
at the adjusted conversion price of HK$0.42 per share which is
convertible into 33,333,333 conversion shares at maximum, to the
Selling Shareholder B upon the satisfaction of the profit indicator for
the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016. The 2017 Convertible
Bonds are unsecured, interest free and have a term of 1 year.

The 2017 Convertible Bonds of HK$14,000,000 have matured at end
of the reporting period and were included in the “Trade and other
payables” as at 31 December 2018. None of the principal amount of
the 2017 Convertible Bonds has been converted into conversion shares.

Due to the satisfaction of the profit indicator for the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group is obligated to issue convertible bonds in
principal amount of HK$15,060,000 and pay cash of HK$4,300,000 to
the Selling Shareholder B. However, no convertible bond or cash has
been issued or paid to the Selling Shareholder B during the year ended
31 December 2018 and the aggregate amount payable to the Selling
Shareholder B of HK$19,360,000 was included in the “Trade and other
payables” as at 31 December 2018.

 BRAEMBR®

jﬁﬁi/xg

20, TEMRMES (E

BT - (48)

(b)

RZT—AFNA  AEEZERYEF LR
51% RAHEZ « (ERWEZ —#5 - A&EE
B RZERBRE(ERRRB]) T —
PR FRBRE - B EEREFIERZ
IR - AR A A S R AR B B 1T R AL
A& FE{E E &= 29,060,000 7% 7T .2 A # i}
EH R (15 % 8,290,000 BT & ©

FERBE-_T-—RAFE-_ZT—<F+=A
E+—RIEFEZEFERE  R_T—+
FREAZTHA  ARRAIRKEAEERE
BRONETAERREBETASER
14,000,000/ 8 T2 ATARES ([ =2—tF
ABRRES ) &ZAEIRA33,333,333
BBk - — T — L F A RRESAEIK
HREE  FHA1F -

RZZ—N\F+=ZA=+—H ' 14,000,000
B2z T —LFABRREFCREEHE
REHE  FAIES REMERRE] - =
T LFEBRREFzASETEERAE
TR -

HREBE-Z—t&+_A=-+—ALTFE
BERNEE  NEEBARTASER
15,060,000/ 7 2 AT AR E % + I )& IR
HB Y H 44,300,000 7T AT - A E
B+ A=+ RALEEYER
ERBEBRTARRBESFKINAE - &
HEMRMREB 2 4858 19,360,000 B TTE R =
T-N\E+ZA=+—BitATE S KHA
FERTRRIA]
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

30. SHARE CAPITAL g 7=
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t5
No. of shares No. of shares
R EE RmE R
(Thousands) HK$'000 (Thousands) HK$'000
(TH) FHET (F&) TET
Authorised: EE
At beginning of the RS BV R AR
reporting period and at HHI&RA
end of the reporting
period
Ordinary shares of FAXMEE0.001
HK$0.001 each Aoz i@ 5,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: EERTRARE:
At beginning of the RIRE )
reporting period
Ordinary shares of FHREE0.001
HK$0.001 each BT BB 11,148,390 11,148 10,148,390 10,148
Shares repurchased REAE)E)
(note (a)) (FF5E(a)) (125,810) (126) — —
Issue of new shares BITHI D — — 1,000,000 1,000
At end of the reporting  RBEHLERAE
period
Ordinary shares of HHREE0.001
HK$0.001 each BT BB 11,022,580 11,022 11,148,390 11,148
Note: MHEE -
(@) During the year, pursuant to the general mandate given to the directors (@) RAEFE BEETERAEZRTZ—KE
of the Company, the Company repurchased a total of 129,570,000 1 AR AR AR (E21,303,000% 7T R B
of its shares on the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of A& LB 129,570,000 % ik 15 - H A
HK$21,303,000, in which 125,810,000 shares were cancelled. The 125,810,000 fi% i 19 B 71 84 © 126,000 /% 7T

nominal value of the cancelled shares of HK$126,000 was credited
to capital redemption reserve. The remaining 3,760,000 shares were
recognised as treasury shares as at 31 December 2018.

The total consideration paid to repurchase these shares were

HK$21,303,000, which has been deducted from equity attributable to
the owners of the Company.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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31. SHARE OPTIONS

(a)

Share option scheme

On 2 June 2017, with approval by the shareholders,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the "Scheme”) for a period of 10 years to replace the
share option scheme approved on 6 August 2007 that
would otherwise expire on 6 August 2017.

Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to
directors and employees of the Group and any other
persons who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group. The options
will expire either after 10 years from the date of grant
or upon the termination or the issuance of termination
notice of the relevant grantee’s employment with the
Group. The maximum number of shares to be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in
issue at the date of the passing of the relevant ordinary
resolution. If any option is to be granted to connected
person(s), it must be approved by independent non-
executive directors or independent shareholders as the

case may be.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
share options may be granted to a specifically identified
single grantee under the Scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue.

REUH®

— Bt FE

31. BRE

(a)

BRESTS
REZFB-tFRA-H ARFHE
PR U T BR AN — TR 3T BB AR AT 2
(TRH& ) - BRHA105F - LAERK
RZFZLFN\ANAEIELE
R-Z—tF\ANBERZBR
RERTE

RIEFTE - ARAAAAEEES
LEEUANEEE2ENERRG
B e ARREEL BB 2R
Hig AR ERE - BERESR
R H AR 10 F RN L
SHAE I R IE B AR EAEREAIR A
EAREEZ BEBERERY - HR
WRIEET B N AR 2 B AA] EL A 8 A
AEIRMERRITEZMBERTE
SNE R AR TTE R 1T Z B BB
LR ARTFEBTRERITR
HHEEZ30% °

AR 8 M AR RMEAT A A EE AR
REETEIR L 2 PR B I T By
ATHTZBRNER  AXHTEE
BN EEREERREREACH
TR 2 10% = FLIAIBAZE A £+ #%
HEBRE - HAKBYIFNTES
SR (RIE R E ) HEE

REMI12EAHEAR - RIEEE
A ERIEERE — AR AR L 2 8
PE(BRDITE - BE#ERRTT
BRI MNEE ER
TEBEEBITRMDBEZ1% -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

31. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Under the Scheme, the options granted may be
accepted by a participant within 14 days from the
date of such offer. A consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the offer of grant of an option.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a vesting period of no shorter than
12 months and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of offer of the share options.
The subscription price for shares payable on exercise
of share options granted under the Scheme shall be
a price determined by the directors of the Company,
but shall in any event not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the
offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of share.

The options granted prior to and remaining outstanding
at termination, if any, shall continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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31, WRAE(E)
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FHHARRERTETE - RTIRN
REAZFBERERRLE  KER
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GEMBRENE

— Bt FE

31. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) 31. BRE(E)
Movement in share option granted: (b) ERHLBREZS2E :
The following table discloses movements of the TE®HEBEREEZE—_TE-)\FEE-_Z
Company’s share options held by directors and —tFE+A=+—HLEFEHK
employees of the Group during the years ended 31 SBEEZENEEFBZALNREBER
December 2018 and 2017: W&
2018: - \£E -
The closing
price of the
Company's shares
quoted on the
Lapsed/ Stock Exchange
Outstanding at ~ Reclassification Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding at immediately
Name of category Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December  before the date of
of participant Date of grant * price 2018 the year the year the year the year 2018 grant
FRARS
RZB-NF RZB-NF REERY
-A-H tZA=1-A BRAEBRA
SaEEHER RERH g4 WA EREFIE ERRY FRAE FARY/RY HATTE &z ymE
HKS HKS
o o
Directors in aggregate 30 March 2015 0247 110,000,000 — - - (60,000,000) 50,000,000 0.245
EE ) “E-REZACTA
14 July 2016 0.520 33,000,000 - - - - 33,000,000 0.530
“F- FLATIA
Employees in aggregate 30 March 2015 0.247 286,863,900 — — - (165,863,900) 121,000,000 0.245
EE&T “F-1%=A=1H
14 July 2016 0.520 240,500,000 - - - (74,700,000) 165,800,000 0.530
R RELATER
6 December 2016 0493 50,000,000 - - - (50,000,000) — 0495
ZR-RETZARR
720,363,900 - - — (30563900 369,800,000
Weighted average exercise
price (HKS)
nEFEHEEGER) 0368 - - - 0340 0.394
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

31. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(b) Movement in share option granted (Continued):

31

R

(b) ERLBREZZE(E) :

2017: Tt
The closing
price of the
Company's shares
quoted on the
Lapsed/ Stock Exchange
Outstanding at  Reclassification Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding at immediately
Name of category of Exercise 1 January during during during during 31 December  before the date of
participant Date of grant * price 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017 grant
FRARR
RZB-t£ RZE-t% REERL
-A-8 tZA=t-8 AEHERRA
SREERER REBH &R WA FREFIR ERRH ERfE ERRN/RY HAGTRE fifz 4w
HKS HKS
B B
Directors in aggregate 30 March 2015 0.247 152,363,900 (42,363,900) - - - 110,000,000 0.245
EEhy “3-1FZA=1H
14 July 2016 0.520 80,000,000 (47,000,000) - - - 33,000,000 0.530
R RELATER
Employees in aggregate 30 March 2015 0.247 442,411,250 42,363,900 - - (197,911,250) 286,863,900 0.245
EEEH “E-REZAZTH
14 July 2016 0.520 508,800,000 47,000,000 - - (315,300,000 240,500,000 0.530
ZR-RELATEA
6 December 2016 0.493 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000 0.495
ZE-RETZARE
1,233,575,150 - - - (513,211,250) 720,363,900
Weighted average exercise
price (HK$)
nETEHREGER) 0387 - - - 0.415 0368

A The options granted on 30 March 2015, 14 July 2016 and 6

December 2016 were vested as follows:

50% of the share options granted will vest on the second
anniversary of the date of grant, subject to the satisfaction of
the certain specific conditions; and the remaining 50% of the
share options granted will vest on the third anniversary of the
date of grant, subject to the satisfaction of the certain specific

conditions.
No share options were exercised for the years ended

31 December 2018 and 2017. As at 31 December 2018
and 2017, no share options were exercisable.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # % —Z— )4~ A=

31. SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of the share options granted is measured
at the date of grant, using the binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
of the share-based arrangement except for non-market
vesting conditions. The fair value calculated is inherently
subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made
and the limitations of the model used. The inputs into
the model are as follows:

REUH®

— Bt ﬁf/xg

31. BREE)

(c)

BREAFERRBRR
ERHERE 2 X FHETEZRIA

H&f“i%ﬁﬁ%%#zﬂ%?k ftt (GF
MR BIRTFERIN & - UZARN
E%Hﬁ%m{ﬁﬁmﬁﬁxﬁ AHRTE -

RS BIEtE QT ER ZFTERR
FRER ARt EBA RS st

RNPERFBIENTHEE - 58
BRMAzZBAEBWT :

The closing
price of the
Company's
Weighted ~ shares quoted
average fair  on the Stock
value at grant  Exchange at Exercise Risk-free Expected Expected Expected
Grant date date grant date price interest rate volatility ife  dividend yield
rRaARS
RRLAH R AH
ZIETH EBRA
Rt A A AYE AR2UHE & RERNE RHRIE RS BHREE
HKS per share  HK$ per share  HKS per share
BkiET BlET AT
30 March 2015 0.134 0247 0.247 1.450% 66% 10 years N/A
“E2-h¥-A=1H 106 Wl
4 July 2016 0.205 0520 0.520 0.925% 44% 10 years N/A
ZB-EtATEA 106 R
6 December 2016 0.185 0.490 0493 1.438% 39% 10 years N/A
ZZ-EtZARR 10F TER

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over
the last one year of share option granted. The variables
and assumptions used in computing the fair value
of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimate.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fair
value of equity-settled share-based payment in respect
of the Scheme of HK$9,681,000 was reversed (2017:
HK$19,065,000 was recognised) in profit or loss.

AR5 R 73 PR — 5 R 4
EARRREZELREERE « 5t

BEREAFERA S8 R ERKR
TIAE B E M EER
REE=_Z—N\F+=-A=+—H

LEFE - Bl Sz BREE R
Bt 2 Z I8 2 AF{E 9,681,000
BETERBERERBELR(ZZT —+
& BH#ER19,065,00087T) °
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

32. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 32. Etﬁii.fEJFﬁEEEEZ%EJ

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Details of the changes in the Group’s liabilities from AEERETHNEELEBEZEHFS
financing activities are as follows: mr
Interest-
Interest bearing Promissory Convertible
payables borrowings notes bonds Total
EARE e RERE TRRES #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TET TR TAT TR
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 26) (Note 29)

(M5E23) (MEE24) (M&E26) (MEE29)

1 January 2017 RZE—t&—-H-H 32,463 41,982 998,049 599,150 1,671,644

Changes from financing cash BEBREHELD

flows:
New bank borrowings raised ~ HERTEE — 17,274 — — 17,274
New margin loans raised METEER — 425,079 — — 425,079
New other borrowings raised & Efh{EE — 250,000 — — 250,000
Proceeds from issue of BIRAEBABRA

promissory notes — — 464,500 — 464,500
Repayment of bank borrowings EEHTEE — (10,326) — — (10,326)
Repayment of margin loans BEARER — (36,041) — — (36,041)
Repayment of obligations under BEBEHEEH

finance leases — (149) — — (149)
Repayment of promissory notes {E&# 3 215 — — (565,240) — (565,240)
Interest expenses paid BAIERS (127,158) — — — (127,158)

Total changes from financing ~ BEH L R8EBEE
cash flows (127,158) 645,837 (100,740) — 417,939
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # % = F— /| 4+= = —BIFFE

32. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 32. MEEEHMELEB2EH(E)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Interest-
Interest bearing Promissory Convertible
payables borrowings notes bonds Total
ERFE GtERE AARE THRRES #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TAT FAT FET
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 26) (Note 29)
(M5t 23) (M5t 24) (Mizt26) (MizE29)
Exchange realignments ERAR — 5,026 — 4,774 9,800
Other non-cash changes: Hth kR e 28 .
Finance costs FBRAR 47,184 — 76,462 66,457 190,103
Compensation from profit S RRERE
guarantee (8,611) — (165,240) — (173,851)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB A — 32,093 — — 32,093
Interest payables on convertibles AJ# &5 | &
bonds 34,286 — — (34,286) —
Interest payables on promissory % Z M| 8
notes 48,228 — (48,228) — —
Others At — — (20,479) 13,067 (7,412)
Total other changes H#ges 121,087 32,093 (157,485) 45,238 40,933
At 31 December 20177 and ~ R-Z—t&
1 January 2018 TZA=+t-HR
—“E-N\E-B-H 26,392 724,938 739,824 649,162 2,140,316
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

32. CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 32[@?5%31)5&%5&%2%@1%%)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)
Interest-
Interest bearing Promissory Convertible
payables borrowings notes bonds Total
EARFIE HEEE ARRE TRRES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TAT FAT FET
(Note 23) (Note 24) (Note 26) (Note 29)
(M5t 23) (M5t 24) (Mizt26) (MizE29)
Changes from financing cash BEREFEEE
flows:
New bank borrowings raised ~ #1ERT{EE — 243,206 — — 243,206
New margin loans raised MEFREER — 685,499 — — 685,499
New other borrowings raised ~ #TEEMMEE — 141,000 — — 141,000
Repayment of bank borrowings EBFTEE — (42,125) — — (42,125)
Repayment of margin loans BEFRER — (425,079) - - (425,079)
Repayment of obligations under (EERETREREH
finance leases — (154) — — (154)
Repayment of promissory notes  {Ei&7&H 24 — — (226,000) — (226,000)
Interest expenses paid BERMERT (151,094) — — - (151,094)
Total changes from financing ~ BERELREEHEE
cash flows (151,094) 602,347 (226,000) — 225,253
Exchange realignments EHAZ — (2,301) — 1,297 (1,004)
Other non-cash changes: Hth kR e2s .
Finance costs (note 5(a)) BB AR (&2 5(a)) 82,537 - 53,067 70,094 205,698
Interest payables on convertibles =] ¥Rk (&% e 4 51 &
bonds 34,436 — — (34,436) —
Interest payables on promissory 7 ZEERF| S
notes 39,093 — (39,093) — —
Issuance of promissory BTRERERERRE
notes as the subscription RE
consideration — — 219,909 — 219,909
Transfer to other payables upon | EJRS 8 A H h e (s
maturity R — — — (14,000) (14,000)
Others At — — (11,070) — (11,070)
Total other changes ko 156,066 — 222,813 21,658 400,537
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\F
+=ZA=+-H 31,364 1,324,984 736,637 672,117 2,765,102
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34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financia| State ents

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

MARGIN FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, margin facilities of
HK$841,733,000 (2017: HK$897,732,000) from certain
regulated securities dealers were granted to the Group
under which financials assets at FVPL of HK$1,556,315,000
and 39,682,000 shares of Enterprise Development
held by the Group (2017: financials assets at FVPL of
HK$2,553,850,000 and certain available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$48,997,000) were treated as collateral for the
facilities granted. The Group utilised part of these facilities
amounting to HK$685,499,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: HK425,079,000).

DISPOSAL OF INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
WITHOUT LOSS OF CONTROL

Disposal of 0.57% equity interests in Enterprise
Development

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held 43.56% equity
In October 2018, the
Group disposed 3,000,000 shares of Enterprise Development,

interests in Enterprise Development.

representing 0.57% equity interests in Enterprise
Development, on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
proceed of HK$1,494,000.

Upon completion of the disposal, the Group’s equity interests
in Enterprise Development were reduced from 43.56% to
42.99%, resulting in an increase in non-controlling interests
of HK$1,132,000 and an increase in equity attributable to
the owners of the Company of HK$362,000.

33,

34.

REUH®

— Bt ﬁf/xg

FRME
R-ZZE-NE+-A=+—H &F
XREEHFBLEMNAEERLTFRER
& 841,733,000 (= & — £ F:
897,732,000/ 7T) - &t - RiERmIRIZ
N EREE 2% EE,556,315,000
BT MRS E A 239,682, ooo%ﬁ
BERGO(ZE—tF  RERKREZA
TEJEIEZﬂﬂ‘%éﬁéZ,SS&SS0,000%E
& T Al & B 7% & & 48,997,000
BLTIWEAESRECERDE
BeRZE-—NFF+ZA=+—8H"
rEBEHAZSEMEZ B A
£0685,499,000% jT(= T — £ %
425,079,000 7T) °

HEMBAR 2 Em(LERE
BHE)

HERR0.57% BRAERE

RZE—+tF+ZA=+—H &K
EHE0E4I356% B AR R T
—N\FE+ A NEBREE AR
TH 48 % 1,494,0007%8 T 1 £ 3,000,000

e By - FAERTE 0.57% AN

S o

o

EREESEE  AEBRERZEA
T 25 R 43.56% % £42.99% B {E 3F
TR AEZR I AN1,132,0008 T 0 AR
AIHEB AFE(G ARG hN 362,000 T °

HK$'000
FAET
Consideration received in cash PHIRERE 1,494
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without loss of & HfE A &) 2 #Exs (I L By H4E)
control (1,132)
Difference recognised in other reserves included — REMEEPERL AR 2 =5
in equity 362
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

35. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES 35.

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases, which typically run for an initial period of 1-6 years.
None of these leases includes contingent rentals. At end of
the reporting period, the Group had future lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which are payable as

ReHERE
AEBA-—RNE R/ —ERNFIEE
HEARZEYE ARBAEYTERE
AT RBEHERA - AEER
BAAEHEEEHEZ R RBEENRE
BRIATNFHSAT

follows:
2018 2017
=F —E—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —&FR 15,844 15,280
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_ZEERE(BEEEME) 19,890 12,458
Over five years HRRF 424 —
36,158 27,738
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2018 B Z =F—/\F+ = H=+—FILFE
36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. EBEALTRS
In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these BAGEMBERREMTOAMEECE
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the BN REBRFRNET2ERBEA
following significant related party transactions during the TRZ0MT
year:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
Related party relationship Nature of transaction HK$°000 HK$'000
BEALBEE REME FET FHET
Key management personnel, Salaries and other allowances
i.e. the directors e MHEMERL 12,557 4,388
Contributions to defined
contribution plans
FEHRET BB 84 56
FTEEEAB(HES) Equity-settled share-based
payment
R B AR X 2 5B (996) 2,695
Total compensation
GHISEGEE] 11,645 7,139
Related company” Operating lease expenses
BEQEA KREMERX 4,160 3,572
Purchases of products
BEEM 3,097 —
Service fee expenses
R E R — 115
Sales of products
HEEMm — (129)
A The related company was controlled by the controlling shareholder. A ZEE R E BRI o
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments are financial

assets designated at FVOCI, pledged bank deposits, bank

balances and cash, interest-bearing borrowings, promissory

notes and convertible bonds. The main purpose of these

financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for the

Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial

instruments such as financial assets at FVPL, loan receivables,

trade and other receivables and trade and other payables,

which arise directly from its business activities.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been

applied to the line items below:

37.

MEEEEEERERBE

AEBEZIEUBIARBENEME
EWARAFEREZHBEE B8
MIRTTER - ROTEEFERBRE - T E6E
E ALRRARATBRERES o WEH
BIAZTERRIRAKEZZES
SREFRE  AKEEETEMBYE
TH MEZBEEXRBEHELZINE
BRBATERECMBEE  BEE
FBHREMBYRFIALNRE S RE
fib A FRIR -

MBETAZEFRREEBANRNTE
18

Financial
assets at Financial
amortised assets Designated
cost at FVPL Fvodi Total
REHEM A RERIE EERHEM
R=B-N\F Sltkz RAFERE 2HEKA
At 31 December 2018 +=A=+-8 MBEE ZHBEE BAFERE Act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHET FET THET
Assets as per JIRGRERBRREKZ
consolidated statement BE
of financial position
Financial assets designated 8 FREM2EUWA
at FVoCl RATEREZ
BBEE — — 233,261 233,261
Loan receivables FEARE R 149,609 — — 149,609
Trade receivables B MR 317,840 — — 317,840
Notes receivables I EEE 2,337 — — 2,337
Deposits and other debtors %% R H b fEULIR X 159,632 = = 159,632
Financial assets at FVPL REB&HRZRAFERE
ZHBEE — 2,283,156 — 2,283,156
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 11,259 — — 11,259
Cash and cash equivalents & RIBEEED 335,913 — — 335,913
Total Bt 976,590 2,283,156 233,261 3,493,007

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
GAMBRRMET

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —ZF—/\E+_-H= fEﬁi/j?

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. BIEREBEEERBE(E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
BB SR A
At 31 December 2018 R=ZE-NF+=A=+—H Stk 2 BB @st
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTERT
Liabilities as per consolidated statement of JIRGAHBRARZEE
financial position
Interest-bearing borrowings BEEE 1,324,984 1,324,984
Promissory notes EHER 736,637 736,637
Convertible bonds AR ES 672,117 672,117
Trade payables B 2R 215,548 215,548
Notes payables ANESE 25,824 25,824
Financial liabilities included in other payables SPAEMENFEMEaE
(note 23) (MzE23) 90,646 90,646
Total et 3,065,756 3,065,756
Available-for-
Loans and Financial sale financial
receivables  assets at FVPL assets Total
RZZE—+F Rk  HEATERRE At E
At 31 December 2017 +-A=+—8H e W B ZHIEEE MBEE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Assets as per IIRNGEMBMRREZ
consolidated statement BE
of financial position
Available-for-sale financial ~ FIftHEMBEEE
assets — — 313,786 313,786
Loan receivables FEWE K 126,226 — — 126,226
Trade receivables BHRWFE 611,147 — — 611,147
Notes receivables B RE 2,720 — — 2,720
Deposits and other debtors ¥ & H fh FE U IR X 105,388 — — 105,388
Financial assets at FVPL RBHIRRATFERE
ZIBEE — 3,297,511 — 3,297,511
Pledged bank deposits BEIRIRITIER 6,030 — — 6,030
Cash and cash equivalents  H& KIREZFEY 738,495 — — 738,495
Total st 1,590,006 3,297,511 313,786 5,201,303
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

37, BBEREEBERKE )

Financial liabilities

at amortised cost at FVPL Total
RZT—tF REHERAIIR . RERKREATE
At 31 December 2017 +=A=+—~H BBasE BREZHBER #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET
Liabilities as per consolidated FIRGAHBRAERZ
statement of financial =R
position
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 724,938 — 724,938
Promissory notes EHER 739,824 — 739,824
Convertible bonds B ES 649,162 — 649,162
Trade payables B FENZE 209,963 — 209,963
Contingent consideration payable FEf kA (& — 16,713 16,713
Financial liabilities included in st AEMERFIE 2
other payables (note 23) e’ (mat2s3) 67,633 — 67,633
Total et 2,391,520 16,713 2,408,233

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are equity price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and foreign currency risk. The directors of the
Company generally adopt conservative strategies on its risk
management and limit the Group’s exposure to these risks
to a minimum. The directors of the Company review and
agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

(a) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
financial assets at FVPL and financial assets designated
as at FVOCI. The sensitivity analysis has been
determined based on the exposure to equity price risk.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financia| Statements

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Equity price risk (Continued)

At end of the reporting period, if the fair value had
been 18% (2017: 5%) higher or lower while all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s net
loss would decrease or increase by HK$407,307,000
and fair value reserve (non-recycling) would increase
or decrease by HK$41,987,000 (2017: net profits
would increase or decrease by HK$164,876,000 and
other equity reserves would increase or decrease by
HK$2,450,000) as a result of changes in fair value of
investments. The Group’s sensitivity to equity price has
changed significantly during the year mainly due to
more volatile price fluctuation.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the reasonably possible changes in the equity
prices or other relevant risk variables had occurred
at end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at
that date. It is also assumed that the fair values of
the Group’s investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the equity prices or
the relevant risk variables, and that all other variables
remain constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the relevant equity price or the relevant
risk variables over the period until the end of the next
annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2017.

(a)

GANBEREME

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

— Bt EE

37. BREREEEERBEE)

RERE(Z)

REBEEERA - MWERAFELA
KR 18% (ZF—LF :5%)
EFEEMEHTZ ZBRT
RERNFEEHBESALEEEIE
5 58 R > 3k 18 11407,307,000 %
T+ T EL AR S R R A 3 0N 2R
941 987,000 (= —+F :
48 N 38 0 3k R 4> 164,876,000 %
L) MAFEREETET»E)
1518 A8k R 2 2,450,000 7T ° A
SEHREHRERFREBR
W R B i B K g 4

SURE DT IR B S AR AERE
HEA“%ZEM&E‘EHH ERALEAE
AREEBMET  WEANERF
EZHX{EH @ o BRE DM IMER
REBKRE 2 N FEREHRBRESR
#E 8 e\ e B B R S MR T
ARAEMEBRAE - DillEH)
BEIEEYHERREXARRRE
BN TFEREHRERARBAE L
RAEr e 2 ¥ - ETOMN
ZEER T —LEHER -
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

37, BBEREEBERKE )

(a) Equity price risk (Continued) (a) BRERKE)
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ARABEERE  BARSWMEHLE
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent RAFEE 2RI REE KT
equity price risk because the exposure at the end of 2Bk - WEBRE DT8R
each reporting period does not reflect the exposure REBERERE -
during the year.

(b) Credit risk (b) FERR
The carrying amount of financial assets recognised M EE 2 RSN EFa MR
on the consolidated statement of financial position, MEPHER  ZRBEESHBRRE

which is net of impairment losses, represents the
Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking into
account the value of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements. The credit risk of the Group is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customer who which to trade on credit terms
are subject to credit verification procedures. The
management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations of its customers’
financial position and condition are performed on each
and every major customer periodically. The Group
limits its exposure to credit risk from trade receivables
by establishing a maximum payment period of three
months.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which
customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. Credit evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

At end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 32% (2017: 23%) and
46% (2017: 39%) of the trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively within the loT solution segment,
10% (2017: 9%) and 35% (2017: 30%) of the trade
receivables were due from the Group's largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively within the
IDS segment and 5% (2017: 11%) and 23% (2017:
28%) of the trade receivables were due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the HMID segment.

(b)

GANBEREME

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

— Bt EE

37. BREREEEERBEE)

FEREE)

B SN (E)
AEEEHZEERREIEZEH
B ZERGHEE - ZFHEE
RNEPBE BN RLERE
A2 3REE N - dET M P Z @5
BERRERFEEMERBERRER
B -

RBEHLERA - HRE SRR
HFR3N2% (ZT—EF :23%) &
46% (ZE—+F :39%) D Al 5B
FEAREE AR TR E&
K@ﬁ&ﬂk%ﬁZmﬁ~m%
(ZZE—+F :9%)35% (==
—+F :30%) DRl R EKRAEE
BEERERERBEIEEAEFPRA
AEPZHIE M5%(ZE—+
F1%)N23% (22 —+F
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range
of clients and the trade receivables are categorised
by common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The Group
applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for
trade receivables and recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment. The expected loss rate used
in the provision matrix is calculated for each category
based on actual credit loss experience over the past
three years and adjusted for current and forward-
looking factors to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the
Group’s estimate on future economic conditions over
the expected lives of the receivables. There was no
change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the year.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —ZF—/\E+_-H= iEﬂfi/;?

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. REABREEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKEGE)
Trade receivables (Continued) B ZENIE ()
The information about the exposure to credit risk and B REEDE 2 E S E A
ECL for trade receivables using a provision matrix as at FEERBLEREEEEN_-Z
31 December 2018 is summarised below. —NFEF+ZA=+—H &R
.
As at 31 December 2018 R-ZB-NE+=-A=+—H
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
EHEEE AIRESHE BB EIE
% HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FERT
Not past due I >R 780 B 0.29% 216,996 638
Within 90 days past due BHI90 KA 1.54% 17,274 267
91 — 180 days past due #HI91 E 180K 3.32% 19,617 651
181 — 365 days past due #HI181 =365 K 6.65% 51,260 3,409
Over 365 days, past due (Note) — #18§365 KA _E (M) 88.00% 147,176 129,518
452,323 134,483
Note: Included credit impaired (but not purchased or originated) of Wik BEEERBEMERBERES)
HK$84,519,000. 84,519,000 7T
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

The ageing of trade receivables as at 31 December

(b)

37, BBEREEBERKE )

EERR(Z)
B ZEWIE(E)
R-EBE—+FE+-_A=1+—HE®

2017 which are past due but not impaired is as follows: EMERRE 2 B 5 R FIAIRE 20
T

2017
—+tF
HK$'000
FAT
Neither past due nor impaired NI 48 480 HA ol Rk B 437,720
Within 90 days 90 KA 44,891
91 - 180 days 912 180K 36,377
181 — 365 days 1812 365K 52,054
Over 365 days 365 KA E 40,105
Past due but not impaired B2 AR R E 173,427
611,147

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance as at

31 December 2017 were debtors with carrying amounts
of HK$173,427,000, which were past due as at 31
December 2017 but which the Group has not impaired

as there have not been any significant changes in credit

quality and the directors of the Company believe that

the amounts are fully recoverable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor
as at 31 December 2017 related to a wide

impaired
range of

customers for whom there was no history of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade

receivables as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37;
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$134,483,000 (2017: HK$2,188,000)
on the trade receivables. The movement in the loss
allowance for trade receivables during the year is
summarised below. The comparative amounts represent
the loss allowance for impairment losses recognised
under HKAS 39.

MEEREEEERBEE)

(b) EEREE)

BB BN IEE)
RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H &
SECRE SR KIEEREIE
#1K 134,483,0008 T(— T —+
% :2,188,0008 L) FANE 5
FEWRIE 2 S1EEERZEH N TP
it o LB FIEBBREBGTE
BIZE 39 TR EEE 2 &8
1B -

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At beginning of the reporting RS BRI
period (previously stated) (BEZ75]) 2,188 780
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 RNBE BT B EERNE
(note 2) 22 (HFE2) 19,903 —
At beginning of the reporting R R4 HA )
period (restated) (4RE7) 22,091 780
Increase in allowance BHEIE N 118,377 1,337
Amount written off MiE& R (145) —
Exchange realignments P& X A% (5,840) 71
At end of the reporting period R EE4&ERAE 134,483 2,188
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables

The Group has adopted procedures in extending credit
terms to loan borrowers and in monitoring its credit
risk. The credit policy on extending credit terms to
loan borrowers includes assessing and evaluating loan
borrowers’ creditworthiness and financial standing.
Management also closely monitors all outstanding
debts and reviews the collectability of other receivables
periodically. At end of the reporting period, 44%
(2017: 25%) and 87% (2017: 88%) of the total loan
receivables were due from the Group’s largest borrower
and the five largest borrowers respectively within the
unallocated segment.

The Group uses three categories for loan receivables
which reflect their credit and how the loss allowance is
determined for each of those categories. These internal
credit risk rating are aligned to external credit rating
companies, such as Standard and Poor, Moody's and
Fitch.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #(Z —F —/\F 1+ = A =+—HiL %

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. HEABERBERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKEGE)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE ()
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the AEBEHEEBEEENER R
Group's ECL model is as follows: RAAREIAT
Category Company definition of category Basis for recognition of ECL provision
HEhl ARHHREZER BREHCEEGERRBBEE
Performing Borrowers have a low risk of default 12 month expected losses. Where the
and a strong capacity to meet expected lifetime of an asset is less
contractual cash flows than 12 months, expected losses are
measured at its expected lifetime
S ERARYERREEAENEEELH RKI12EA2EHER - GREHFESR
ERZBRENE E12EAANEE  FAAIEBIEENHETE
HFEE
Special attention Interest and/or principal repayments Lifetime expected losses
are 60 days past due
HERIREE FER SAeERAIH60H TEEFERAREE
Non-performing Interest and/or principal repayments Lifetime expected losses

are 90 days past due
TR FB R,/ EFEIA0 B FEHFERANNER
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37. WBEMEEEERBEE)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERKEGE)
Loan receivables (Continued) JEWE (&)
An analysis of changes in the gross amounts of loan EWE I ARE 7 SEE NI ¢

receivables is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—ER EREER E=RER #Et
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHExT FHET

Gross loan receivables as R=-ZE—N\F—H—

at 1 January 2018 BzEWEREE 126,226 — 20,290 146,516
New loans originated STEN 173,933 — — 173,933
Loans repaid during the FAREEENR

year (126,173) — — (126,173)
Transfer to lifetime ECL ERE2HEHEER

(Stage 3) ER(FE=RE) (44,688) - 44,688 -

As at 31 December 2018 R=F—N\E+=A

=t+—H 129,298 — 64,978 194,276
An analysis of credit risk exposure by the Group's BRASEABEETRZGE 2
internal credit rating system is as follows: EERRBESFTWMT :
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B EREER = HE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TATT TR

Internal rating grades R EBE ERER

Performing = 129,298 — — 129,298
Special attention KR EE — — — —
Non-performing TR — — 64,978 64,978

129,298 — 64,978 194,276
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recognised loss
allowance of HK$44,667,000 (2017: HK$20,290,000)
on the balances. The movement in the loss allowance

for the balances during the year is summarised below.
The comparative amounts represent the loss allowance

(b)

GANBEEMT

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té*g —NF+=H=

3 B1F EE

37. IBEAREERERBE(S)

EERK(E)

RZE—NFEF+=ZA=+—H"
AEEERBEREREEERG
44,667,000 t(Z & — £ F :
20,290,000/87T) - FANHE2E
#a?fﬁﬁm@]ﬁATmﬁ}m o LhE BT

for impairment losses recognised under HKAS 39. ERBE B ERE 39T
WHTEJEST‘EZEE BHEE -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E—ER EREER £ At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2017 R-_ZE—+F+_-A
(Reported) =+—H(EZ®) 20,230
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 ﬁé%ﬂq%}%ﬁﬁk#&i;&
/H\‘J 97ﬁ2 ‘?/ E -
Restated opening balance RZZE—NF—H—
under HKFRS 9 as at 1 BIRIEE YR
January 2018 EEREIF 2K
ER iR — 20,290 20,290
Increase in allowance B LE N — 24,377 24,377
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—-NFE+H
=+—H — 44,667 44,667
Deposits and other debtors o RE M EW A

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
deposits and other debtors are considered to be low
risk of default as they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that these financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

The Group has limited credit risk with its money
deposited in financial institutions and brokers, who are
with high credit ratings and assessed as having low
credit risk. The Group has not had any significant loss
arising from non-performance by these parties in the
past and management does not expect so in the future.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in these
consolidated financial statements.

FPARE REMEKIRR 2 M E
EZEREEEHAAABREEY
Rk - RRSZEYHEERKE
B B BENBRASWHEE
B ERREE R AIEIE M o

B E R TI7 3 RIRTTAS

$%lﬁ’$ﬁﬂ%%§%&%«<ﬁz7ﬁm
B EERRAR  RERZEFM
BHREBMELCHASERNE &
FERREERR - AEBEBEY
BRERALTETEEMELS
REE - mMEEERHRRIITE
HRZERBR -

FERBZESBE/NEREYE
BRABSRMBEEZIRASER °
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk in which the Group is
unable to meet its short-terms obligations. Liquidity risk
is minimal and is managed by matching the payments
and receipts cycles.
financed mainly through its business activities.

The Group’'s operations are

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities at end of the reporting period, based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates at end of the reporting
period) are summarised below:

37. BIEBREBEEEREBE(E)

(c)

RBE SRR
mBETRREANEEENETH
RBMETZRAR - REBES RN
TRE - TnEBRRABRRIGE
HIAEIRE - AEBZEETRE
BEBEBREES -

SHIHERA - REKREEIRE
ém%(“%ﬂ BRME (B
T B IRIBR i&iﬁﬂ EﬁEIZ?F‘J?R
AEZAMERBR)GE  AEEZ

ITEFBABEZE 'JHH\ SULEI
g

Total
On demand contractual
or within undiscounted  Total carrying
1year  2to5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
RERY BRRER
—FR —EnE BENLE  RERELE REARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER TER TEn
At 31 December 2018  R=Z-\§
TZA=+-H
Trade and other payables %5 & H A feft 58 410,881 — — 410,881 410,881
Interest-bearing FTERE
borrowings 1,342,130 55 — 1,342,185 1,324,984
Convertible bonds HARES 725,441 - — 725,441 672,117
Promissory notes ERARE 704,109 96,475 5,251 805,835 736,637
3,182,561 96,530 5,251 3,284,342 3,144,619
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+4F
+-B=1+-H
Trade and other payables &5 & E it {508 379,974 - — 379,974 379,974
Interest-bearing STERE
borrowings 494,297 258,964 — 753,261 724,938
Convertible bonds ARG 39,018 733,353 — 772,371 649,162
Promissory notes R ER 218,880 578,045 5,551 802,476 739,824
1,132,169 1,570,362 5,551 2,708,082 2,493,898
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The management believes that the Group’s fair value
interest rate risk is minimal and no sensitivity analysis is
performed.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank balances and variable-rate interest-
bearing borrowings (see notes 24(a), 24(b), 24(c), 24(d)
and 24(f)). The exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the prevailing
interest rate of the loan prime rate, HIBOR, prime rate
and BOCHK's HK$ prime rate (2017: prevailing interest
rate of the loan prime rate and BOCHK's HK$ prime
rate) arising from the Group’s bank borrowings, certain
margin loans and loans from financial institutions
(2017: bank borrowings and loan from a financial
institution). The Group currently does not have a formal
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors the interest rate exposure on an ongoing basis
and will consider hedging the interest rate risk should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for the
variable-rate interest-bearing borrowings at end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming
the liability outstanding at end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease in interest rates is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the end of the next
annual reporting period.

(d)

GANBEREME

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@Té‘? —NF+=H=

— Bt EE

37. BREREEEERBEE)

AEAR
EREAR - AEH 2 ATENE

BT R - HOEAE (T B
S -
AEBRRTET T LM B

B (R M 5E24(a) « 24(b) » 24(c) &
(f))ﬁ%‘-ﬁﬁiumgﬂjyﬂ ° }Eﬁ
HEzRERENERBRFEZER
RAEERITEE  ETHRER
RKEGBEEZER( -+
F - RITEERKRE —HHBEE
ZEFFEAHEEER IR
ME - FERITAXRFLHEE &
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2017: 50
basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's net loss for the year would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$2,390,000
(2017: profit for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,379,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest rate risk because the exposure at the end of
each reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group’s sales and operating
costs are denominated in the functional currency of
the group entity making the sales or incurring the
costs. Accordingly, the management considers that the
currency risk is not significant. The Group currently
does not have a formal currency hedging policy in
relation to currency risk. However, the management
monitors the currency risk exposure on an ongoing
basis and will consider hedging the currency risk should
the need arise.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide returns for shareholders.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments, including payment of dividend to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —ZF—/\E+_-H= fEﬁi/j?

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

()

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt-to-
equity capital ratio, which is net debt divided by total
equity. The debt-to-equity capital ratios at end of the

37. BIKEBREEEEREBE(E)

()

EXEE(E)

AEBERBEREREE AL =X
(AMBETRF R A AR ERT ) B
RER - NREHERA 2 ERE

reporting period were as follows: fREEARLEFRLT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Convertible bonds AR ES 672,117 649,162
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE 1,324,984 724,938
Promissory notes AL B 736,637 739,824
Total debt BIE#RFE 2,733,738 2,113,924
Less: Pledged bank deposits B - BERRITER (11,259) (6,030)
Less: Bank balances and cash J - RTEFERR S (335,913) (738,495)
Net debt BIRFRR 2,386,566 1,369,399
Total equity fxiEsaE 1,095,742 4,307,578
Debt-to-equity capital ratio B IH B i AN b K 217.80% 31.79%
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The following presents the assets and liabilities measured
at fair value or required to disclose their fair value in these
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis at
31 December 2018 and 2017 across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value
Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to that fair value measurement. The levels of
inputs are defined as follows:

. Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical financial assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2: input other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly;

. Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

38. D EFE(E)

a) Assets (liabilities) measured at fair value a) RATFEFEZEE(AR)
31 December
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E-N\E
+t=A=+-8H RA— A= A=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT THER THET FTExT
Assets measured at fair RATVEFEZ
value BE
Financial assets EERHEMEZEK
designated at FVOCI ABATEEE
ZHBEE
— Unlisted equity — REBIRINEM
securities in a private DAV VN =]
limited company BARIZIELE
incorporated outside TR A8 55
Hong Kong 233,261 — — 233,261
Financial assets at FVPL RERIRIZ QA FE
RECHEEE
— Listed equity securities — FHRAZES 1,696,636 1,696,636 — —
— Listed bonds — tWfEH 348,765 348,765 — —
— Wealth management — HEEBEER
products, unlisted FEm 55,565 — — 55,565
— Unlisted equity — REBIRINEM
securities in a private P32 TN
limited company BRARIZIELE
incorporated outside AR A8 55
Hong Kong 136,212 — — 136,212
— Unlisted equity — REBFEMAL
securities in a private ZHABRA
limited company A2 3 LTk
incorporated in Hong RFEH
Kong 25,693 — — 25,693
— Unlisted partnership — FLTAERERE
investments 20,285 — — 20,285
2,516,417 2,045,401 — 471,016
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A B IS R R M EE ‘

Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 38. ALENE(E)

a) Assets (liabilities) measured at fair value a) BRAFEHEZEEER) (&)
(Continued)

31 December

2017 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—T—tF
+-A=1+—-H HRl— Frl= MH=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET FHT
Assets (liabilities) BAFEFECE
measured at fair value E(AE)
Available-for-sale financial At HEMBEE
assets
— Listed equity securities — FHRANE % 48,997 48,997 — —
Financial assets at FVPL RERIREAFE
REZVBEE
— Listed equity securities — FHRANEFH 2,564,728 2,564,728 — —
—ELN — RESHHERE 282,785 — 282,785 —
— Wealth management  — BIEEHER
products, unlisted JEET 449,998 — — 449,998
Contingent consideration B SARE
payables (16,713) — — (16,713)
3,329,795 2,613,725 282,785 433,285
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, REE-_ZE—N\EFELR_ZT—+F
there was no transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 fair +-A=+—HIFEE  TEAN
value measurements and no transfer into and out of FEASNR—EGR — 2 BT
Level 3 fair value measurements. S N EFTERRI ZINEE A
KB o
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38.
a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %7 = ZF—/\F+_-H=

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Assets (liabilities) measured at fair value

(Continued)

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy are as follows:

Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements

a)

e B %W

38. D EFE(E)

BAVEFEBZEE(RE) (&)

HRARFEEBRAI= 2@
AT (ERE 2 EBRFENT -

N,

AFEHERH=2E

2018 —E—N\EF
Financial assets
designated at  Financial assets at
FVOCI-Unlisted ~ FVPL- Unlisted ~ Financial assets
equity securities  equity securities  at FVPL - Unlisted
in a private inaprivate  equity securities
limited company  limited company inaprivate  Financial assets at  Financial assets at
incorporated incorporated limited company FUPL -Unlisted FUPL - Wealth Contingent
outside outside  incorporated in partnership management consideration
Hong Kong Hong Kong Hong Kong investments  products, unlisted payables Total
EERAMEE NBER
YARATE RATE
REZIHEE  RBERRATE  REMEEE HERE
—-BHEESH REZHBEE - A HERRR RATEREL
dRATZAA - RERENER HRRLZAA AVEREZ BHEE -
BRI HIZBARRAR BRAEL WhEE-  MEEEER
Description i FLRERE  2ELRRARE  ALORARE  FLweBRE kth ENAARE it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén 1AL
At beginning of the reporting period RS (B4 27))
(previously stated) - - - 449,99 (16,713) 433,285
Reclassiied from avalable-forsale AL EHREEER
financil assets A 247,500 = 17,289 = - 264,789
Effecton financial asets remeasured A AR BHREENE
at fair value upon adoption of i)
HKFRS 9 20,000 - (5,085) - - 14915
At beginning of the reporting period - 1R £H4]( 25
(Restated) 267,500 - - 12,204 449,998 (16,713) 712,989
Initial recognition - 171,240 48,669 13492 151,808 — 385,209
Disposal during the year - - - - (253,000 - (253,000)
Net return of capital contribution - - - 2311) - - (2311)
Fair value changes (34,239) (35,028) (22,976) (3,135) (291,779) 16,524 (370,633)
Settlement to profit quarantee i - = - - - 5118 5118
Compensztion from profit guarantee &
— other payables - - - - - (5,590) (5,590)
Bxchange realignments - - - 3 (1,462) 61 (1,366)
At end of the reporting period RREEERA 233,261 136,212 25693 20,285 55,565 - 471,016
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Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

a) Assets (liabilities) measured at fair value

38. D EFE(E)
a) BAVENECEE(AE) (£)

(Continued)
Movements in Level 3 fair value measurements DFEFFERF = ZE) ()
(Continued)
2017 —E—+tF
Financial
assets at FVPL
- Wealth
management Contingent Contingent
product, consideration consideration
unlisted receivables payables Total
RIBEIR
BATERE
HGEE —
VEEEER
Description i EET  EUIARE  EAIAKE fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET TET
At beginning of the REREE
reporting period 412,428 452 (15,540) 397,340
Initial recognition VIaHER 837,096 — — 837,096
Addition - acquisition of  RE — WEHBA
subsidiaries Al 33,825 — — 33,825
Disposal during the year FRLHE (853,895) — — (853,895)
Fair value changes NFEES 8,107 197,362 — 205,469
Compensation from profit (R EEE
guarantee
— set-off with promissory — — H#HHE K R E
notes — (173,851) — (173,851)
— other receivables — HEYGRIE (23,963) (23,963)
Exchange realignments 0E 5% 12,437 — (1,173) 11,264
At end of the reporting RifeE B4R A
period 449,998 — (16,713) 433,285
The above fair value changes are reported as it AR EEEN G EBR REM
“changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL/fair 2HMARERNZ R A RIBEE

value of financial assets designated at FVOCI” in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —Z— )\ &+ A=

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

a)

Assets (liabilities) measured at fair value
(Continued)

Description of the valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 3 fair value measurement

The Group recognises the fair values of unlisted equity
securities in private limited companies incorporated
outside Hong Kong, unlisted equity securities in a
private limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and unlisted partnership investments at the end of each
reporting period and fair values were determined by
adopting P/B, P/E and asset-based approach respectively
and adjusted by minority discounts.

The unlisted wealth management products’ investment
portfolio mainly comprises investment in debentures,
bank debentures, bank saving, corporate bonds, listed
securities and other investments in the PRC and global
market with high credit rating (the “Investment”)
and the fair value of the Investment is reported by the
financial institutions and external fund manager.

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group reviews estimation of fair values of the
unlisted wealth management products, unlisted equity
securities in private limited companies incorporated
outside Hong Kong, unlisted equity securities in a
private limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and
unlisted partnership investments which are categorised
into Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Reports with
estimation of fair value are prepared by the financial
institutions and external fund managers on a monthly
basis and independent valuers on a semi-annually basis.
Discussion of the valuation process and results with
those charged with governance is held twice a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

REUH®

— Bt FE

38. AVEHB(E)

a)

BAVEFEZEE(RE) (&)

RFIEETERFI=FRA (G ER N
RBAIE A it
AEBSERNEBHINEMAL
ZIWANBRRARZIEETERAFE
% RBABEMAZZMABRA
AZIEEMBAESZRIELTER
BRENEREHERAZAFE -
M E R FET D RIRAmIRE -
MERRRAEEREMWEAETE - X
RO BRERITRIE L A

LT EERERREHEEETE
BIERERE - RITEEE - R/1T
®E - RRES - LBEHFZERE
UERFBEREEMSESEEF
Mz EMBETRE]  MEE
Z RNV ERTEHEERIMNIERL
B o

R S g y-Fikd

AEESEMOBAATFERER
FZZ2ETMEEEER RE
BRINEMAL 2 MABRATF Z
FEEMBAREZ - REBFEMAIL
ZIABRAR ZIFEMBRARE S
FIELEMAEHREMENRARE
ZRFEMER o MBHE RINEE
BT ARENH R HER
ZHE - MBI ERREFFR
R -BRABRREAHERY

BEMAFWEEBELER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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e

Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

38. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

b)

Assets and liabilities with fair value disclosure, but
not measured at fair value

All other financial assets and liabilities including loan
receivables, trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables and interest-bearing borrowings are
carried at amounts not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2018.

Except for certain available-for-sale financial assets for
which fair values cannot be measured reliably, all other
financial assets and liabilities including loan receivables,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
and interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2017.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. OTHER EVENTS AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Other than disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated

financial statements, a summary of other events and events

transacted after end of the reporting period is set out below:

(a)

Proposed acquisition of 50% equity interests in
Taiping Securities (HK) Co Limited (“Taiping”) in
relation to the deemed disposal of ED Group

On 14 November 2017, Enterprise Development,
Reliable Intelligence Asia Limited (“Reliable
Intelligence”), an indirect non wholly-owned
subsidiary of Company, and Taiping Financial Holdings
Company Limited (“Taiping Financial”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Taiping Insurance
Holdings Company Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and the shares of which
are traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with stock code of 00966.HK, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sales and Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which Reliable Intelligence
conditionally agreed to purchase and Taiping Financial
conditionally agreed to sell 50% equity interests in
Taiping, at a total consideration of HK$229,884,785
(subject to the adjustment) which shall be satisfied in
the following manner:

i as to HK$143,886,163 shall be payable by Reliable
Intelligence procuring Enterprise Development,
which shall
Development’s consideration shares to Taiping

allot and issue Enterprise
(or its nominee(s)) at the issue price of HK$1.10
per Enterprise Development’s consideration share
upon completion; and

GEUMBBEME

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %7 = ZF—/\F+_-H=

— Bt FE

39. HiEERREHEER

BaEHmaMEmREMBo RS
Sh - b EIH RN EMAE R A RETT

ZEIRBAINT

(a) FARFHELEREEAZERNK
BAFIEHEFRB)ERL2FI(K
F1)50% R ARz

RZEBE—tF+—A+HA @&
B -EEEMNBERAA(EEE
M AR ZEEIFEZ2ERNEL
ARKFEmERERAT(K
FTEE] —HERBBEMKLZ
ERABRAFEANFRBIZRE
AR —RAREBEMK LA
AT EROPEIMEREER
(A% 5% © 00966.HK) ) Z & &Kt
BReDilv—mEEHz(EER
w1 B EEDIMNE GG
AEBERRNTE2REKERER
BEARFS50% KRA#EZ  @RER
229,884,785 L (A THAE) - &
ATRBN 5 A -

i 143,886,163 B TLHE & =&
MR FERCES - EE R IZ
BTESREERER®D
1.10% T M A F(HH K E
NP R EBETERARERN
ZHRAZN &
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &% —F— \F+_-H=+—HI F/F

39. OTHER EVENTS AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(a)

Proposed acquisition of 50% equity interests in
Taiping Securities (HK) Co Limited (“Taiping”)
in relation to the deemed disposal of ED Group
(Continued)

i.  the remaining balance of the consideration shall
be payable by Reliable Intelligence procuring
Enterprise Development, which shall issue the
convertible bonds to Taiping (or its nominee(s))
upon completion, with the initial conversion
price of such convertible bonds at HK$1.10 per
conversion share.

Upon completion, Enterprise Development will indirectly
hold 50% of the issued share capital of Taiping, which
will become an associate of Enterprise Development
and the investment of the ED Group in Taiping will be
classified as interests in an associate.

The directors of the Company take the view that the
financial results of ED Group may or may not continue
to be consolidated into the financial statements of the
Group on the commencement of the conversion period
of the convertible bonds. Details please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 15 February 2018.

Taiping is a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, which is licensed by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong to carry out Type
1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, and is principally
engaged in the businesses of securities dealing and
broking, and securities margin financing.

RENTIAN TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED {ZXBEIZRERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. OTHER EVENTS AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

(a)

Proposed acquisition of 50% equity interests in
Taiping Securities (HK) Co Limited (“Taiping”)
in relation to the deemed disposal of ED Group
(Continued)

On 12 December 2018, the Group has received
written confirmation from the Securities and Futures
Commission in respect of the approval for the
change in the substantial shareholder of Taiping as
contemplated under the Sale and Purchase Agreement.

On 31 December 2018, a supplemental agreement to
the Sale and Purchase Agreement was entered into by
Taiping Financial, Reliable Intelligence and Enterprise
Development, pursuant to which the parties to the
Sale and Purchase Agreement have mutually agreed in
writing to extend the long stop date of the Sale and
Purchase Agreement to 31 March 2019, as additional
time is required for Taiping Financial to fulfill the
remaining conditions precedent under the Sale and
Purchase Agreement.

On 29 March 2019, a second supplemental agreement
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement was entered into
by Taiping Financial, Reliable Intelligence and Enterprise
Development, pursuant to which the parties to the
Sale and Purchase Agreement have mutually agreed in
writing to extend the long stop date of the Sale and
Purchase Agreement to 28 June 2019, as additional
time is required for Taiping Financial to fulfill the
remaining conditions precedent under the Sale and
Purchase Agreement.

As at the date of the these consolidated financial
statement, the acquisition of Taiping has not yet been
completed. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 15 November 2017,
20 December 2017 and 12 December 2018.

A B S8R W?x”

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —F— )\ +_-H=

— Bt T
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eV RRME

Year ended 31 December 2018 # %= —&F

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

—NFEF+-A=1—HIFE

40. QBB OR 3R

COMPANY
2018 2017
—E-N\E =— 4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AL NI P E 14 2,226,050 4,467,754
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries JrE LB & 345,849 416,794
Other receivables ﬁ@ﬁgﬂﬁlw)\ 2,383 17,622
Bank balances and cash BITEERES 647 62
348,879 434,478
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H Ath FE T 5RIE 70,666 61,646
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 200,000 —
Promissory notes AR 26 645,975 199,881
Convertible bonds Al I 29 672,117 13,621
1,588,758 275,148
Net current (liabilities) assets RB(EB)EEFEE (1,239,879) 159,330
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERABAE 986,171 4,627,084
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Promissory notes O E 26 90,662 539,943
Convertible bonds AR ES 29 — 635,541
90,662 1,175,484
NET ASSETS EEFE 895,509 3,451,600
Equity and reserves IR 1B
Share capital [N 30 11,022 11,148
Reserves B 40(a) 884,487 3,440,452
TOTAL EQUITY REAE 895,509 3,451,600

AU BRAREHAUNTALIRRESS
RZZF-NFZA-+hAREHER

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March

2019 and signed on its behalf by BrET)E
Kwok Kenneth Wai Lung Tsang To SRIEHE B
Director and Chief Executive Officer Director EERITHAEZ EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -
 BAMBBRERME

Year ended 31 December 2018 %@%i'%gf/(¢+:ﬁ5 fﬁfﬁi/;?
40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. AAFBBHRRE(E)
COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Reserves (a) A&

Retained

Capital Convertible Share profits

Treasury Share ~ redemption Capital ~ Contributed  bonds equity option  (Accumulated

shares premium reserve Reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
1Bk RER

ERhf  BBRE  WARRER  EAER MABR RERR  RBRER  (RHER) it
MO0 HKSODD HKSODD HKSODD RSO BP0 SO0 RSO0 HKSO
Tén Tn Tén TEn Tén Tén Tin Tén Tin

At 1 January 2017 RE-5-R-R - 1190751 1173 449 16,69 20019 94,565 99,206 3,030,904

Profitfor the year and ol ERRFRERSE
comprehengive income for -~ A%
the year - - - - - -

29058 29,058

Transaction with owners: &\ #7705

Contnbutons and HERAF
dstributions
—lsueof new shares,  — %R
net of expenses - 350,009 - - - - - - 350,009
—Recogniton of equity
component of
convertble bonds - - - - - 933 - - 93
—Ruitpsetted share- -~ — JEREENRA
based paymens R - - - - - - 29488 - 2948
—Share options forfeted  — AR B
during the year - - - - - - (14.150) 14,156 -
Total transaction with ~ EFEAEG2%5
owners g - 350,009 - - - 93 15332 14,156 380430
At 31 December 2017 and | H=F-+5+27
January 2018 ZH-BRZE-N
-R-A - 3,142,766 111 449 16,692 13012 109,897 14240 3440452
Loss for the year and total EAEERERLE
comprehensive loss for ~ FE48
the year - - - - - - - (2,525,107) (2525.107)
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Year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-_HA=+—HIFZF

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Reserves (Continued)

40. RAFARBRRE(E)

(a) fREHE(E)

Retained
Capital Convertible Share profits
Treasury Share  redemption Capital ~ Contributed  bonds equity option  (Accumulated
shares premium feserve Reserve feserve reserve feserve losses) Total
TERES R
EfRf hftkE  EARERE BiR f124 Bak  BREEE  (ZHER) it
HK§'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
Tin T Tin T Tin T Tin Tin T
Transaction with owners: S5 ARG 25
Contributions and HERAK
distributions
— Shares repurchased  — BEE
and cancelled REEERR - (20875) 126 - - - - (126) (20875)
— Shares repurchased  — BEE
but not cancelled BREHARS (4 (297) - - - - - - (301)
—Reversal of equity- ~ — BENEREEN
settled share- Rf%fz5E
hased payments - - - - - - (9,681) - (9,681)
— Share options - ERRlzERE
forfeited during
the year - - - - - - (31.444) 31444 -
Total transaction with ~~ £#& A£G 2R3
owners g (¢ 2173) 126 - - - (#1,125) 31318 (30,859)
Transfer & - - - - - (933) - 93 -
At31 December 2018 H-E-NETA
Z1-§ 1) 311593 1299 149 16,692 2019 68,772 (2,350436) 884,487
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The following is a summary of the published results and assets
and liabilities of Rentian Technology Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the

past five years.

- Financial Summary

AFABCANEERERARA(EATNE
HWBAR (R AEE])BERE DT
HEEYREERABEE -

RESULTS
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F S ZE-RE —Z-1F —EmE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEr FTExT FTEx TET
Revenue g 1,134,936 1,531,414 1,203,580 904,096 525,517
Cost of sales HEKA (924,459) (786,378) (739,321) (550,404) (158,827)
Gross profit E7 210,477 745,036 464,259 353,692 366,690
Other income Hit A 38,540 52,766 40,154 23,650 7,426
Selling and distribution expenses §&& &7 #5515 (128,191) (100,710) (68,414) (79,319) (29,917)
General and administrative —BRIBHEY
expenses (422,199) (376,055) (314,305) (171,415) (38,531)
Other operating expenses Hih 5% — — — (49) (444)
Changes in fair value of financial REZIREZATFERE
assets at fair value through LHBEEL
profit or loss N (1,479,954) 284,739 264,436 (77,666) 611,528
Changes in fair value of FERSARE L
contingent consideration AEEE
receivables — 186,757 — — —
Changes in fair value of JERNSAREL
contingent consideration AVEE
payables 16,524 — — — —
Other gains/(losses), net Hinlzs/ (B18) 38 — 1,265 (1,157) — —
Forfeiture of a deposit paid for 275 3t UE — RN E
acquisition of a subsidiary INGIES T PR & (3,000) — — — —
Impairment loss of available-for- A HERHKEE 2
sale financial assets REBR — (61,109) (41,114) — (12,536)
Impairment of intangible assets & A ERE (59,419) — — — —
Impairment of goodwill HERE (897,375) (200,000 — — —
Finance costs B FE R (205,698) (190,103) (109,685) (37,732) (9,177)
Share of results of an associate/ JElG—EH S RE/
associates NG — 1,473 18,960 48,059 (10,051)
Gain on bargain purchase on ~ WE—EBE AT 2
acquisition of an associate =EEEKE — — — 8,740 —
(Loss) Profit before taxation BT A (B518 ) I (2,930,295) 344,059 253,134 67,960 884,993
Taxation A (16,381) (37,394) (22,120) (6,956) (196)
(Loss) Profit for the year FAREE) RN (2,946,676) 306,665 231,014 61,004 884,797
(Loss) Profit attributable to: (BRE)ENEBEN
Owners of the Company /NCTE =N (2,835,001) 202,628 154,446 38,258 881,837
Non-controlling interests IR (111,675) 104,037 76,568 22,746 2,960
(2,946,676) 306,665 231,014 61,004 884,797
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Financial Summary
M E

EERER

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—2-A\f “"FTtF T "FT-1F “T-MNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEL FET FET THL
Non-current assets ERHEE 653,176 1,702,149 1,848,292 920,767 427,949
Current assets MEEE 3,671,941 5,208,539 3,588,320 2,547,185 1,892,184
Current liabilities mEaE (3,133,983)  (1,384,106) (923,276) (723,856) (340,660)
Net current assets MEEEFE 537,958 3,824,433 2,665,044 1,823,329 1,551,524
Total assets less current liabilities BEZERREEE 1,191,134 5,526,582 4,513,336 2,744,096 1,979,473
Non-current liabilities FrBEE (95,392)  (1,219,004) (1,079,844) (479,786) (80,752)
Net assets BEZE 1,095,742 4,307,578 3,433,492 2,264,310 1,898,721
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